
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.d. 

MEETING DATE: 02/17/2015 
 

PREPARED BY:    William F. Underwood, II 
  

SUBJECT:  Land Acquisition from Palm Beach County   
  
1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town requires ownership of the land upon which the Palms West 
Chamber of Commerce is located.  
 
Problem Solution:   Purchase the land from Palm Beach County.  

The Town Council passed a resolution requesting the PBC Board of County Commissioners 
considers waiving the cost of about 1.34 acres of land leased by the Chamber for their building.  
Additionally, the Council authorized staff and Town Attorney to negotiate with PBC staff to 
purchase the land as an alternative.  The Town offered to purchase the land for $20,000 and 
agreed to the stipulations the property remain in public use and PBC retain 75% of the mineral 
rights. 

  
2. CURRENT ACTIVITY  

  

At the February 3, 2015, PBC Board of County Commissioners meeting, Commissioner McKinlay 
made to motion to accept the Town offer.  The motion passed 5 ‐2.  At the Town Council 
meeting that same evening, it was reported the County Commission accepted the offer which 
the Town Council ratified and further authorized staff and Town Attorney to perform a Phase I 
Environmental Assessment, and prepare a survey for the sight.   
 
Both tasks are currently underway and we expect no problems or issues to arise from the 
analysis.  Palm Beach County will provide title to the property upon the Town acceptance of the 
results of the tasks.  In order to consummate this transaction, the County will supply the title 
when the Town remits the agreed upon purchase price of $20,000.  The Town will wire this 
amount plus ancillary costs related to closing to Goren, Cherof, Doody, and Ezrol, who will in 
turn complete the transaction. 
 
The Town will be closing on the land and building simultaneously. 

3. ATTACHMENTS  

  
 Resolution Authorize all actions necessary to complete the purchase. 
Phase 1 Environmental Assessment Report by Nutting Environmental of Florida, Inc. 
 

  

176 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4. FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

  

This payment will be charged to General Fund, Government Department, capital outlay for land. 
This transaction will reduce the estimated amount of transfer to fund balance at the end of the 
fiscal year. 

 
5. RECOMMENDED ACTION  
 Motion to authorize staff to issue the wire transfer and adopt resolution 2015‐ XXX. 

  
 
 
 
 

177 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00058515.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-11 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY FROM PALM 
BEACH COUNTY, AS DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED 
HERETO, IN THE AMOUNT OF TWENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($20,000.00), SUBJECT TO COMPLETION BY THE TOWN OF CERTAIN 
DUE DILIGENCE, AND TO DEED RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF 
THE PROPERTY, FUTURE SALE, AND RESERVATION OF CERTAIN 
MINERAL RIGHTS BY THE COUNTY; AUTHORIZING THE 
APPROPRIATE TOWN OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO CLOSE THE TRANSACTION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves and the Palms West Chamber of 

Commerce have negotiated an Agreement for the Purchase and Sale of Office Building, for the 

office building currently owned by the Palms West Chamber of Commerce (“Chamber 

Building”), located at 13901 Southern Boulevard, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, on real property 

owned by Palm Beach County; and,  

WHEREAS, at its February 3, 2015 meeting, the Board of County Commissioners for 

Palm Beach County authorized the sale of the real property owned by Palm Beach County on 

which the Chamber Building is located, as described in Exhibit “A” hereto, for a purchase price 

of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00), and subject to restrictions:  the property will be used 

by the Town solely for public purposes, and will not be conveyed to a private individual or non-

governmental entity without the County’s prior written consent; and the County is reserving a 

178 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00058515.1 1574-0702400 }  

share of mineral rights on the property, as set forth in the form of County Deed attached hereto 

as Exhibit “B;” and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it is in the best interest of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves to approve and authorize the purchase of the real property from Palm Beach County as 

set forth herein.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2.  Subject to completion of due diligence actions pursuant to Section 3 below, 

the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves approves and authorizes the purchase of 

the real property on which the Chamber Building is located, as described in Exhibit “A” hereto, 

for a purchase price of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00), and subject to restrictions:  the 

property will be used by the Town solely for public purposes, and will not be conveyed by the 

Town to a private individual or non-governmental entity without the County’s prior written 

consent; and the County is reserving a share of mineral rights on the property, as set forth in the 

form of County Deed attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”  

Section 3. The appropriate Town Officials are authorized to complete due diligence 

on the real property, including completion of environmental inspections, a survey and review of 

title work for the property.  Upon confirmation by the Town Manager and the Town Attorney 

that the due diligence has been completed and no issues are present, the appropriate Town 

Officials are authorized to take all actions necessary to close the transaction and accept title of 

the real property from Palm Beach County, including payment of the purchase price of 

179 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00058515.1 1574-0702400 }  

$20,000.00, and accepting the final, fully executed County Deed, substantially in the form as 

attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” on behalf of the Town.   

Section 4.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 

to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5.  If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

  
ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, FLORIDA, THIS 17TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015.  

 
      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA 

 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor David Browning  
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet Whipple, Town Clerk    Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
     
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
        ____________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Jim Rockett 

180 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00058515.1 1574-0702400 }  

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION  
 

  

181 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT "A" 

THE PREMISES/LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Part of Tract 6, Block K, Loxahatchee. Groves, as recorded in Plat Book 12, Page 
29, Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida, more particularly described as 
follows: Beginning at a point on the east line of aforesaid Tract 6 at its 
intersection with the North right of way line of State Road 80 as shown on Sheet 
No, 28 of Florida Department of Transportation Project No. 93120-3538; thence 
south 42°00'46" West (this and the next 2 courses being along the north right of 
way line of State Road 80), a distance of 50,06 feet to a point of curvature of a 
curve to the left having a central angle of 35°25'14", and a radius of 263.50 feet, 
said point being north 02°16'50" East from the centerpoint of said curve; thence 
southwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 162.90 feet to a point of 
reverse curvature of a curve to the right having a central angle of 07°47'03" and a 
radius of 218.50 feet. Said point of reverse curvature being South 33°08'24" East 
from ,the centerpoint of said reverse curve, thence westerly along the arc of said 
curve, a distance of 29.69 feet; thence North 02°16'50" East parallel to said East 
line of Tract 6, a distance of 322.70 feet; thence South 87°43'10" East, a distance 
of 210.00 feet to the East line of said Tract 6, thence South 02°16'50" West along 
said East line of Tract 6, a distance of 220.00 feet to the point of beginning. 
Containing 1.32 acres, more or less. 

182 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00058515.1 1574-0702400 }  

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

FORM OF COUNTY DEED 
 
 
 
 

183 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
ROSS HERING 
PALM BEACH COUNTY 
PROPERTY & REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
2633 Vista Parkway 
West Palm Beach, FL  33411-5605 
 
PCN:       
Closing Date:    
Purchase Price:    

 
 
 

 COUNTY DEED 
 

This COUNTY DEED, made                                    , by PALM BEACH COUNTY, 
a political subdivision of the State of Florida, whose legal mailing address is 301 North Olive 
Avenue, West Palm Beach, Florida, 33401-4791, ("County"), and the TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“Town”) 
whose legal mailing address is 14579 Southern Blvd., Ste. 2, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
"Town”. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

That County, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and 00/100 Dollars ($10.00) 
to it in hand paid by Town, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, has granted, 
bargained and sold to  Town,  its successors and assigns forever, the following described land 
lying and being in Palm Beach County, Florida: 
 

See Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof (the 
“Property”). 

 
Reserving, however, unto County, its successors and assigns, an undivided three-

fourths (¾) interest in, and title in and to an undivided three-fourths (¾) interest in, all the 
phosphate, minerals, and metals that are or may be in, on, or under the said land and an 
undivided one-half (½) interest in all petroleum that is or may be in, on, or under said land. 
The aforementioned reservation of phosphate, mineral, metals and petroleum rights shall not 
include, and County hereby expressly releases, any and all rights of entry and rights of 
exploration relating to such phosphate, mineral, metals and petroleum rights. 

 
This County Deed is granted on the express condition that the Property shall be used 

by Town solely for proper public purposes and shall not be sold, transferred or conveyed to a 
private individual or non-governmental entity without County’s prior written consent.  
 

 
 
 

184 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County has caused these presents to be executed in its 

name by its Board of County Commissioners acting by the Mayor or Vice Mayor of said 
Board, the day and year aforesaid. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
SHARON R. BOCK   PALM BEACH COUNTY, a political 
CLERK & COMPTROLLER  subdivision of the State of Florida  

 
 
By:        By:         

Deputy Clerk Shelley Vana, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

(OFFICIAL SEAL) 
 
By:        

Assistant County Attorney 
 
 
 
G:\PREM\Dianne\Town of Loxahatchee Groves\Deed  
 
 

185 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

Exhibit "A" 

186 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 

PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT 
 

OF 
 

CENTRAL PALM BEACH COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BUILDING 
 13901 SOUTHERN BOULEVARD 

LOXAHATCHEE, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FL 33470 
 

FOR 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
14579 SOUTHERN BOULEVARD 

SUITE 2 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FL 33470 

 
PREPARED BY 

 
NUTTING ENVIRONMENTAL OF FLORIDA, INC. 

1310 NEPTUNE DRIVE 
BOYNTON BEACH, FL 33426 

 
 

FEBRUARY 2015

187 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

February 11, 2015 
 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Boulevard 
Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
Attn: Mr. William Underwood 
 
Re:   Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
 Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce Building 

13901 Southern Boulevard 
Loxahatchee, Palm Beach County, FL 33470 
NEF # 7411.1 

 
Dear Mr. Underwood: 
 
NUTTING ENVIRONMENTAL OF FLORIDA, INC. (NEF) has performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment at the 
above referenced project in accordance with your authorization of February 3, 2015. This report completes NEF's 
services at the project as set forth in NEF's proposal. The purpose of this assessment was to evaluate the general 
likelihood of "recognized environmental conditions" (as defined in ASTM Practice E-1527-13 and Section 2.1 of this 
report) being present on the site on the basis of the scope of work listed below. 
 
NEF conducted the assessment research in accordance with industry accepted practices, investigating the 
following key areas: 
 
 Interviews with past and present owners, operators, occupants and client as were successfully contacted. 
 Examination of information regarding the subject property's general hydrogeological, geological and 

topographical characteristics. 
 Performance of a physical site inspection of accessible areas to observe the existing conditions, business 

activities, and operations on the subject site and adjoining properties. 
 Review of specific federal, state, county, tribal and local agency records pertaining to the site and other 

selected properties available and provided at the time of our evaluation. 
 Review of available standard historical sources including but not limited to; aerial photographs, fire insurance 

maps, property tax files, recorded land title records, USGS topographic maps, local street directories, building 
department records and fire department records. 

 Reviewed documentation provided by the client regarding recorded environmental cleanup liens, engineering 
controls or institutional controls for the subject property. 

 
Please see section 2.0 of this report for further details regarding NEF's methodology. For further information 
regarding our company’s qualifications, please visit http://www.nuttingengineers.com/ or contact the undersigned at 
your convenience. 
 
 
 

188 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



189 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0  SUMMARY  1 

2.0  INTRODUCTION  2 

2.1  PURPOSE AND SCOPE  2 
2.2  SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS  3 
2.3  LIMITATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS OF ASSESSMENT  4 
2.4  LIMITING CONDITIONS AND METHODOLOGY USED  5 

3.0  SITE DESCRIPTION  7 

3.1  LOCATION AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION  7 
3.2  CURRENT SITE CONDITIONS  7 
3.3  STORAGE AND HANDLING OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND PETROLEUM PRODUCTS  9 
3.4  EVALUATION OF CURRENT USES OF ADJOINING PROPERTIES  9 
3.5  ENVIRONMENTAL CONTEXT  9 

4.0  RECORDS REVIEW  12 

4.1  REVIEW OF REGULATORY AGENCY RECORDS  12 
4.2  VAPOR INTRUSION AND MIGRATION  13 
4.3  HISTORICAL USE INFORMATION  13 
4.4  HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT AND USES  16 
4.5  HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT AND USES OF ADJOINING PROPERTIES  16 

5.0  OWNER AND USER PROVIDED INFORMATION  18 

5.1  INFORMATION REPORTED BY THE PAST AND PRESENT OWNERS AND OCCUPANTS  18 
5.2  INFORMATION REPORTED BY THE USER  18 
5.3  PRIOR ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTS  19 

6.0  FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS  20 

6.1  FINDINGS  20 
6.2 CONCLUSIONS  20 

7.0  SIGNATURES OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS   

8.0  QUALIFICATIONS OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS   

9.0  APPENDICES   

9.1  SITE PHOTOGRAPHS AND DOCUMENTS   
9.2  REGULATORY AGENCY DATABASE SEARCH RESULTS   
9.3  RECORDS OF COMMUNICATION   
9.4  ASTM QUESTIONNAIRE   
   
 

  

190 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

1.0  SUMMARY 
 
NUTTING ENVIRONMENTAL OF FLORIDA, INC. (NEF) has conducted a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment in 
accordance with your authorization of February 3, 2015. This assessment was performed between February 3 and 
February 11, 2015. Based on the authorized scope of work performed, the following observations were made: 
 
 The subject site consisted of an approximate 1.3 acre (approximately 56,628 square foot), irregular shaped 

parcel currently developed with a one-story office building. The subject site was noted to be occupied by the 
Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce on the day of the site inspection. Areas of the subject 
property outside the footprint of structures on site were noted to be developed with asphalt paved parking areas 
and landscaped areas. 

 
 Inspection of the site did not reveal the presence of visible stains, areas of distressed vegetation, or other 

visible indications of recognized environmental conditions on the property. 
 
 On the day of the site inspection, NEF did not observe the presence of hazardous materials and/or petroleum 

products with the exception of general janitorial supplies. Additionally, no evidence of aboveground or 
underground storage tanks containing hazardous substances and/or petroleum products were observed on the 
subject site. 

 
 Based on a review of the information collected in this investigation, it is NEF’s understanding the subject 

property was historically vacant prior to 1953 until the late 1980's/early 1990's when a clubhouse building was 
constructed on the subject site. The clubhouse building was demolished and the existing office building was 
constructed in 2010. The subject site has been occupied by the Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce 
from the early 1990's to the present date.  

 
 The subject site was not found to be listed as a contaminated site or as a site under enforcement by regulatory 

agencies within the databases and files reviewed. 
 
 No evidence of environmental cleanup liens, engineering controls, or institutional controls related to a release 

or threatened release of hazardous substances on the subject site was noted within the databases and files 
reviewed. Additionally, Mr. William Underwood of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, the client, stated that the 
subject site “is currently a park and will be restricted to public use upon purchase with Palm Beach County 
retaining 75% of mineral rights.” Please refer to Section 4.3 for additional information. 

 
 No obvious evidence of a likely release or threatened release of hazardous substances to the subject site from 

an adjoining or nearby property was noted within the databases and files reviewed. 
 
 Using the assessment criteria as described in Section 2.0 of this report, NEF has found no evidence of 

recognized environmental conditions on the subject property. On the basis of the information developed in this 
assessment, NEF is not recommending further environmental assessment activities on the subject parcel. 

 

191 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
2 

2.0  INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1  Purpose and Scope 
 
The purpose of this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment was to evaluate the general likelihood of "recognized 
environmental conditions" being currently present on the site on the basis of the scope of work identified in this 
report and our proposal. A "recognized environmental condition" is defined in ASTM Practice E-1527-13 as: 
 
"The presence or likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products in, on, or at a property: (1) 
due to any release to the environment; (2) under conditions indicative of a release to the environment; or (3) under 
conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the environment.” 
 
A “past release” that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority or meeting 
unrestricted use criteria established by a regulatory authority is termed to be a “historical recognized environmental 
condition.” 
 
A “past release” that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority, with hazardous 
substances or petroleum products allowed to remain in place subject to the implementation of required controls is 
termed to be a “controlled recognized environmental condition.” 
 
Comment may also be made on “business environmental risk” which is defined in ASTM Practice E-1527-13 as: 
 
“A risk which can have a material environmental or environmentally-driven impact on the business associated with 
the current or planned use of a parcel of commercial real estate, not necessarily limited to those environmental 
issues required to be investigated in this practice. Consideration of business environmental risk issues may involve 
addressing one or more non-scope considerations, some of which are identified in Section 13”, of the ASTM 
Practice 1527-13. It should be noted that evaluation of these non-scope considerations is beyond the scope of an 
ASTM Practice 1527-13 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment and are not evaluated as part of this investigation 
unless these non-scope services were specifically identified and authorized through a signed proposal. 
 
The client should be aware that ASTM Practice E-1527-13 does not necessarily address requirements of state or 
local laws or of any federal laws other than aspects of the “all appropriate inquiry” provisions of the landowner 
liability protections. The client and users of this report are cautioned that federal, state, and local laws may impose 
environmental assessment and other obligations that are beyond the scope of this practice. The client and users of 
this report should also be aware that there are likely to be other legal obligations with regard to hazardous 
substances, substances of concern or petroleum products that may be on the property that are not addressed in 
this practice or within the scope of work of this investigation that may pose risks of civil and/or criminal sanctions for 
non-compliance. 
 
Evaluation of the property is based on information derived from the following sources in general accordance with 
guidelines set forth in ASTM Practice E-1527-13: 
 
 Interviews with past and present owners, operators, and occupants as available. 
 
 Examination of aspects of the historical background and operating history of the site based upon interviews, 

review of aerial photographs and other available historical documents. 
 
 Examination of existing information regarding the site's hydrogeological, geological and topographical 

192 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
3 

characteristics.  
 
 Performance of a physical site inspection to observe the existing conditions, business activities, and operations 

on the subject site and adjoining properties. 
 

 Review of federal, state, county, tribal and local agency records, as deemed appropriate by NEF, pertaining to 
the site and other selected properties within the approximate minimum search distance of the subject site. 

 
 Additional information provided by the client or a third party such as chain of titles, environmental cleanup liens, 

specialized knowledge or experience, relationship of the purchase price to the fair market value. Or any 
commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information about the subject property. 

 
It is the client’s responsibility to provide NEF with the following information regarding the subject property:  
 
 A current chain of title search and any environmental cleanup liens filed or recorded under federal, tribal, state, 

or local law. 
 Knowledge regarding Activity and land Use Limitations that are in place on the subject site or that have been 

filed or recorded in a registry. 
 Any specialized knowledge or experience known by the subject site and surrounding properties. 
 Comment on the relationship of the purchase price to the fair market value of the subject property, if the 

property was not contaminated. 
 Any commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information about the subject property related to the 

presence of likely presence of contamination on the subject property. 
 
2.2  Special Terms and Conditions 
 
Independent examination of the available facts developed for the subject site is the principal component of a due 
diligent environmental assessment effort. NEF has made a diligent effort to obtain and verify as many facts 
pertinent to an environmental evaluation of the subject site as possible, given time and physical constraints. A 
rigorous effort has been made to identify conditions indicative of release or threatened release of hazardous 
substances on the subject site, but because of limitations within the data used to evaluate the property and 
absence of quantitative tests, it is not possible to guarantee that the site is completely free of these environmental 
conditions. 
 
Our client for this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment investigation was: 
 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Boulevard 
Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
Attn: Mr. William Underwood 
 
The contents of this report are for the exclusive use of the client and parties to whom the report has been 
addressed.  No other parties may use or rely upon this report and NEF accepts no liability whatsoever for their 
reliance upon this report. Information conveyed in this report shall not be used or relied upon by other parties 
without the expressed written consent of NUTTING ENVIRONMENTAL OF FLORIDA, INC. NEF is not engaged in 
environmental assessment activities for the purpose of advertising, sales promotion, or endorsement of any client’s 
interests, including raising investment capital, recommending investment decisions, or other publicity purposes. 

193 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
4 

2.3  Limitations and Exceptions of Assessment 
 
The Phase I Environmental Site Assessment was conducted in general accordance with the scope of work 
described above. The work conducted by NEF is limited to the services authorized by the client, and no other 
services beyond those explicitly stated should be inferred or implied. 
 
It is understood that an environmental assessment generates information upon which to form an opinion regarding 
site conditions and does not lead to full knowledge or constitute a warranty of property conditions. There can be no 
assurance nor does NEF offer any assurance that property conditions do not exist or could not exist in the future 
which were undetected at the time of the assessment and could lead to liability in connection with the property. In 
conducting the investigation, NEF analyzed records and site conditions in accordance with industry accepted 
environmental site assessment practice. We cannot predict what actions, if any, a given regulatory agency may 
presently take or what standards and practices may apply to the property in the future.  We have not necessarily 
evaluated or verified the proper disposal of solid wastes, asbestos containing materials or contaminants that may 
have previously existed at the property, if any, as these tasks are beyond the stated scope of services for this 
evaluation. 
 
This Phase I Environmental Site Assessment is intended to potentially permit a user to satisfy one of the 
requirements to qualify for the “innocent landowner” , “contiguous property owner" defense of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA), as amended by the Superfund 
Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA), the Asset Conservation, Lender Liability, and Deposit 
Insurance Protection Act of 1996 (the “Lender Liability Amendments”), and the Small Business Liability Relief and 
Brownfields Revitalization Act of 2001 (the “Brownfield Amendments”). However, NEF makes no claims, warranties, 
or guarantees with regard to this environmental review. NEF does not represent that this environmental site  
assessment work, in and of itself, constitutes “all appropriate inquiry into the previous ownership and uses of the 
property,” as this phrase is used in Section 101(35)(B) of CERCLA. 
 
A recommendation that further assessment activities are not warranted or mandatory at the subject site in no way 
constitutes an assurance by NEF that recognized environmental conditions are not present at the subject site, but 
reflects NEF's opinion, based upon the evidence encountered, that there is a low likelihood that environmental 
conditions indicative of a release are present on the property. We make no warranties, express or implied, including 
without limitation, warranties as to merchantability or fitness of the property for a particular purpose. In addition, the 
information provided to you in this report is not to be construed as legal advice. 
 
The client should be aware that the information contained in this report is being held in confidence. NEF normally 
has no obligation under Florida law to report to regulatory agencies the presence of limited contamination detected 
during the performance of environmental site assessments. However, the client or owner of the property may have 
such a reporting obligation. A legal opinion relative to these responsibilities should be obtained by the client or 
owner. 
 
The client should be aware that certain contaminants may be present in soil and/or groundwater above their 
respective Soil and/or Groundwater Cleanup Target Levels, as listed in Chapter 62-777, Florida Administrative 
Code (FAC) on any property as a result of “non-point” sources or natural occurring conditions. Such “non-point” 
sources (e.g. petroleum releases from the presence of vehicles/equipment, PAH’s from the exhaust of 
equipment/vehicles/boilers/ generators, heavy metals, herbicides, pesticides from maintenance of landscaped 
areas and pressure treated lumber) asphalt, and natural occurring conditions (e.g. naturally occurring ammonia, 
methane, hydrogen sulfide, radon, heavy metals such as arsenic, iron, aluminum, etc.) may not considered to be 
“recognized environmental conditions” in this context however could result in the presence of contaminants above 

194 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
5 

their respective Soil and/or Groundwater Cleanup Target Levels. Upon discovery of such contamination the 
property owner/responsible party may be required to perform contamination assessment and remediation activities 
to address such contamination by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection or the local regulatory 
agency. It is important to note that these considerations and potential concerns may change through time with 
environmental regulations and other factors.  If the client would like to evaluate such concerns NEF would be 
pleased to discuss these concerns with the client upon specific request.” 
 
If historical site development had been present on the subject property, it is possible that there may be latent 
underground structures such as oil water separators, septic tanks, drainfields, undocumented underground storage 
tanks, sumps, etc. that may be encountered during site redevelopment that may influence construction 
considerations such as dewatering. Site redevelopment considerations are clearly beyond the approved scope of 
work for this project unless otherwise explicitly stated in writing by NEF in our proposal. If concerns exist regarding 
such latent structures and potential related environmental impacts, various steps may be undertaken by the client 
such as performance of ground penetrating radar survey, ground penetrating radar and other geophysical surveys, 
test pits and other steps as may be appropriate. NEF would be pleased to discuss these considerations with the 
client upon specific request. 
 
This report may be relied upon and assumed to be viable by those reliance parties specifically identified herein in 
Section 2.2, if the date of this report is within 180 days of the date of the acquisition of the property.  If this is not the 
case and the date of the report is still within one year of the date of the acquisition of the property the report may be 
updated if specific arrangements are made with NEF in that regard.  If the date of this report exceeds one year of 
the date of transaction, this report is no longer viable and no party may use or rely upon this report.   
 
2.4  Limiting Conditions and Methodology Used 
 
The findings of this investigation are based upon conditions identified at the time of our study and may not 
necessarily represent concealed conditions or conditions which may develop subsequent to our study. 
 
The client provided NEF with a site diagram defining the boundaries of the subject property. Surveying or 
confirmation of the actual legal boundaries of the subject property was not included as a part of this investigation. 
NEF will not be held responsible for inaccuracies in site boundary information provided by the client. 
 
Certain sections of the report contain information derived from regulatory agency databases and files, historical 
information resources, and interviews with persons familiar with the subject property. NEF cannot be held 
responsible for the accuracy or completeness of the information from these sources. Therefore, NEF assumes no 
liability for any loss resulting from errors or omissions arising from the use of inaccurate or incomplete information 
or misrepresentations or omissions made by others. 
 
NEF attempts to evaluate “obvious” uses of the subject property “back to the property’s first developed use, or back 
to 1940, whichever is earlier.  This task required reviewing only as many of the standard historical sources as are 
necessary and both reasonably ascertainable and likely to be useful” as recommended by the ASTM Practice E-
1527-13 subject to the limitations and completeness of available information. This evaluation may include review of 
“standard” historical sources such as USGS topographic maps, aerial photographs, fire insurance maps, city 
directories, building department records, chain of title documents, land use records, and other sources, when 
available. Due to the relatively recent development of many areas, many of these sources are not available or 
cannot be obtained within the time allowed for the investigation. In these cases, the “standard” historical sources 
are not “reasonably ascertainable” and constitute a “data gap.” The historical evaluation included in this report is 
based only on the “standard” historical sources that were “reasonably ascertainable” during the course of the 

195 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
6 

investigation.   
 
Benefit may be realized by the client by the performance of ground penetrating radar and other physical surveys on 
any parcel to provide additional information regarding potential latent conditions that may not be directly 
observable, of record or in the information reviewed. 
 
It should be noted that most of the “reasonably ascertainable” “standard” historical sources readily available to and 
therefore used by NEF are not extensive enough in time coverage to meet the ASTM Practice E 1527-13 
requirement that the history of the subject parcel be conducted back to the property’s first developed use or 1940, 
whichever is earlier.  ASTM E 1527-13 Practice defines “reasonably ascertainable” to mean that a source is publicly 
available, practically reviewable, available within a reasonable time and for a reasonable cost.  For the purpose of 
this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, NEF interprets publicly available, reasonably priced sources to 
include only local sources of information (such as libraries and local governmental offices) which could be 
researched within the time frame allotted for this investigation.   
 
The review of historical and current information includes information that is “publicly available, obtainable from its 
source within reasonable time and cost constraints, and which can be practically reviewed” as defined by the AAI 
rule. For the purpose of this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, NEF interprets publicly available, reasonably 
available and priced sources to include only local sources of information (such as libraries and local governmental 
offices) which could be researched within the time frame allotted for this investigation.  Information not available 
during the course of this investigation will be classified as a “data gap.” 
 
A “data gap” as defined by ASTM Practice E 1527-13 is “a lack of or inability to obtain information required by this 
practice despite good faith efforts by the environmental professional to gather such information. Data gaps may 
result from incompleteness in any of the activities required by this practice.” 
 
Upon written request, NEF can conduct extended research beyond these sources to include out of state sources 
and/or historical research materials sold by commercial vendors.  Research using extended sources may take eight 
or more weeks to complete and can be completed for an additional fee and may or may not contain information 
extending back to the first development of the parcel.  NEF will prepare a proposal to complete this research at the 
written request of the client, subsequent to this report, should interest warrant.   
 
The scope of work of this investigation was limited to specific scope items of the ASTM Practice E-1527-13 Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment and no other activities or inquiries were included within the scope of work of this 
investigation including all non-scope items identified in the ASTM Practice E-1527-13. 
 

 

196 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
7 

3.0  SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
NEF conducted an inspection of the subject parcel on February 10, 2015 to evaluate apparent current conditions on 
the subject property. The site inspection was performed by Matthew Buchko, Project Manager with NEF. During the 
site inspection, NEF personnel walked through improvements on the subject parcel, around bodies of water, and 
across undeveloped areas subject to physical limitations of access. NEF personnel looked for exposed and obvious 
potential indicators of use, storage, treatment, handling or disposal of hazardous substances on or adjoining to the 
subject property, including the following: discolored soils; dead or distressed vegetation; spills around loading 
docks, fuel areas, and surface drains; stained or discolored sinks, drains, or sumps; discolored or turbid surface 
water on the property; streams, drainage ditches, rivers, lagoons, and retention ponds; noxious odors and/or leaks 
from pipes, electrical transformers, tanks, drums, or any other containers; and inadequate "housekeeping" on or in 
the vicinity of the subject parcel. It is possible that latent or concealed conditions were present at the time of this 
visual inspection that were not revealed during this examination. Additionally, NEF personnel conducted interviews 
with available site personnel to evaluate materials handling practices on the subject parcel (if appropriate). 
 
3.1  Location and Legal Description 
 
The Environmental Site Assessment was performed on the Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce 
building located at 13901 Southern Boulevard in Loxahatchee Groves, Palm Beach County, Florida. The parcel is 
bounded by Loxahatchee Groves Park to the north; Loxahatchee Groves Park with Southern Boulevard beyond to 
the south; F Road with an office building beyond to the east; and Loxahatchee Groves Park to the west. 
 
The subject site lies in Section 32, Township 43 South, Range 41 East of Palm Beach County, Florida. Also, the 
subject site lies approximately 260 feet to the northwest of the intersection of F Road and Southern Boulevard, the 
major thoroughfares in the area.  
 
The legal description of the parcel as reported to NEF is reproduced in Appendix 9.1. 
 
A site map delineating the boundaries of the subject property as reported to NEF by the client is attached as Figure 
1. 
 
3.2  Current Site Conditions 
 
Site Extent and Development 
 
The subject site consisted of an approximate 1.3 acre (approximately 56,628 square foot), irregular shaped parcel 
currently developed with a one-story office building. The subject site was noted to be occupied by the Central Palm 
Beach County Chamber of Commerce on the day of the site inspection. Areas of the subject property outside the 
footprint of structures on site were noted to be developed with asphalt paved parking areas and landscaped areas. 
 
Site Topography 
 
The subject site is primarily flat, with few relative elevated areas or depressions.  
 
Storm Water Management on Site 
 
During the course of the site inspection, NEF noted one storm drain located on the unpaved portion of the subject 
site on the north side of the building. NEF has no opinion on the adequacy or acceptability of the storm water 

197 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
8 

management provisions on the subject site as this is beyond the scope of work of this investigation. 
 
Floor Drains and Sumps 
 
Several floor drains were observed in the bathrooms on the subject site. Given the absence of hazardous materials 
and/or petroleum products at this facility, and the connection to the sanitary sewer system, it is NEF’s opinion that 
these floor drains represent a “de minimis” condition to the subject site at this time. 
 
Utility Connections 
 
Water, sewer, electric and telephone services are available to the subject property. NEF's inspection and research 
did not note the presence of active septic tanks or potable water production wells on the property. 
 
Solid Waste 
 
Solid waste in the form of litter such as cans, bottles, paper, and other non hazardous debris was noted at various 
locations across the subject facility. 
 
Latent buried waste may be present on any property particularly if efforts were undertaken to conceal this act.  
Indications of such activity may or may not be revealed in the records and observations developed in this Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment.  Further information regarding this potential risk, if desired, could be developed on 
the basis of a geophysical investigation and subsurface study. 
 
PCBs 
 
NEF noted ground or pole mounted electrical transformers on or near the subject site during the inspection. The 
transformers appeared to be in good condition, with no visible signs of former discharge or other potential indicators 
of environmental contamination. Florida Power and Light (FPL) has informed NEF that "in the event of leakage or 
spillage of oil from electrical equipment owned by FPL, the company assumes responsibility for the proper clean-up 
and disposal of oily material regardless of PCB content." PCBs, often found in electrical equipment such as 
transformers, ballasts in fluorescent lighting, circuit breakers and switch gears, and hydraulic fluids, contain toxic 
compounds which attach themselves to human fat tissue and may act as possible carcinogens if ingested. 
 
Wetlands  
 
Identification and delineation of wetlands or any other biological attributes on the subject property is beyond the 
scope of this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment. It would be necessary to perform a formal wetland survey by 
properly trained personnel to confirm the presence or absence of wetlands on the subject property.  
 
Vegetation on Site  
 
Vegetation noted during the site inspection consisted of grass, trees, and other ornamental flora planted within 
landscape islands at various locations on the site. No areas of distressed or discolored vegetation which might be 
attributable to a discharge of environmental contaminants were noted.  
 
 
 

198 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
9 

3.3  Storage and Handling of Hazardous Materials and Petroleum Products 
 
Hazardous substances and/or petroleum products were not noted on the subject site. Additionally, discussions with 
Mr. Wayne Burns of Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce did not reveal the presence of hazardous 
substances on the subject site. 
 
No underground or aboveground storage tanks were observed during the site inspection. Mr. Burns stated that to 
his knowledge, there have never been storage tanks located on the subject property. In addition, a review of certain 
state lists did not indicate underground or aboveground storage tanks on the subject property. However, the state 
only lists registered storage tanks containing petroleum products. Registration of storage tanks above minimum 
capacity generally started in 1984 in the State of Florida.   
 
3.4  Evaluation of Current Uses of Adjoining Properties 
 
The following properties were identified as currently adjoining the subject parcel: 
 
 North: Loxahatchee Groves Park 
 South: Loxahatchee Groves Park with Southern Boulevard beyond 
 East: F Road with an office building beyond 
 West: Loxahatchee Groves Park 
 
NEF conducted a visual survey in an effort to identify facilities located within a 1/4 mile approximate minimum 
search distance which could reasonably be expected to create recognized environmental conditions on the subject 
property on the basis of information developed during the course of this investigation. The 1/4 mile search includes 
identification of visible conditions at the exterior of facilities which suggest the use or storage of environmental 
contaminants, such as automobile fueling and/or service stations, pump stations, waste treatment plants, landfills, 
industrial facilities, chemical storage facilities and dry cleaners.  
 
No such facilities were noted within a 1/4 mile approximate minimum search distance of the subject site that could 
reasonably be expected to create recognized environmental conditions on the subject property. 
 
3.5  Environmental Context 
 
NEF performed research to generally evaluate the regional environmental context and on site subsurface geologic 
and hydrogeologic conditions of the property. NEF reviewed reference texts and maps to obtain general information 
on the geologic and hydrogeologic characteristics of the site and vicinity. 
 
Regional Geological Context 
 
Palm Beach County 
 
Palm Beach County can be divided into three major physiographic subdivisions: the Coastal Ridge, which parallels 
the coastline and extends inland two to three miles from the ocean; the Sandy Flatlands, which lie between the 
Coastal Ridge and the Everglades; and the Everglades which occupies much of the western extent of Palm Beach 
County. Proceeding west from the coastline, elevations range from sea level to 25' to 40' above mean sea level 
(MSL) along the Coastal Ridge and down to 14' to 16' above MSL in the virtually flat Everglades. 
 
   

199 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
10 

The Coastal Ridge subdivision is made up of low, sandy ridges, a part of which is commonly referred to as 
Flatwoods. The vegetation is mostly pine, palmetto, and native grasses. The Flatwoods part is made up of deep, 
poorly drained, nearly level, sandy soils. This is the most concentrated area of urban development in Palm Beach 
County. 
 
The Sandy Flatlands physiographic subdivision is characteristically divided into an eastern and western portion. 
The eastern portion consists of nearly level, grassy areas interspersed with small ponds. The soils here are wet and 
sandy and are underpaid by limestone. Before drainage of the area, water stood on these soils for several months 
each year. The original vegetation was water tolerant grasses and a few cypress stands. In higher areas, pine and 
palmetto were common. The eastern portion of this area is also undergoing rapid urban development. The western 
portion of the sandy flatlands is a nearly level, generally treeless sawgrass plain. The soils are organic and overlie 
limestone. In many places the soils are shallow. Under natural conditions, water stood on these soils for months 
and only during extremely dry seasons was the surface exposed. Today, these soils have been drained, and water 
stands on the surface for very short periods. 
 
The southwestern portion of Palm Beach County is a part of the Everglades. The Everglades is a nearly level, 
generally treeless sawgrass plain. Generally, shallow organic soils that overlie limestone are common. 
 
The subject site lies within the Sandy Flatlands physiographic subdivision. 
 
Regional Hydrogeologic Characteristics 
 
Palm Beach County 
 
The surficial aquifer is the primary source of fresh water for Palm Beach County. A discontinuous zone of high 
secondary permeability in the surficial aquifer extends from the Juno Beach area south to Broward County. This 
formation represents the northernmost extension of the Biscayne Aquifer. This zone has been characterized as a 
calcareous sandstone or limestone with numerous solution cavities and was formed by varying dissolution of 
aquifer limestone materials during Pleistocene changes in sea level. The stratigraphy and lithology of this zone 
represent depositional and erosional cycles due to sea level changes during Pleistocene time. 
 
The surficial aquifer system of Palm Beach County has been classified into three major zones by Wesley L. Miller in 
Description and Evaluation of the Effects of Urban and Agricultural Development on the Surficial Aquifer System, 
Palm Beach County, Florida. Zone 1 is located in the eastern portion of the county and corresponds to the zone of 
high secondary permeability. The area defined as Zone 2 lies primarily in the northeastern section of the county 
and along the coast line. The western extent of Palm Beach County is dominated by Zone 3. 
 
Zone 1 is the most permeable part of the surficial aquifer system with transmissivities ranging from 1000 ft2/d along 
its flanks to 100,000 ft2/d along its axis. Miller defines the definitive characteristic of Zone 1 as including the 
presence of well developed solution cavities and fossiliferous limestones and calcareous sandstones generally 
coincident with Pliocene-Pleistocene reef tracts. During these eras, relatively permeable materials were deposited 
that contained large amounts of materials susceptible to solution. The deposition of these materials formed a 
topographic high in the area. When sea levels fell, subsequent to the Pleistocene era, the zone was periodically 
exposed above the water and dissolution of some of the materials began. This resulted in discontinuous areas of 
higher permeability, now generally classified as Zone 1. 
 
Zone 2 in this classification system is generally less permeable than Zone 1. Transmissivities in Zone 2 are 
somewhat lower than those in Zone 1, averaging approximately 5,360 ft2/D. Miller characterizes this zone by the 

200 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
11 

absence of solution cavities and by a composition of well sorted, poorly consolidated sands and shell. The 
predominant sand and shell lithology and the zone's locations suggest that the component was deposited in gaps 
on the Pleistocene reef tract or in beach type environments. Water action between the Atlantic Ocean and the 
Everglades during sea level fluctuations increases the sorting of the materials present in Zone 2 and therefore 
increased the permeability. The absence of well defined secondary porosities is attributed to the large proportion of 
quartz sand in this part of the aquifer system and the relatively brief time the materials have been exposed above 
sea level. 
 
Zone 3 is the least permeable part of the aquifer system. Transmissivity estimates are not available, however, 
hydraulic conductivities suggest transmissivities are very low throughout the zone. Miller characterizes Zone 3 as 
including poorly sorted to unsorted sediments with large amounts of clay sized particles and nearly impermeable 
marls at varying depths. The materials comprising this zone were deposited in low energy environments such as 
shallow seas, fresh water lakes, and marshes. This low lying area has not developed secondary porosities because 
of low groundwater gradients, low primary porosity and nearly impermeable marls which almost totally prevent 
infiltration of surface water in most of the area.  
 
The subject property falls within Zone 2 of this classification system. 
 
Groundwater Classification 
 
The Florida Department of Environmental Protection has classified groundwater in this area as G-II, potential 
potable water. G-II water is defined as groundwater which has a total dissolved solids content of less than 10,000 
milligrams per liter. 
 
Groundwater Elevation and Flow Direction 
 
The average regional groundwater flow direction is assumed to be to the east or southeast. Water production wells, 
surface water bodies, and other influences on site and/or in the immediate vicinity of the site may alter groundwater 
flow direction locally. 
 
Based on information provided by Environmental Data Resources, Inc. (EDR), the elevation of the subject site is 
reportedly 18 feet above sea level and groundwater flow is reportedly towards the south-southeast. 
 
Water Supply Production Wells 
 
The subject site is not mapped within the 1' draw-down contour of any public well field. The nearest public well field, 
the Palm Beach County North Well field, lies approximately six miles to the east of the subject site.  
 
Review of Soil Survey Maps 
 
The Soil Survey for Palm Beach County produced by the Soil Conservation District indicates the predominant 
surficial soils in the vicinity of the site belong to the following series: Riviera fine sand. 
 
The Riviera series consists of nearly level, poorly drained soils that have loamy subsoil. These soils are on broad, 
low areas. It should be noted that the maximum depth of the survey is six feet. 

201 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
12 

4.0  RECORDS REVIEW 
 
4.1  Review of Regulatory Agency Records 
 
NEF retained a subcontractor, Environmental Data Resources, Inc. (EDR), to provide specific federal, state and 
county (as available) regulatory records pertaining to the subject site and sites within an approximate minimum 
search distance of the subject site, in accordance with the requirements outlined in ASTM Practice E-1527-13 (and 
subject to record availability). The subcontractor report is reproduced in Appendix 9.2. Please see the attached 
report for details of the specific databases searched, descriptions of the information provided by each database and 
the dates the records were last updated. Information from the following databases was reviewed: 
 

Regulatory Agency Database Information 
Identifier Agency Name AMSD* 

NPL US EPA National Priority List Sites 1 Mile 
SPL FDEP State Funded Action Sites 1 Mile 
CORRACTS US EPA RCRA Corrective Action Facilities 1 Mile 
Delisted NPL US EPA Federal Delisted National Priority List Sites ½ Mile 
CERCLIS US EPA Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability 

Information System 
1/2 Mile 

NFRAP US EPA Former CERCLIS Sites 1/2 Mile 
SCL FDEP State Equivalent CERCLIS 1/2 Mile 
RCRA-TSD  US EPA  Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Index System List and 

Transport, Storage and Disposal Sites 
1/2 Mile 

SWLF FDEP Solid Waste Facilities List 1/2 Mile 
LUST FDEP Leaking Underground Storage Tanks 1/2 Mile 
Water Wells State/USGS Ground Water Site Inventory 1/2 Mile 
VCP FDEP/ County State and Tribal Voluntary Cleanup Sites 1/2  Mile 
BROWNFIELDS FDEP/ County State and Tribal Brownfield Sites 1/2  Mile 
RCRA-ENF US EPA RCRA Violators 1/4 Mile 
STI FDEP/ 

County 
Stationary Tank Inventory System 1/4 mile 

TRIS US EPA Toxic Release Inventory System 1/4 Mile 
GNRTR US EPA Large and Small Quantity Generators of Hazardous Waste 1/8 Mile 
SPILL US EPA SARA 304 Spills Database (Department of Community Affairs) 1/8 Mile 
RCRA US EPA RCRA –Small and Large Quantity Generators Site and 

Adjoining  
Indian UST, 
FEMA UST, 
FF Tanks 

FDEP/ 
County 

State and Tribal registered tanks registries Site and 
Adjoining 

ENG & INSTL 
Controls 

FDEP/ 
County 

State & Tribal Institutional Controls/Engineering Controls  Site and 
Adjoining  

US ENG Controls FDEP Federal Institutional Controls Registry Subject Site 
ERNS US EPA Emergency Response Notification System List Subject Site 
*AMSD- Approximate Minimum Search Distance, per ASTM Practice E-1527-13. 

 
NEF's review of the above listed regulatory agency records revealed a total of one site listing within the respective 
approximate minimum search distances. In addition the database radius search report identified a total of three 
sites listed as “orphan sites” (facilities that could not be mapped due to poor or inadequate address information). 
NEF reviewed the reported “orphan site” information and used available resources to more accurately determine 
the location of “orphan sites.” 
 
 

202 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
13 

NEF personnel contacted the file clerk of the Palm Beach County Department of Environmental Resources 
Management (ERM), Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Southeast District Office, Palm 
Beach County Health Department and Palm Beach County Solid Waste Authority (SWA) for information of potential 
concern regarding recognized environmental conditions on the subject parcel and specific facilities listed in 
regulatory databases located in close proximity to the subject site. Based on a review of certain information for 
these sites, NEF concluded the following:  
 
Given the substantial distances of the listed facilities from the subject site, our understanding of the predominant 
regional direction of groundwater flow, and the apparent absence of information indicating a contaminant 
groundwater plume in the vicinity of the subject parcel (in the data reviewed), it is NEF's opinion that there is a low 
likelihood these facilities have created recognized environmental conditions on the subject property or the shallow 
portion of the aquifer beneath the subject property. 
 
4.2  Vapor Intrusion and Migration 

 
In the apparent absence of evidence found in this study of a release of hazardous substances and/or petroleum 
products on the subject property or at an adjoining or nearby property, no vapor intrusion or vapor migration 
concerns were identified as part of this Phase I Site Assessment Report.  

 
4.3  Historical Use Information 
 
NEF personnel performed historical research to interpret past land uses which could potentially create current 
recognized environmental conditions on the subject parcel. As a standard part of the Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment scope of work, NEF personnel obtained available topographic maps, fire insurance maps, aerial 
photographs, and any other readily accessible information in an effort to develop information on the historical use of 
the subject property and surrounding areas, back to the property’s obvious first developed use as required by the 
AAI rule. Additionally, NEF attempted to interview individuals historically associated with the site, reviewed Chain of 
Title information (when made available by the client), reviewed historical city directories, and reviewed building 
department records (as available and applicable to our evaluation of the site). The content and span of the 
historical investigation was limited by the content of records and coverage. Summaries of the sources that were 
reasonably ascertainable during the course of the investigation are presented below in chronological order. Please 
see section 2.4 of this report for further information regarding the limitations of the historical evaluation. 
Reproductions of selected historical sources are included in Appendix 9.1. 
 
Current Ownership of the Site 
 
The current owner of the site is reportedly Palm Beach County. 
 
Prior Ownership of the Site 
 
Complete chain of ownership information was not provided by the client for NEF to review. Given the available 
aerial photographs, property tax files, USGS Topographic Maps, Local Street Directories, Building Department 
Records, Zoning/Land Use Records as well as NEF’s past experience with Recorded Land Title Records (Chain of 
Title Records) it is NEF’s opinion that this source is “not likely to be sufficiently useful”. Given the above, it is NEF’s 
opinion this data gap is not considered a “significant data gap.” 
 
 

203 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
14 

Environmental Cleanup Liens 
 
Mr. Wayne Burns of Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce (property owner representative) and Mr. 
William Underwood of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves (client representative) stated that they were unaware of 
any environmental cleanup liens being filed or recorded under federal, tribal, state or local law against the subject 
property. However, the client was unable to provide NEF with a title search or title statement regarding the 
presence of environmental liens that have been recorded against the subject property. The client should be aware 
that the ASTM 1527-13 Practice states the following: “this practice does not impose on the environmental 
professional the responsibility to undertake a review of recorded land title records and judicial records for 
environmental liens or activity and use limitations.” In the absence of the review of recorded land title records and 
lien records NEF has to conclude that “all appropriate inquiry” may not be complete for this Phase I Environmental 
Site Assessment. However, the subject site is not listed in the Federal Institutional or Engineering Controls Sites 
List or the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Institutional Controls Registry. Additionally 
FDEP and the Palm Beach County Department of Environmental Resources Management (ERM) did not have 
relevant files on the subject site indicating a release of hazardous materials and/or petroleum products at the 
subject site. In view of absence of apparent FDEP and ERM records indicating a release of hazardous substances 
on the subject site and the management of these releases through the use of AULs, it appears that there is a low 
potential for environmental liens or activity and use limitations as a result of contaminant concerns have been filed 
for the subject property. 
 
Recorded Institutional or Engineering Controls 
 
Records of institutional or engineering controls were noted for the subject property in the information provided by 
the client or in available records reviewed by NEF.  Mr. William Underwood of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, 
the client, stated that the subject site “is currently a park and will be restricted to public use upon purchase with 
Palm Beach County retaining 75% of mineral rights.”  
 
Topographic Maps 
 
Topographic Map Dated 1983 
Source: USGS – No Scale 
Description: The subject site and surrounding parcels were mapped as vacant land. Southern Boulevard was 
mapped beyond vacant land to the south of the subject site with a canal beyond. 
  
Aerial Photographs 
 
Aerial Photographs Dated between 1953 
Source: University of Florida George A. Smathers Libraries – No Scale 
Description: The subject site and surrounding properties were visibly vacant land. An unimproved road was visible 
beyond vacant land to the south of the subject site with a canal beyond. An unimproved road was visible to the east 
of the subject site with what appeared to be a residential building beyond. Interpretation was subjective due to the 
low quality of these aerial photographs. Please refer to Appendix 9.1 for a copy of a portion of the 1953 aerial 
photograph. 
 
Aerial Photographs Dated between 1968 and 1987 
Source: Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) and Palm Beach County Engineering – No Scale 
Description: The subject site was visibly vacant land. Southern Boulevard was visible beyond vacant land to the 
south of the subject site with a canal beyond. An unimproved road was visible to the east of the subject site with 
what appeared to be a residential building beyond. Please refer to Appendix 9.1 for a copy of a portion of the 1968, 

204 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
15 

1969, 1973, 1975, 1978, 1984, 1986, and 1987 aerial photographs. 
 
Aerial Photograph Dated 1989 and 1991 
Source: FDOT and Palm Beach County Engineering – No Scale 
Description: The subject site and surrounding parcels were visibly similar to the previous aerial photographs with 
the following exceptions: The expansion of Southern Boulevard was visible to the south of the subject site. 
Construction of F Road was visible to the east of the subject site. Please refer to Appendix 9.1 for a copy of a 
portion of the 1989 and 1991 aerial photographs. 
 
Aerial Photographs Dated 1995 and 2000 
Source: Palm Beach County Engineering – No Scale 
Description: The subject site and surrounding parcels were visibly similar to the previous aerial photographs with 
the following exceptions: A small building was visible on the subject site. Please refer to Appendix 9.1 for a copy of 
a portion of the 1995 and 2000 aerial photographs. 
 
Aerial Photograph Dated between 2005 and 2009 
Source: Palm Beach County Property Appraiser – No Scale 
Description: The subject site and surrounding parcels were visibly similar to the previous aerial photographs with 
the following exceptions: F Road was visible to the east of the subject site. Walking trails were visible to the west of 
the subject site. Please refer to Appendix 9.1 for a copy of a portion of the 2005, 2008, and 2009 aerial 
photographs. 
 
Aerial Photograph Dated 2013 
Source: Palm Beach County Property Appraiser – No Scale 
Description: The subject site and surrounding parcels were visibly similar to the previous aerial photographs with 
the following exceptions: The existing building and asphalt paved parking lot were visible on the subject site. 
Construction of a commercial building was visible to the east of the subject site beyond F Road. Please refer to 
Appendix 9.1 for a copy of a portion of the 2013 aerial photograph. 
 
City Directory Research 
 
NEF personnel reviewed certain Polk City Directories, Bresser's Indices, or City Publishing Company Cross 
Reference Directories as far back in time as was feasible for the subject site and specific properties in the vicinity. 
During the review, occupants of the subject site as listed in the directories were noted. Non-residential facilities 
near the subject property were also noted. A limited historical picture of the occupancy of the subject site and 
vicinity can be determined by this method. However, the method is limited by the accuracy and completeness of the 
listings and because telephone connections to the property must be in place for the name of the occupant to be 
listed. A summary of the historical city directory research follows: 
   
Year(s)   Address   Listing(s) 
 
Prior to 1991  13901 Southern Boulevard No listings 
 
1991 – 2004  13901 Southern Boulevard Chamber of Commerce for  
        Acreage 
        Loxahatchee 
        Palms West 
        Wellington 
        Western Tourist Alliance  

205 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
16 

 
2005 – 2010  13901 Southern Boulevard Palms West Chamber of Commerce 
 
2011 – 2013  13901 Southern Boulevard No listings 
 
Fire Insurance Maps and Local Fire Department 
 
Fire Insurance maps were not available for the area of the subject property at the time of this Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment. 
 
NEF personnel attempted to review records for the address of the subject property archived at the City of 
Loxahatchee Groves Fire Department; no records were available for review for the address of the subject property. 

 
Building Department Records 
 
NEF personnel attempted to review records for the address of the subject property archived at the City of 
Loxahatchee Groves Building Department; however no records were available for review for the address of the 
subject property during the course of this investigation. Given the use of the subject property, the construction date 
of the existing building, owner/operator  interviews and the absence of environmental concerns and/or recognized 
environmental conditions noted as part of NEF’s site inspection, it is NEF’s opinion this data gap is not considered 
a “significant data gap.” 
 
Commercial Building Card Records 
 
In order to determine the construction date of the buildings located on the subject property, NEF attempted to 
research historical commercial building card records on file with the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser’s 
Office. A building card record for 13751 (PCN # 41-41-43-17-01-906-0040) indicated that a Clubhouse was 
constructed on the subject site in 1987 and an office building was constructed on the subject site in 2010. Please 
refer to Appendix 9.1 for a copy of the historical building card records for the subject site. 
 
4.4  Historical Development and Uses 

 
Based on a review of the information collected in this investigation, it is NEF’s understanding the subject property 
was historically vacant prior to 1953 until the late 1980's/early 1990's when a clubhouse building was constructed 
on the subject site. The clubhouse building was demolished and the existing office building was constructed in 
2010. The subject site has been occupied by the Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce from the early 1990's 
to the present date.  
 
4.5  Historical Development and Uses of Adjoining Properties 

 
Vacant land was historically located to the north of the subject site prior to 1953. An unimproved road with two 
residential structures was visible beyond vacant land by the late 1960’s. East Citrus Drive was constructed north of 
the subject site beyond vacant land in the early 1990s. The land north of the subject site now functions as 
Loxahatchee Groves Park. 
 
An unimproved road with vacant land beyond was historically located east of the subject site prior to 1953. A 
residential structure was visible beyond the unimproved road by the late 1960’s. F Road was constructed to the 
east of the subject site in the early 1990’s. The land to the east of the subject site remained relatively unchanged 

206 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
17 

until the early 2010s when an office building was constructed beyond F Road.  
 
An improved road with a canal beyond was historically located south of the subject site. Southern Boulevard was 
constructed beyond vacant land to the south of the subject site by the late 1960’s. In the late 1980’s to early 1990’s, 
Southern Boulevard was expanded. The land to the south of the subject site has remained relatively unchanged to 
the present day. 
 
Vacant land was historically located west of the subject site prior to 1953. The land to the west of the subject site 
remained vacant until the early to mid 2000’s when walking trails were constructed. The land west of the subject 
site now functions as Loxahatchee Groves Park.  
 

207 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
18 

5.0  Owner and User Provided Information 
 
5.1  Information Reported by the Past and Present Owners and Occupants 
 
NEF conducted interviews with individuals who claimed familiarity with the subject property. Dates and times of the 
interviews, the interview questionnaire, and information obtained during the interviews are reproduced in Appendix 
9.4. 
 
Please note that "Owner Representative" refers to the individual identified to NEF by the client as the property 
owner or authorized representative. "Operator Representative" refers to the current occupant representative or 
manager, if any, of the subject parcel. A summary of NEF's interview findings follows: 
 
Current Owner and Operator Representative: 
 
No evidence of a release or threatened release of hazardous substances was noted during NEF's discussions with 
Mr. Wayne Burns of Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce, owner representative. 
 
Historic Owner(s) and Operator(s) Representative: 
 
No contact information regarding previous owners or operators of the subject property was available to NEF during 
the course of this investigation, therefore no historic owner and operator representatives were interviewed as part 
of this investigation. 
 
5.2  Information Reported by the User 
 
NEF conducted an interview with the user of this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment. Dates and times of the 
interview, the user questionnaire, and information obtained during the interview are reproduced in Appendix 9.4. 
 
ASTM E 1527-13 Practice defines “user” as “the party seeking to use Practice E 1527-13 to complete an 
environmental site assessment of the property. A user may include, without limitation, a potential purchaser of 
property, a potential tenant of property, an owner of property, a lender, or a property manager.” 
 
 Environmental Cleanup Liens 
 
Mr. William Underwood of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves (the client) stated that he was unaware of any 
environmental cleanup liens being filed or recorded under federal, tribal, state or local law against the subject 
property. 
 
 Recorded Institutional or Engineering Controls 
 
Mr. Underwood stated that he was aware of any institutional or engineering controls are in place, have been filed or 
recorded in a registry under federal, tribal, state or local law against the subject property. Mr. Underwood stated 
that the subject site “is currently a park and will be restricted to public use upon purchase with Palm Beach County 
retaining 75% of mineral rights.” 
 
 
 

208 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
19 

 Specialized Knowledge or Experience 
 
Mr. Underwood stated that he had no specialized knowledge or experience, related to the property or nearby 
properties with the respect to the chemicals and processes used by this type of business. 
 
 Relationship of Purchase Price and Market Value 
 
Mr. Underwood stated that the purchase price being paid for the property reflects the fair market value of the 
property. 
 
 Commonly Known or Reasonable Ascertainable Information 
 
Mr. Underwood stated that he was not aware of commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information about 
the property that indicates the release or threatened release of hazardous substances and/or petroleum products to 
the subject site. 
 
 Obviousness of the Presence or likely Presence of Contamination 
 
Mr. Underwood stated that based on his knowledge and experience there are no obvious indicators that point to the 
presence or likely presence of contamination at the property. 
 
5.3  Prior Environmental Reports 

 
No prior environmental reports were provided to NEF by the client. 
 

209 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 
City, Palm Beach County, FL 33312 
NEF # 7411.1 
February 2015 
 

 

  
20 

6.0  FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 
 
6.1  Findings 

 
De Minimis Conditions 
 

 Several floor drains were observed in the bathrooms on the subject site.  Given the absence of hazardous 
materials and/or petroleum products at this facility, and the connection to the sanitary sewer system, it is 
NEF’s opinion that these floor drains represent a “de minimis” condition to the subject site at this time. 
 

Historical Recognized Environmental Conditions 
 

 Historical Recognized Environmental Conditions were not identified during the course of this Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment. 

 
Controlled Recognized Environmental Conditions 
 

 Controlled Recognized Environmental Conditions were not identified during the course of this Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment. 

 
Recognized Environmental Conditions 
 

 Recognized Environmental Conditions were not identified during the course of this Phase I Environmental 
Site Assessment. 

 
Data Gaps 
 

 Data gaps were not identified during the course of this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment. 
  

6.2 Conclusions 
 
We have performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment in conformance with the scope and limitations of 
ASTM Practice E-1527 of the Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce building located at 13901 
Southern Boulevard in Loxahatchee Groves, Palm Beach County, Florida, the subject property. Any exceptions to, 
or deletions from, this practice are described in Section 2.0 of this report. This assessment has revealed no 
evidence of recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property.  

210 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



211 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

8.0  QUALIFICATIONS OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS 
 
Please see the attached information regarding the qualifications of the professionals performing the assessment. For 
further information regarding our company’s qualifications, please visit http://www.nuttingengineers.com/ or contact 
the undersigned at your convenience. 
 

212 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 
FORMAL EDUCATION 
 
Florida Atlantic University, 
Boca Raton, Florida 
   - Bachelor of Science, 

Electrical Engineering 
 
   - Bachelor of Science, 

Ocean Engineering 
 
   -Bachelor of Science,    

Biological Science 
 
PROFESSIONAL 
REGISTRATIONS 
 
Registered Engineer- 
State of Florida #42604 
 
Florida Water Well 
Contractor #11108 
 
OSHA Health & Safety 
Training for Hazardous 
Waste Sites 
 
PROFESSIONAL 
AFFILIATIONS 
 
Florida Engineering Society- 
Broward Chapter 
 
 
REFERENCES 

 
Mr. Bill Tripoldi 
The Related Group 
2750 S. Ocean Boulevard 
Hollywood, Florida  
p. 954.924.2429 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
Mr. Iossi’s twenty-eight years of experience includes engineering, consulting 
and management for environmental, geotechnical, geologic and hydrogeological 
studies; construction inspection and materials testing; and special projects.   
 
Mr. Iossi has successfully completed several thousands of environmental 
projects ranging from 3 days to six years in duration with budgets ranging from 
$500 to an excess of $1 million governing groundwater protection. Mr. Iossi 
currently supervises/ directs activities (along with Mr. Jan Beernink, Vice 
President) performed by Nutting Environmental of Florida, Inc. environmental 
staff members in the areas of Environmental Property Assessments (Phase I/ 
II), storage tank compliance and investigations, preparation of Contamination 
Assessments Reports and Remedial Action Plans, execution of remedial 
programs, environmental well design and installations, and indoor air quality 
investigations.  As President of the firm, Mr. Iossi takes an active role in ALL 
environmental projects and has overall responsibility of our in-house quality 
assurance program. 
 
Project types include airports, auditoriums, bridges, commercial buildings, 
marinas, high rise towers, historical structures, hospitals, hotels, industrial 
plants, retention structures, railroad structures, roadways, schools and other 
buildings, shopping centers, television towers, water and waste water treatment 
plant parcels.  Mr. Iossi is experienced with asphaltic concrete, portland cement 
concrete, structural steel, soils and other construction materials.   
 
Investigation and studies include sound and lighting surveys, site development 
feasibility, foundations for structures, evaluation of building and earthwork 
failures and remedial methods, load carrying capacity of piles and drilled piers 
and structural members, ground improvement methods, groundwater 
contamination and remediation, pre-purchase environmental assessments, 
seismological evaluations and sinkhole studies.   
 
PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
 
 Numerous School Sites for Miami-Dade & Broward County School Districts 
 The Capri, Fort Lauderdale 
 South Broward Drainage District Maintenance Dredging, Broward County 
 Independence Park, Deerfield Beach 
 Mixed Use Development, Boca Raton 
 Summerwood Park, Wellington 
 Saddle Shoppes, Wellington 
 

Mr. Richard Iossi, PE
Principal/ President

213 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
FORMAL EDUCATION 
 
De Vrije Universiteit 
Amsterdam, Netherlands 
   - Masters of Science,       

Environmental Science/ 
Chemistry 

 
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
OSHA Health & Safety 
Training for Hazardous Waste 
Sites 
 
American Red Cross First Aid 
and CPR training 
 
REFERENCES 
 
Mr. Joe Goss 
IDI Florida Office 
515 East Las Olas Boulevard 
Suite #950 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 
p. 954.678.2104       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
Mr. Beernink serves as the Vice President for Nutting Environmental of Florida, Inc. 
As Vice President he has overall responsibility for the completion of the project 
objectives.  Mr. Beernink prepares proposals, directs and trains all technical field staff 
and project managers, and is responsible for final review of technical progress and 
completion reports on all projects.  He also serves as the liaison between regulatory 
agency members, client representatives and assigned staff members.  
 
As Senior Project Manager, Mr. Beernink’s responsibilities include performance of 
Phase I and Phase II environmental property assessment investigations and 
contamination assessment reports, remedial action plans, tank closure assessments, 
and dewatering plan preparation for dewatering projects involving contaminant 
concerns on or near the dewatering project. 
 
Mr. Beernink performs tasks related to investigations of industrial, commercial, 
agricultural and other facilities. Mr. Beernink is fully knowledgeable with site 
inspection procedures, regulatory file research, physiographic map interpretation 
(well field protection and geologic cross section). He is experienced with field 
sampling protocols for soil, groundwater and surface water, soil 
formation/classification and Florida hydrogeology. 
 

Mr. Jan Beernink, Vice President
Senior Environmental Project Manager 

214 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 
FORMAL EDUCATION 
 
Florida Atlantic University 
Boca Raton, FL  
   - B.S. Biological Science       
 
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
40-hour OSHA Health & Safety 
Training for Hazardous Waste 
Sites 
 
1st Aid/CPR Training 
 
PROFESSIONAL  
AFFILIATIONS 
 
Indoor Air Quality Association 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
Ms. Campos serves as a senior project manager for Nutting Environmental of 
Florida, Inc. Ms. Campos prepares proposals, directs and trains all technical 
field staff and project managers, and is responsible for review of technical 
reports. She also serves as the liaison between regulatory agency members, 
client representatives and assigned staff members. 
 
As Senior Project Manager, Ms. Campos’ responsibilities include 
performance of Phase I and Phase II Environmental Property Assessment 
Investigations and Contamination Assessment Reports, UST management 
and removal, Tank Closure Assessments, and Groundwater Monitoring 
Reports. 
 
Ms. Campos is fully knowledgeable with site inspection procedures, 
regulatory file research, physiographic map interpretation (well field 
protection and geologic cross section). Experienced with field sampling 
protocols for soil, groundwater and surface water, soil formation/classification 
& Florida hydrogeology. 
 
PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
 
 Various car dealership properties, Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm 

Beach Counties  

 Various gas stations, Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach 
Counties  

 Former industrial manufacturing warehouse, Palm Beach County  

 Salvage and towing yard, Broward County 

 Various school properties, Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach 
Counties 

 Various drycleaning facilities, Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm 
Beach Counties   

 Cattle Ranch, 270 acre parcel, Broward County 

 Former fill mining facility, 268 acre parcel, Broward County  

Kristen Campos
Senior Project Manager

215 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
FORMAL EDUCATION 

High School Graduate 
 
Post Graduate Engineer 
 
AA Degrees – General 
Education – PBCC – Lake 
Worth, Florida 
 
REGISTRATIONS 
 
OSHA Health & Safety 
Training for Hazardous Waste 
Sites 
 
First Aid/CPR Training 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
Mr. Ruiz serves as Environmental Specialist for Nutting Environmental of 
Florida, Inc.  His responsibilities include monitoring well and piezometer 
installation and completion, groundwater and surface water sampling and in-situ 
testing, underground storage tank closure assessments and compliance testing, 
geologic sampling of subsurface lithologies, installation of product recovery 
systems and acquisition of field data for the preparation of contamination 
assessment reports and remedial action plans. 
 
Mr. Ruiz has thirteen years of professional experience that include the 
performance of deep and shallow subsurface explorations of soil and rock on 
both land and water.  His experience includes many drainage percolation tests 
performed by South Florida Water Management District methods and 
installations of monitoring wells.  Mr. Ruiz is knowledgeable of geologic 
conditions in South Florida and provides significant input for subsurface 
investigations.  He has installed hundreds of groundwater monitoring wells in 
Florida and is OSHA certified for safety at hazardous materials sites.   
 
Mr. Ruiz’s experience in the industry has given him exposure to hundreds of 
projects and all project types including parks, roadways, industrial and 
commercial buildings, hospitals and medical office facilities. 
 
Some of his previous projects include numerous school projects for Broward and 
Miami-Dade School Districts, many parks throughout Palm Beach, Broward, 
Miami-Dade and the Treasure Coast, the West Broward Library, City of 
Miramar Town Center and Pembroke Pines Memorial Hospital.  He has worked 
on many roadway and drainage improvements projects throughout Florida. 
 
Additional projects, specifically involving sampling, are: 
 Ives Estates Park (Former Ojus Landfill), Miami Dade 
 Former Service Station, Delray Beach 
 Marina Mile Park of Commerce, Dania 
 Various Sites- Broward and Miami Dade Schools 

 
 

Mr. Tony Ruiz
Environmental Specialist, Drilling and Sampling Technician

216 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

FORMAL EDUCATION 
 
University of Florida  
Gainesville, Florida 
   - Bachelors of Science,        

Chemical Engineering 
  
Queensland University of 
Technology, College of Built 
Environment and Engineering 
Brisbane, Australia 

- Semester of studies abroad  
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
40-hour OSHA Health & Safety 
Training for Hazardous Waste 
Sites 
 
Safety and Chemical 
Engineering Education (SAChE) 
Certifications: 
- Safety in Chemical Process 
Industries 
- Runaway Reactions 
- Risk Assessments 
- Inherently Safer Design 
- Dust Explosion Control 
 
PROFESSIONAL 
AFFILIATIONS 
 
Florida Engineering Society 
   - Broward County Chapter 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Mr. Buchko serves as a project manager and research specialist for Nutting 
Environmental of Florida, Inc. Responsibilities include performance of Phase I 
and Phase II Environmental Property Assessment Investigations throughout 
Florida.  
 
Mr. Buchko is knowledgeable with site inspection procedures, regulatory file 
research, physiographic map interpretation (well field protection and geologic 
cross section). He is experienced with field sampling protocols for soil, 
groundwater and surface water, soil formation/classification and Florida 
hydrogeology. Mr. Buchko has experience with tank closure assessments, 
contamination assessments, remedial actions, UST management and removal, 
development of pollution prevention systems management and faculty 
modifications, development of training programs and other environmental 
projects. 
 
During the course of his college education Mr. Buchko studied in Brisbane, 
Australia. While there, he successfully led a group of fellow engineers in an 
‘Engineers Without Borders’ challenge to design a water collection and sanitation 
system for the Kooma nation, mindful of the spiritual beliefs of this rural 
Aboriginal community.  
 
PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

• Numerous retail properties, Broward County 

• ~0.5 acre parcel developed with an existing homeless shelter, Broward 
County 

• ~0.25 acre parcel developed with a warehouse, Palm Beach County 

• ~5.9 acre parcel developed with an existing yacht center and dry dock,  
Broward County 

• ~4.4 acre parcel developed with an unoccupied office/warehouse building, 
Broward County 

• ~1.0 acre with four vacant parcels previously occupied by residential and 
hotel buildings, Broward County 

• ~0.25 acre developed with a one-story commercial building with a history 
of previous auto mechanic facilities and service stations, Broward County  

• ~1.75 vacant undeveloped parcel, Broward County 

• Seaport parcel, Broward County 

• ~0.4 acre parcel with an existing one-story office building, Broward County 

• ~9.0 acre parcel with existing car dealership, Broward County 

Mr. Matthew Buchko 
Project Manager 

217 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
FORMAL EDUCATION 
 
Florida Golf Coast University 
Fort Myers, Florida 
      - Bachelors of Arts  
        Environmental Studies 
      - Minor in Interdisciplinary 
        Studies 
      - Minor in Biology 
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
40-hour OSHA Health & Safety 
Training for Hazardous Waste 
Sites 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
Mr. Illsley serves as Environmental Scientist and Field Sampling Technician for 
Nutting Environmental of Florida, Inc. Joining the team in September 2014, his 
responsibilities include monitoring well and piezometer installation and completion, 
groundwater and surface water sampling and in-situ testing, underground storage 
tank closure assessments and compliance testing, geologic sampling of subsurface 
lithologies, installation of product recovery systems and acquisition of field data for 
the preparation of contamination assessment reports and remedial action plans. 
 
Mr. Illsey’s previous experience and volunteer work includes an internship at 
Koreshan State Park removing exotic species from park property, volunteering at 
Corkscrew Regional Ecosystem Watershed (CREW) in Lee County with 
educational field trips for elementary school children, and volunteering with the 
Aquatic Systems Mosquito Education program through Florida Gulf Coast 
University and Lee County schools.   
 
PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

 
• Nursing home generator, Broward County 
• Seaport site, Broward County 

Mr. Richard Illsley 
Environmental Scientist, Field Sampling Technician 

218 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

9.0  APPENDICES 
 

219 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

9.1  Site Photographs and Documents 
 

220 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FIG.1 
 

Site Location 
Map 

 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

Approximate Scale 1” = 80’ 

0’                          80’                    160’ Property Boundaries 
 

221 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

View from southwest corner of subject site. 

View facing north from southwest corner. 

222 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

View facing east from southwest corner of subject site. 

View facing south from northwest corner. 

223 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

View facing east from northwest corner of subject site. 

Storm drain located on north side of building on subject site. 

224 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

 
Sanitary sewer manhole located on north side of building. 

 

225 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

View facing west from northeast corner of subject site. 

Dumpster area on northeast corner of subject site. 

226 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

View from northeast corner of subject site. 

View facing south from northeast corner. 

227 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

View facing north from southeast corner of subject site. 

View from southeast corner. 

228 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

View facing west from southeast corner of subject site. 

Interior view of lobby. 

229 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

Interior view of conference room. 

Storage closet. 

230 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

 
Site Photographs 

Typical office noted throughout the building. 

Electrical room. 

231 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
USGS Quadrangle 

 

Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

Subject Site 

232 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1953 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

233 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1968 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

234 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1969 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

235 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1973 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

236 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1975 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

237 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1978 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

238 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1984 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

239 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1986 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

240 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1987 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

241 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1989 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

242 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1991 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

Subject Site 

243 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

1995 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

244 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

2000 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

245 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

2005 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

246 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

2008 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

247 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

2009 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

248 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central PBC Chamber of Commerce Building 
13901 Southern Boulevard 

Loxahatchee, FL 
NEF #: 7411.1 

2013 
 Aerial Photograph 

(not to scale) 

249 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



l

l

M
IL

IT
A

R Y

FL
O

R
ID

A
S

BEE LINE

PGA

SOUTHERN

IN
TE

R
ST

A T
E 

95

D
I X

I E

10TH

INDIANTOWN

NORTHLAKE

OKEECHOBEE

45TH

H
AV

ER
H

IL
L

FOREST HILL

O
LI

VE

K
IR

K

BELVEDERE

C
O

N
G

R
ES

S

SUMMIT

JO
G

O
LD

 D
IX

I E

US HIG
HW

AY 1

A
U

ST
R

A
LI

A
N

HOOD

C
O

C
O

N
U

T

O
C

EA
N

ORANGE

FE
D

ER
AL

60TH

ST
AT

E 
R

O
A

D
 7

TEMPLE

SE
M

IN
O

L E
 P

R
AT

T 
W

H
I T

N
EY

FL
A

G
LE

R

PA
R

K
E R

H
A

LL

RCA

VI
LL

A
G

E

2ND

PURDY

BLUE HERON14
0T

H

C
E N

T R
A

L

I S
LA

N
D

GUN CLUB

B
R

O
A

D
W

AY

R
O

Y A
L  

P A
L M

 B
EA

C
H

DONALD ROSS

D
AV

I S

LY
O

N
S

PIERSON

BURNS

BIG BLUE

CENTER

C
R

ESTW
O

O
D

PR
O

S P
E R

I T
Y  

F A
R

M
S

36TH

PR
AT

T 
W

H
IT

N
EY

LAKE WORTH

G
A

R
D

EN

G
E O

R
G

IA

HOLLY

7TH

SYCAMORE

PI
N

EH
U

R
ST

A
L E

X A
N

D
E R

W
ELLING

TON

PI
K

E

TA
M

A
R

IN
D

L A
K

E

SOUTH SHORE

RY
D

ER
 C

U
P

BEACH

57
TH

TONEY PENNA

12
0T

H

PALM BEACH LAKES

SK
EE

S

AERO
 CLUB

ROEBUCK

SA
N

SB
U

RY
'S

J U
P I

T E
R

 F
A

R
M

S

40TH

PADDOCK

CRESTHAVEN

EL
LI

SO
N

 W
IL

SO
N

C
O

U
N

TY

TEQUESTA

PARK

LIGHTHOUSE

WESTGATE

GREENBRIAR

FLAMINGO

SILVER BEACH

A

D
R

E X
EL

B
EN

O
IS

T 
FA

R
M

S

SH
ER

W
O

O
D

 F
O

R
ES

T

LO
XA

H
ATC

H
EE R

IVER

G
REENVIEW

 SHO
RES

C
O

C
O

A
N

U
T

13TH

FREDERICK SMALL

BANYAN

M
ER

C
ER

AV
O

C
A

D
O

G
R

E E
N

W
A Y

PARKSIDE

H
EI

G
H

TS

DYER

LAKEVIEW

AL
T A

1A

25TH

PA
LM

W
O

O
D

SHILOH

LAKEWOOD

LUCERNE

COMMUNITY

CUMBERLAND

ALEMEDA

DR MARTIN LUTHER KING JR

LI
O

N
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
SA

FA
R

I

BINKS FOREST

FAIRGROUNDS

SE
A

B
R

O
O

K

INDIAN CREEK

22ND

B
O

U
TW

ELL

WORTH

FA
IR

LA
N

E 
FA

R
M

S

INLET

GREENBRIER

BOWMAN

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

B
R

A
D

LE
Y

FL
O

R
ID

A 
M

A
N

G
O

SHENANDOAH

M
A

C
A

R
TH

U
R

ELMHURST

SPENCER

BAMBOO

WATERTOWER

LOFTIN

150

W
A

B
A

SS
O

C
H

U
R

C
H

LA
K

E
O

C
EA

N

A

FL
O

R
I D

A 
M

A
N

G
O

O
CEAN

FL
O

R
ID

A
S

C
O

N
G

R
ES

S

INTERSTATE 95

10TH

LAKE WORTH

PARK

C
EN

TR
A

L

FE
D

ER
A

L

JO
G

ROEBUCK

O
LD DIXIE

A

O
LD DIXIE

O
C

EA
N

O
CEAN

D
AV

IS

PARK

JOG

PARK

ALT A1A

404201

434030

414205404203 404202

404212

434031

434128

404224

404213

424109

414204

404312

414230

404313

424204

404225

434205
424203

414305

434206

404136

404324

424202
424205

424419 424421

404325

414416

424201

414229

424219

434410

424231

414423

404323

434317

434106

434329

414421

414315

424423

414409

424420

424118

424416

434415

434328

424207

424418

424230

424208

414206

414414

424312

414117

424102

404314

414116

424327

424417

424409

424317424318

414210

424422

434330

424108

424101

404126

424325

424403

414223

424410

414121

414228

424218

414323

424117

414417

424110

424326

404135

424026

424328

414420

424116

424301

434131

414422

424111

424304

404123

414220

424305

414114

424313

414304

424104

414326

414415

404311 424308

424413 434418

424320

404336

404127

424136

434417

414108

434215

414408

434220

404134

414113

404310

424414

414125

414216

434210

414311

404122

424105

424407

434232

414413

414301

434403

404326

414224

424309

424404

434420

414314

404322

414235

424112

424336

434422

424323

434308

434133

434408

414310

414109

424415

434231

404124

424329

404125

424106

414213

424335

434316

424406

434419

434332

424303

434222

424401

434208

424408

414234

424405

414208

434406

424424

434219

424324

414212

414424

424220

414308 414312

424412

414325

434129

414336

424107

414309

434405

434331

414411

434130

424310

414203

434119

414221

414217
424217

404215

424228

424314

414101

434333

424210

414219

414236

434407

424215

414316

424236

434320

424307

424119

424233

424229

414410

434118

414303

414124

424221

404315

434334

424306

434207

424035

424334

434327

434107

414232

414335

424302

414031

424311

414120

414202

434120

414136

424232

404222

404227

424027

434218

414102

434204

424227

424124

424322

404035

404210

404234

434217

414412

424333

434409

414307

414112

424212

404115

434404

434117

434309

424216

414123

424031

424332

414105

404211

424225

414104

414033

424209

404113

424222

424211

424223

414201

414032

424103

404036

414126

424032

414329

404223
424224

434132

404034 424034

434230

424033

404114

404110

414320 414324

414306

414322

424234

414302

404403

414222

424125

424135

424213

414227

434322

414313

404111

414036

424321

404101

424123

424226

404214

404102

404402

414225

414035

414215

404112

404335

414317

404327

404401

424214

414327

404423

404334
424331

424316

404424

404411

404422

404410

424235

404414

424402

424130

404103

404412

404413

414328

404415

404226

414111

424113

434234

424411

434305

434229

424036

424114

434306

414321

414334

424206

414128

434319
424319

424315

424131

434221

414106

434321

434233

434227

424126

414211

404236

424121

434318

414233

424132

414333

424330

424134

424115

434416

424025

414231

434303

434421

434310

414132
424133

414332

414318

414214

414226

424122

414135

434228

414319

424129

414110

404301

414115

434307

434304

414107

434315

424120

414103

414133

404235

434216

414034

414218

414129 414127

414209

414134

414118

414331

414330

414130

434108

414119
414122

424128 424127

434209414207

414407

414418

404133

404302

414419

404109

404121

404128

404116

404104

414131

404033

404303

434121

434203

434105

414404
414401414402414403414405

434323

434335

434423

434314

434414

434326

414406

434411

434311

434402

434302

404204

434032

434116

434235

434226

404233

404228

434214

404221

404216

434223

404209

434134

414429

404309

404316

414428

404321

414430

434109

414427

404304

404328

414426

404404

404333

404409

414425 424430 424429 424428404425 424427404426404427 424426 424425

404416

404421

4043L3 4043L2

434429404428

4043L4 4043L1

434428

T40S

T41S

T42S

T43S

R43E

R42ER41E

Wellfield Protection Zones of Influence in 
Northeastern Palm Beach County, Florida

R40E

Palm Beach County 
Department of Environmental 

Resources Management

µPalm Beach County
North County Wellfields

Map Legend

Range Township Section

0 0.6 1.2 1.8 2.40.3
Miles

424222

Martin County

County Boundary

County Boundary

1

2

3

4

Zones

"This data is provided "as is" without warranty 
or any representation of accuracy,timeliness

or completeness.The burden for determining accuracy,
 completeness, timeliness, merchantability 

and fitness for or the appropriateness for use 
rests solely on the requester. The County makes 

no warranties, express or implied, as to the 
use of the data.  There are no implied warranties

 of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 
The requester  acknowledges and accepts the 

limitations of the data, including the fact that the 
data is dynamic and is in a constant state of maintenance, 

correction and update."
Adoption Date: May 16, 2006

250 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



251 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



252 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



253 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



254 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



255 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



256 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

9.2  Regulatory Agency Database Search Results 
 
Federal, State and County Regulatory Agency Databases 
 
The subcontractor report is attached.

257 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FORM-LBE-DVV

®kcehCoeG htiw tropeR  ™paM suidaR RDE ehT

6 Armstrong Road, 4th floor
Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 800.352.0050
www.edrnet.com

Central  PBC Chamber of Commerce Bldg
13901 Southern Boulevard
Loxahatchee, FL  33470

Inquiry Number: 4198837.2s
February 04, 2015

258 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SECTION PAGE

Executive Summary ES1

Overview Map 2

Detail Map 3

Map Findings Summary 4

Map Findings 8

Orphan Summary 9

Government Records Searched/Data Currency Tracking GR-1

GEOCHECK ADDENDUM

Physical Setting Source Addendum A-1

Physical Setting Source Summary A-2

Physical Setting SSURGO Soil Map A-5

Physical Setting Source Map A-11

Physical Setting Source Map Findings A-13

Physical Setting Source Records Searched PSGR-1

TC4198837.2s   Page 1

Thank you for your business.
Please contact EDR at 1-800-352-0050

with any questions or comments.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Environmental Data
Resources, Inc. It cannot be concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and surrounding properties does not exist from
other sources. NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL
DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE,
ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OF DAMAGE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY
LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID FOR THIS REPORT. Purchaser accepts this Report "AS IS". Any analyses, estimates, ratings,
environmental risk levels or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to provide, nor
should they be interpreted as providing any facts regarding, or prediction or forecast of, any environmental risk for any property. Only a Phase I
Environmental Site Assessment performed by an environmental professional can provide information regarding the environmental risk for any
property. Additionally, the information provided in this Report is not to be construed as legal advice.

Copyright 2015 by Environmental Data Resources, Inc. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any media or format, in whole
or in part, of any report or map of Environmental Data Resources, Inc., or its affiliates, is prohibited without prior written permission.

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates. All other
trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

259 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4198837.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1

A search of available environmental records was conducted by Environmental Data Resources, Inc (EDR).
The report was designed to assist parties seeking to meet the search requirements of EPA’s Standards
and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries (40 CFR Part 312), the ASTM Standard Practice for
Environmental Site Assessments (E 1527-13) or custom requirements developed for the evaluation of
environmental risk associated with a parcel of real estate.

TARGET PROPERTY INFORMATION

ADDRESS

13901 SOUTHERN BOULEVARD
PALM BEACH County, FL 33470

COORDINATES

26.6831000 - 26˚ 40’ 59.16’’Latitude (North): 
80.2593000 - 80˚ 15’ 33.48’’Longitude (West): 
Zone 17Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
573696.1UTM X (Meters): 
2951384.5UTM Y (Meters): 
18 ft. above sea levelElevation:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ASSOCIATED WITH TARGET PROPERTY

26080-F3 LOXAHATCHEE, FLTarget Property Map:
1984Most Recent Revision:

26080-F2 PALM BEACH FARMS, FLEast Map:
1983Most Recent Revision:

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY IN THIS REPORT

20101004Portions of Photo from:
USDASource:

TARGET PROPERTY SEARCH RESULTS

The target property was not listed in any of the databases searched by EDR.

DATABASES WITH NO MAPPED SITES

No mapped sites were found in EDR’s search of available ("reasonably ascertainable ") government
records either on the target property or within the search radius around the target property for the
following databases:

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

NPL National Priority List

260 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4198837.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 2

Proposed NPL Proposed National Priority List Sites
NPL LIENS Federal Superfund Liens

Federal Delisted NPL site list

Delisted NPL National Priority List Deletions

Federal CERCLIS list

CERCLIS Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System
FEDERAL FACILITY Federal Facility Site Information listing

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site List

CERC-NFRAP CERCLIS No Further Remedial Action Planned

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

CORRACTS Corrective Action Report

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

RCRA-TSDF RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal

Federal RCRA generators list

RCRA-LQG RCRA - Large Quantity Generators
RCRA-SQG RCRA - Small Quantity Generators
RCRA-CESQG RCRA - Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator

Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries

US ENG CONTROLS Engineering Controls Sites List
US INST CONTROL Sites with Institutional Controls
LUCIS Land Use Control Information System

Federal ERNS list

ERNS Emergency Response Notification System

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

SHWS Florida’s State-Funded Action Sites

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

LUST Petroleum Contamination Detail Report
LAST Leaking Aboveground Storage Tank Listing
INDIAN LUST Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

UST Storage Tank Facility Information
AST Storage Tank Facility Information
INDIAN UST Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land

261 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4198837.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3

FF TANKS Federal Facilities Listing
FEMA UST Underground Storage Tank Listing

State and tribal institutional control / engineering control registries

ENG CONTROLS Institutional Controls Registry
INST CONTROL Institutional Controls Registry

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

INDIAN VCP Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing
VCP Voluntary Cleanup Sites

State and tribal Brownfields sites

BROWNFIELDS Brownfields Sites Database

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS A Listing of Brownfields Sites

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

DEBRIS REGION 9 Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations
ODI Open Dump Inventory
SWRCY Recycling Centers
INDIAN ODI Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

US CDL Clandestine Drug Labs
Fl Sites Sites List
PRIORITYCLEANERS Priority Ranking List
US HIST CDL National Clandestine Laboratory Register

Local Land Records

LIENS 2 CERCLA Lien Information

Records of Emergency Release Reports

HMIRS Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System
SPILLS Oil and Hazardous Materials Incidents
SPILLS 90 SPILLS 90 data from FirstSearch
SPILLS 80 SPILLS 80 data from FirstSearch

Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR RCRA - Non Generators / No Longer Regulated
DOT OPS Incident and Accident Data
DOD Department of Defense Sites
FUDS Formerly Used Defense Sites

262 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4198837.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4

CONSENT Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees
ROD Records Of Decision
UMTRA Uranium Mill Tailings Sites
US MINES Mines Master Index File
TRIS Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System
TSCA Toxic Substances Control Act
FTTS FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide
                                                Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
HIST FTTS FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing
SSTS Section 7 Tracking Systems
ICIS Integrated Compliance Information System
PADS PCB Activity Database System
MLTS Material Licensing Tracking System
RADINFO Radiation Information Database
FINDS Facility Index System/Facility Registry System
RAATS RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System
RMP Risk Management Plans
UIC Underground Injection Wells Database Listing
DRYCLEANERS Drycleaning Facilities
DEDB Ethylene Dibromide Database Results
NPDES Wastewater Facility Regulation Database
AIRS Permitted Facilities Listing
TIER 2 Tier 2 Facility Listing
FL Cattle Dip. Vats Cattle Dipping Vats
INDIAN RESERV Indian Reservations
SCRD DRYCLEANERS State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing
COAL ASH DOE Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data
DWM CONTAM DWM CONTAMINATED SITES
Financial Assurance Financial Assurance Information Listing
LEAD SMELTERS Lead Smelter Sites
EPA WATCH LIST EPA WATCH LIST
US FIN ASSUR Financial Assurance Information
US AIRS Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem
PRP Potentially Responsible Parties
PCB TRANSFORMER PCB Transformer Registration Database
COAL ASH EPA Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List
2020 COR ACTION 2020 Corrective Action Program List

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR MGP EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants
EDR US Hist Auto Stat EDR Exclusive Historic Gas Stations
EDR US Hist Cleaners EDR Exclusive Historic Dry Cleaners

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

RGA LUST Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank
RGA HWS Recovered Government Archive State Hazardous Waste Facilities List
RGA LF Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List

263 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4198837.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 5

SURROUNDING SITES: SEARCH RESULTS

Surrounding sites were identified in the following databases.

Elevations have been determined from the USGS Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated on
a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
should be field verified. Sites with an elevation equal to or higher than the target property have been
differentiated below from sites with an elevation lower than the target property.
Page numbers and map identification numbers refer to the EDR Radius Map report where detailed
data on individual sites can be reviewed.

Sites listed in bold italics are in multiple databases.

Unmappable (orphan) sites are not considered in the foregoing analysis.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

State and tribal landfill and/or solid waste disposal site lists

SWF/LF: The Solid Waste Facilities/Landfill Sites records typically contain an inventory of solid
waste disposal facilities or landfills in a particular state. The data come from the Department of
Environmental Protection’s Facility Directory (Solid Waste Facilities).

     A review of the SWF/LF list, as provided by EDR, and dated 10/20/2014 has revealed that there is 1
     SWF/LF site  within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     D.M. YOUNG TREE AND LAWN SERVI   13528 6TH CT NORTH N 1/4 - 1/2 (0.342 mi.) 1 8
Facility-Site Id: 95148

264 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4198837.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 6

Due to poor or inadequate address information, the following sites were not mapped. Count: 3 records. 

Site Name  Database(s)____________  ____________

KENNELLY’S JUICY ORANGE GROVE  SWF/LF
BPS TRANSPORT TRUCK SPILL  LUST, UST
ARMANDO ESTEVEZ BER 07-2I-37965  LUST, UST

265 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2BLQ13Bf8UQd293Y1Efe2uUsAydn4z9x1nYE3BE42ALH1cBi7nQt1P3l3Af51dUZ5odL239F69Yb2oLT2vBY1cQr5a382YfUAvUH9YdB9i984VYj8wEm08ec3AuDt9sm22LI2HBb1gQ7Tw3O2hf22LUV8BdG4Q9n3KYY6jE46Qew6Luq8Bs51
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2BLQ13Bf8UQd293Y1Efe2uUsAydn4z9x1nYE3BE42ALH1cBi7nQt1P3l3Af51dUZ5odL239F69Yb2oLT2vBY1cQr5a382YfUAvUH9YdB9i984VYj8wEm08ec3AuDt9sm22LI2HBb1gQ7Vw3O1hf21LUV5BdG2Q9n5KYY7jE49Qew4Luq9Bs51
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2BLQ13Bf8UQd293Y1Efe2uUsAydn4z9x1nYE3BE42ALH1cBi7nQt1P3l3Af51dUZ5odL239F69Yb2oLT2vBY1cQr5a382YfUAvUH9YdB9i984VYj8wEm08ec3AuDt9sm22LI2HBb1gQ7Vw3O1hf21LUV5BdG2Q9n5KYY6jE49Qew8Luq1Bs51


EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc. 266 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc. 267 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000NPL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Proposed NPL
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPNPL LIENS

Federal Delisted NPL site list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Delisted NPL

Federal CERCLIS list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CERCLIS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500FEDERAL FACILITY

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site List

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CERC-NFRAP

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CORRACTS

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500RCRA-TSDF

Federal RCRA generators list

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA-LQG
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA-SQG
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA-CESQG

Federal institutional controls /
engineering controls registries

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US ENG CONTROLS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US INST CONTROL
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500LUCIS

Federal ERNS list

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPERNS

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000SHWS

State and tribal landfill and/or
solid waste disposal site lists

    1  NR   NR      1      0    0 0.500SWF/LF

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500LUST
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500LAST
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN LUST

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250UST

TC4198837.2s   Page 4

268 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250AST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250INDIAN UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FF TANKS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FEMA UST

State and tribal institutional
control / engineering control registries

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500ENG CONTROLS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INST CONTROL

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN VCP
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500VCP

State and tribal Brownfields sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500BROWNFIELDS

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US BROWNFIELDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid
Waste Disposal Sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500DEBRIS REGION 9
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SWRCY
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN ODI

Local Lists of Hazardous waste /
Contaminated Sites

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS CDL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Fl Sites
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500PRIORITYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS HIST CDL

Local Land Records

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLIENS 2

Records of Emergency Release Reports

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPHMIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPSPILLS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPSPILLS 90
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPSPILLS 80

Other Ascertainable Records

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA NonGen / NLR
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPDOT OPS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000DOD
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000FUDS

TC4198837.2s   Page 5

269 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CONSENT
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000ROD
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500UMTRA
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250US MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPTRIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPTSCA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPFTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPHIST FTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPSSTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPICIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPADS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPMLTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRADINFO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPFINDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRAATS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRMP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUIC
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250DEDB
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPNPDES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPAIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPTIER 2
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FL Cattle Dip. Vats
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000INDIAN RESERV
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SCRD DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCOAL ASH DOE
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500DWM CONTAM
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPFinancial Assurance
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLEAD SMELTERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPEPA WATCH LIST
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS FIN ASSUR
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS AIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPRP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPCB TRANSFORMER
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500COAL ASH EPA
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.2502020 COR ACTION

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000EDR MGP
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250EDR US Hist Auto Stat
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250EDR US Hist Cleaners

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRGA LUST
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRGA HWS

TC4198837.2s   Page 6

270 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRGA LF

NOTES:

   TP = Target Property

   NR = Not Requested at this Search Distance

   Sites may be listed in more than one database

TC4198837.2s   Page 7

271 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Click here for Florida Oculus:

                                   Not reportedLand Owner Telephone:
                                   Not reportedLand Owner City/State/Zip:
                                   Not reportedLand Owner Address:
                                   Not reportedLand Owner Name:
                                   Not reportedSite Supervisor Telephone:
                                   Not reportedSite Supervisor City/State/Zip:
                                   Not reportedSite Supervisor Addr:
                                   Not reportedSite Supervisor Name:
                                   Not reportedEMail Address2:
                                   Not reportedEMail Address1:
                                   Not reportedResponsible Authority Phone:
                                   Not reportedResponsible Authority City,St,Zip:
                                   Not reportedResponsible Authority Address:
                                   Not reportedResponsible Authority Name:
Not reportedRange:
Not reportedTownship:
Not reportedSection:
ACTIVITY NOT PERMITTED/REGISTERED (N)Class Status:
SOURCE-SEPARATED ORGANICS PROC. FAC. (SOPF)Classification:
330Class Type:
26:41:11.2049 / 80:15:31.2755Lat/Long:
SEDDistrict:
95148Facility ID:

SWF/LF:

1804 ft.
0.342 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
19 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOXAHATCHEE, FL  33470
North 13528 6TH CT NORTH    N/A
1 SWF/LFD.M. YOUNG TREE AND LAWN SERVICE, INC. S109053450

TC4198837.2s   Page 8

272 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.web.edrnet.com/ordering/switchboard/redirect.aspx?s=GRR_FL_LANDFILL&facid=95148


ORPHAN SUMMARY

City EDR ID Site Name Site Address Zip Database(s)

Count: 3 records.

LOXAHATCHEE         U004146838 BPS TRANSPORT TRUCK SPILL D O T MEDIAN HWY 80 E OF SEMIN      LUST, UST
WEST PALM BEACH     S117325557 KENNELLY’S JUICY ORANGE GROVE 2 MILES WEST OF FLYING COW AND 33470 SWF/LF
WEST PALM BEACH     U004145870 ARMANDO ESTEVEZ BER 07-2I-37965 I-95 SB NORTH OF SOUTHERN BLVD      LUST, UST

TC4198837.2s   Page 9

273 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2BLQ13Bf8UQd293Y1Efe2uUsAydn4z9x1nYE3BE42ALH1cBi7nQt1P3l3Af51dUZ5odL239F69Yb2oLT2vBY1cQr5a382YfUAvUH9YdB9i984VYj8wEm08ec3AuDt9sm22LI2HBb1gQ7Vw3O1hf21LUV5BdG2Q9n5KYY7jE49Qew4Luq9Bs51
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2BLQ13Bf8UQd293Y1Efe2uUsAydn4z9x1nYE3BE42ALH1cBi7nQt1P3l3Af51dUZ5odL239F69Yb2oLT2vBY1cQr5a382YfUAvUH9YdB9i984VYj8wEm08ec3AuDt9sm22LI2HBb1gQ7Tw3O2hf22LUV8BdG4Q9n3KYY6jE46Qew6Luq8Bs51
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2BLQ13Bf8UQd293Y1Efe2uUsAydn4z9x1nYE3BE42ALH1cBi7nQt1P3l3Af51dUZ5odL239F69Yb2oLT2vBY1cQr5a382YfUAvUH9YdB9i984VYj8wEm08ec3AuDt9sm22LI2HBb1gQ7Vw3O1hf21LUV5BdG2Q9n5KYY6jE49Qew8Luq1Bs51


To maintain currency of the following federal and state databases, EDR contacts the appropriate governmental agency
on a monthly or quarterly basis, as required.

Number of Days to Update: Provides confirmation that EDR is reporting records that have been updated within 90 days
from the date the government agency made the information available to the public.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

NPL:  National Priority List
National Priorities List (Superfund). The NPL is a subset of CERCLIS and identifies over 1,200 sites for priority
cleanup under the Superfund Program. NPL sites may encompass relatively large areas. As such, EDR provides polygon
coverage for over 1,000 NPL site boundaries produced by EPA’s Environmental Photographic Interpretation Center
(EPIC) and regional EPA offices.

Date of Government Version: 09/29/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/08/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/08/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NPL Site Boundaries

Sources:

EPA’s Environmental Photographic Interpretation Center (EPIC)
Telephone: 202-564-7333

EPA Region 1 EPA Region 6
Telephone 617-918-1143 Telephone: 214-655-6659

EPA Region 3 EPA Region 7
Telephone 215-814-5418 Telephone: 913-551-7247

EPA Region 4 EPA Region 8
Telephone 404-562-8033 Telephone: 303-312-6774

EPA Region 5 EPA Region 9
Telephone 312-886-6686 Telephone: 415-947-4246

EPA Region 10
Telephone 206-553-8665

Proposed NPL:  Proposed National Priority List Sites
A site that has been proposed for listing on the National Priorities List through the issuance of a proposed rule
in the Federal Register. EPA then accepts public comments on the site, responds to the comments, and places on
the NPL those sites that continue to meet the requirements for listing.

Date of Government Version: 09/29/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/08/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/08/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NPL LIENS:  Federal Superfund Liens
Federal Superfund Liens. Under the authority granted the USEPA by CERCLA of 1980, the USEPA has the authority
to file liens against real property in order to recover remedial action expenditures or when the property owner
received notification of potential liability. USEPA compiles a listing of filed notices of Superfund Liens.

Date of Government Version: 10/15/1991
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/02/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/30/1994
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4267
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-1

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

274 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Federal Delisted NPL site list

DELISTED NPL:  National Priority List Deletions
The National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP) establishes the criteria that the
EPA uses to delete sites from the NPL. In accordance with 40 CFR 300.425.(e), sites may be deleted from the
NPL where no further response is appropriate.

Date of Government Version: 09/29/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/08/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/08/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal CERCLIS list

CERCLIS:  Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System
CERCLIS contains data on potentially hazardous waste sites that have been reported to the USEPA by states, municipalities,
private companies and private persons, pursuant to Section 103 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation,
and Liability Act (CERCLA). CERCLIS contains sites which are either proposed to or on the National Priorities
List (NPL) and sites which are in the screening and assessment phase for possible inclusion on the NPL.

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/11/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/13/2014
Number of Days to Update: 94

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-412-9810
Last EDR Contact: 01/09/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FEDERAL FACILITY:  Federal Facility Site Information listing
A listing of National Priority List (NPL) and Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) sites found in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) Database where EPA Federal Facilities
Restoration and Reuse Office is involved in cleanup activities.

Date of Government Version: 07/21/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/07/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8704
Last EDR Contact: 01/09/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site List

CERCLIS-NFRAP:  CERCLIS No Further Remedial Action Planned
Archived sites are sites that have been removed and archived from the inventory of CERCLIS sites. Archived status
indicates that, to the best of EPA’s knowledge, assessment at a site has been completed and that EPA has determined
no further steps will be taken to list this site on the National Priorities List (NPL), unless information indicates
this decision was not appropriate or other considerations require a recommendation for listing at a later time.
This decision does not necessarily mean that there is no hazard associated with a given site; it only means that,
based upon available information, the location is not judged to be a potential NPL site. 

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/11/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/13/2014
Number of Days to Update: 94

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-412-9810
Last EDR Contact: 01/09/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

CORRACTS:  Corrective Action Report
CORRACTS identifies hazardous waste handlers with RCRA corrective action activity.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-2

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

275 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: 12/09/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

RCRA-TSDF:  RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Transporters are individuals or entities that
move hazardous waste from the generator offsite to a facility that can recycle, treat, store, or dispose of the
waste. TSDFs treat, store, or dispose of the waste.

Date of Government Version: 12/09/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (404) 562-8651
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA generators list

RCRA-LQG:  RCRA - Large Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Large quantity generators (LQGs) generate
over 1,000 kilograms (kg) of hazardous waste, or over 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 12/09/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (404) 562-8651
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

RCRA-SQG:  RCRA - Small Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Small quantity generators (SQGs) generate
between 100 kg and 1,000 kg of hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 12/09/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (404) 562-8651
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

RCRA-CESQG:  RCRA - Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Conditionally exempt small quantity generators
(CESQGs) generate less than 100 kg of hazardous waste, or less than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 12/09/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (404) 562-8651
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-3

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

276 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries

US ENG CONTROLS:  Engineering Controls Sites List
A listing of sites with engineering controls in place. Engineering controls include various forms of caps, building
foundations, liners, and treatment methods to create pathway elimination for regulated substances to enter environmental
media or effect human health.

Date of Government Version: 09/18/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/19/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-0695
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US INST CONTROL:  Sites with Institutional Controls
A listing of sites with institutional controls in place. Institutional controls include administrative measures,
such as groundwater use restrictions, construction restrictions, property use restrictions, and post remediation
care requirements intended to prevent exposure to contaminants remaining on site. Deed restrictions are generally
required as part of the institutional controls.

Date of Government Version: 09/18/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/19/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-0695
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LUCIS:  Land Use Control Information System
LUCIS contains records of land use control information pertaining to the former Navy Base Realignment and Closure
properties.

Date of Government Version: 12/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/12/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 48

Source:  Department of the Navy
Telephone:  843-820-7326
Last EDR Contact: 11/17/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/02/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Federal ERNS list

ERNS:  Emergency Response Notification System
Emergency Response Notification System. ERNS records and stores information on reported releases of oil and hazardous
substances.

Date of Government Version: 09/29/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/30/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/06/2014
Number of Days to Update: 37

Source:  National Response Center, United States Coast Guard
Telephone:  202-267-2180
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

SHWS:  Florida’s State-Funded Action Sites
State Hazardous Waste Sites. State hazardous waste site records are the states’ equivalent to CERCLIS. These sites
may or may not already be listed on the federal CERCLIS list. Priority sites planned for cleanup using state funds
(state equivalent of Superfund) are identified along with sites where cleanup will be paid for by potentially
responsible parties. Available information varies by state.

Date of Government Version: 07/14/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/26/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/02/2014
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-488-0190
Last EDR Contact: 11/26/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-4

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

277 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



State and tribal landfill and/or solid waste disposal site lists

SWF/LF:  Solid Waste Facility Database
Solid Waste Facilities/Landfill Sites. SWF/LF type records typically contain an inventory of solid waste disposal
facilities or landfills in a particular state. Depending on the state, these may be active or inactive facilities
or open dumps that failed to meet RCRA Subtitle D Section 4004 criteria for solid waste landfills or disposal
sites.

Date of Government Version: 10/20/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/22/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2014
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-922-7121
Last EDR Contact: 01/20/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/04/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

LUST:  Petroleum Contamination Detail Report
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Incident Reports. LUST records contain an inventory of reported leaking underground
storage tank incidents. Not all states maintain these records, and the information stored varies by state.

Date of Government Version: 10/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/04/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2014
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8839
Last EDR Contact: 11/04/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

LAST:  Leaking Aboveground Storage Tank Listing
A statewide listing of leaking aboveground storage tank site locations.

Date of Government Version: 11/21/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/24/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/01/2014
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8799
Last EDR Contact: 11/17/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R5:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
Leaking underground storage tanks located on Indian Land in Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin.

Date of Government Version: 11/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/05/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 12

Source:  EPA, Region 5
Telephone:  312-886-7439
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R10:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Alaska, Idaho, Oregon and Washington.

Date of Government Version: 05/20/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/10/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/22/2014
Number of Days to Update: 73

Source:  EPA Region 10
Telephone:  206-553-2857
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

INDIAN LUST R9:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Arizona, California, New Mexico and Nevada

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/12/2013
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  415-972-3372
Last EDR Contact: 01/08/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-5

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

278 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



INDIAN LUST R8:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah and Wyoming.

Date of Government Version: 11/04/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/07/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 10

Source:  EPA Region 8
Telephone:  303-312-6271
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

INDIAN LUST R7:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Iowa, Kansas, and Nebraska

Date of Government Version: 09/23/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/25/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 65

Source:  EPA Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7003
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R6:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in New Mexico and Oklahoma.

Date of Government Version: 10/06/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 19

Source:  EPA Region 6
Telephone:  214-665-6597
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R4:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Florida, Mississippi and North Carolina.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/12/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/22/2014
Number of Days to Update: 10

Source:  EPA Region 4
Telephone:  404-562-8677
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

INDIAN LUST R1:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
A listing of leaking underground storage tank locations on Indian Land.

Date of Government Version: 02/01/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/01/2013
Number of Days to Update: 184

Source:  EPA Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1313
Last EDR Contact: 10/31/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

UST:  Storage Tank Facility Information
Registered Underground Storage Tanks. UST’s are regulated under Subtitle I of the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA) and must be registered with the state department responsible for administering the UST program. Available
information varies by state program.

Date of Government Version: 10/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/05/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/03/2014
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8839
Last EDR Contact: 11/05/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

AST:  Storage Tank Facility Information
Registered Aboveground Storage Tanks.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-6

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

279 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: 10/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/05/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/03/2014
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8839
Last EDR Contact: 11/05/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

INDIAN UST R6:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 6 (Louisiana, Arkansas, Oklahoma, New Mexico, Texas and 65 Tribes).

Date of Government Version: 10/06/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/06/2014
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  EPA Region 6
Telephone:  214-665-7591
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

INDIAN UST R5:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 5 (Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 11/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/05/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 12

Source:  EPA Region 5
Telephone:  312-886-6136
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R4:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 4 (Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee
and Tribal Nations)

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/12/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/22/2014
Number of Days to Update: 10

Source:  EPA Region 4
Telephone:  404-562-9424
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

INDIAN UST R7:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 7 (Iowa, Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska, and 9 Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 09/23/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/25/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 65

Source:  EPA Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7003
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R8:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 8 (Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming and 27 Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 11/04/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/07/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 10

Source:  EPA Region 8
Telephone:  303-312-6137
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

INDIAN UST R1:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 1 (Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Vermont and ten Tribal
Nations).

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-7

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

280 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: 02/01/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/27/2014
Number of Days to Update: 271

Source:  EPA, Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1313
Last EDR Contact: 10/31/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R10:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 10 (Alaska, Idaho, Oregon, Washington, and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 05/20/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/10/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/15/2014
Number of Days to Update: 66

Source:  EPA Region 10
Telephone:  206-553-2857
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

INDIAN UST R9:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 9 (Arizona, California, Hawaii, Nevada, the Pacific Islands, and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 08/14/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/15/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/22/2014
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  EPA Region 9
Telephone:  415-972-3368
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FEMA UST:  Underground Storage Tank Listing
A listing of all FEMA owned underground storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 01/01/2010
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/16/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/12/2010
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  FEMA
Telephone:  202-646-5797
Last EDR Contact: 01/12/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FF TANKS:  Federal Facilities Listing
A listing of federal facilities with storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 10/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/10/2014
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8250
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

State and tribal institutional control / engineering control registries

ENG CONTROLS:  Institutional Controls Registry
The registry is a database of all contaminated sites in the state of Florida which are subject to engineering
controls. Engineering Controls encompass a variety of engineered remedies to contain and/or reduce contamination,
and/or physical barriers intended to limit access to property. ECs include fences, signs, guards, landfill caps,
provision of potable water, slurry walls, sheet pile (vertical caps), pumping and treatment of groundwater,
monitoring wells, and vapor extraction systems.

Date of Government Version: 09/02/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/08/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/10/2014
Number of Days to Update: 2

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8927
Last EDR Contact: 01/07/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-8

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

281 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Inst Control:  Institutional Controls Registry
The registry is a database of all contaminated sites in the state of Florida which are subject to institutional
and engineering controls.

Date of Government Version: 09/02/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/08/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/10/2014
Number of Days to Update: 2

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8927
Last EDR Contact: 01/07/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

VCP:  Voluntary Cleanup Sites
Listing of closed and active voluntary cleanup sites.

Date of Government Version: 12/11/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/12/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/08/2015
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8705
Last EDR Contact: 12/05/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN VCP R1:  Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing
A listing of voluntary cleanup priority sites located on Indian Land located in Region 1.

Date of Government Version: 09/29/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/01/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/06/2014
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  EPA, Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1102
Last EDR Contact: 12/31/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN VCP R7:  Voluntary Cleanup Priority Lisitng
A listing of voluntary cleanup priority sites located on Indian Land located in Region 7.

Date of Government Version: 03/20/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/22/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/19/2008
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  EPA, Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7365
Last EDR Contact: 04/20/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/20/2009
Data Release Frequency: Varies

State and tribal Brownfields sites

BROWNFIELDS AREAS:  Brownfields Areas Database
A "brownfield area" means a contiguous area of one or more brownfield sites, some of which may not be contaminated,
that has been designated as such by a local government resolution. Such areas may include all or portions of community
redevelopment areas, enterprise zones, empowerment zones, other such designated economically deprived communities
and areas, and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) designated brownfield pilot projects. This layer provides
a polygon representation of the boundaries of these designated Brownfield Areas in Florida.

Date of Government Version: 10/06/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/07/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/10/2014
Number of Days to Update: 3

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8934
Last EDR Contact: 01/07/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

BSRA:  Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreements Listing
The BSRA provides DEP and the public assurance that site rehabilitation will be conducted in accordance with Florida
Statutes and DEP’s Contaminated Site Cleanup Criteria rule. In addition, the BSRA provides limited liability protection
for the voluntary responsible party. The BSRA contains various commitments by the voluntary responsible party,
including milestones for completion of site rehabilitation tasks and submittal of technical reports and plans.
It also contains a commitment by DEP to review technical reports according to an agreed upon schedule. Only those
brownfield sites with an executed BSRA are eligible to apply for a voluntary cleanup tax credit incentive pursuant
to Section 376.30781, Florida Statutes.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-9

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

282 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: 09/10/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/08/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/10/2014
Number of Days to Update: 2

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8934
Last EDR Contact: 01/07/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

BROWNFIELDS:  Brownfields Sites Database
Brownfields are defined by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) as abandoned, idled, or
underused industrial and commercial facilities where expansion or redevelopment is complicated by real or perceived
environmental contamination.

Date of Government Version: 10/06/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/07/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/10/2014
Number of Days to Update: 3

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8927
Last EDR Contact: 01/07/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS:  A Listing of Brownfields Sites
Brownfields are real property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be complicated by the presence
or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant. Cleaning up and reinvesting in these
properties takes development pressures off of undeveloped, open land, and both improves and protects the environment.
Assessment, Cleanup and Redevelopment Exchange System (ACRES) stores information reported by EPA Brownfields
grant recipients on brownfields properties assessed or cleaned up with grant funding as well as information on
Targeted Brownfields Assessments performed by EPA Regions. A listing of ACRES Brownfield sites is obtained from
Cleanups in My Community. Cleanups in My Community provides information on Brownfields properties for which information
is reported back to EPA, as well as areas served by Brownfields grant programs.

Date of Government Version: 12/22/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/22/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 38

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-2777
Last EDR Contact: 12/22/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/06/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

ODI:  Open Dump Inventory
An open dump is defined as a disposal facility that does not comply with one or more of the Part 257 or Part 258
Subtitle D Criteria.

Date of Government Version: 06/30/1985
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/17/2004
Number of Days to Update: 39

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 06/09/2004
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

DEBRIS REGION 9:  Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations
A listing of illegal dump sites location on the Torres Martinez Indian Reservation located in eastern Riverside
County and northern Imperial County, California.

Date of Government Version: 01/12/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/07/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/21/2009
Number of Days to Update: 137

Source:  EPA, Region 9
Telephone:  415-947-4219
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-10

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

283 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SWRCY:  Recycling Centers
A listing of recycling centers located in the state of Florida.

Date of Government Version: 07/24/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/22/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/12/2015
Number of Days to Update: 82

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8718
Last EDR Contact: 01/23/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/04/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN ODI:  Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands
Location of open dumps on Indian land.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/1998
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/24/2008
Number of Days to Update: 52

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-308-8245
Last EDR Contact: 10/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

US CDL:  Clandestine Drug Labs
A listing of clandestine drug lab locations. The U.S. Department of Justice ("the Department") provides this
web site as a public service. It contains addresses of some locations where law enforcement agencies reported
they found chemicals or other items that indicated the presence of either clandestine drug laboratories or dumpsites.
In most cases, the source of the entries is not the Department, and the Department has not verified the entry
and does not guarantee its accuracy. Members of the public must verify the accuracy of all entries by, for example,
contacting local law enforcement and local health departments.

Date of Government Version: 07/25/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/09/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  Drug Enforcement Administration
Telephone:  202-307-1000
Last EDR Contact: 11/25/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FL SITES:  Sites List
This summary status report was developed from a number of lists including the Eckhardt list, the Moffit list,
the EPA Hazardous Waste Sites list, EPA’s Emergency & Remedial Response information System list (RCRA Section
3012) & existing department lists such as the obsolete uncontrolled Hazardous Waste Sites list. This list is
no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/1989
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/09/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/04/1994
Number of Days to Update: 87

Source:  Department of Environmental  Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8705
Last EDR Contact: 03/24/1994
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

PRIORITYCLEANERS:  Priority Ranking List
The Florida Legislature has established a state-funded program to cleanup properties that are contaminated as
a result of the operations of a drycleaning facility.

Date of Government Version: 10/06/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/19/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/01/2014
Number of Days to Update: 12

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8927
Last EDR Contact: 11/19/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/02/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US HIST CDL:  National Clandestine Laboratory Register
A listing of clandestine drug lab locations. The U.S. Department of Justice ("the Department") provides this
web site as a public service. It contains addresses of some locations where law enforcement agencies reported
they found chemicals or other items that indicated the presence of either clandestine drug laboratories or dumpsites.
In most cases, the source of the entries is not the Department, and the Department has not verified the entry
and does not guarantee its accuracy. Members of the public must verify the accuracy of all entries by, for example,
contacting local law enforcement and local health departments.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-11

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

284 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: 07/25/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/09/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  Drug Enforcement Administration
Telephone:  202-307-1000
Last EDR Contact: 11/25/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Local Land Records

LIENS 2:  CERCLA Lien Information
A Federal CERCLA (’Superfund’) lien can exist by operation of law at any site or property at which EPA has spent
Superfund monies. These monies are spent to investigate and address releases and threatened releases of contamination.
CERCLIS provides information as to the identity of these sites and properties.

Date of Government Version: 02/18/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/18/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/24/2014
Number of Days to Update: 37

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-6023
Last EDR Contact: 10/27/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Records of Emergency Release Reports

HMIRS:  Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System
Hazardous Materials Incident Report System. HMIRS contains hazardous material spill incidents reported to DOT.

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/01/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/06/2014
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  U.S. Department of Transportation
Telephone:  202-366-4555
Last EDR Contact: 12/30/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

SPILLS:  Oil and Hazardous Materials Incidents
Statewide oil and hazardous materials inland incidents.

Date of Government Version: 10/14/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/14/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/01/2014
Number of Days to Update: 48

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-2010
Last EDR Contact: 01/12/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SPILLS 90:  SPILLS90 data from FirstSearch
Spills 90 includes those spill and release records available exclusively from FirstSearch databases. Typically,
they may include chemical, oil and/or hazardous substance spills recorded after 1990. Duplicate records that are
already included in EDR incident and release records are not included in Spills 90.

Date of Government Version: 12/10/2012
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2013
Number of Days to Update: 60

Source:  FirstSearch
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2013
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SPILLS 80:  SPILLS80 data from FirstSearch
Spills 80 includes those spill and release records available from FirstSearch databases prior to 1990. Typically,
they may include chemical, oil and/or hazardous substance spills recorded before 1990. Duplicate records that
are already included in EDR incident and release records are not included in Spills 80.

Date of Government Version: 09/01/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/06/2013
Number of Days to Update: 62

Source:  FirstSearch
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2013
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-12

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

285 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR:  RCRA - Non Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous
waste.

Date of Government Version: 12/09/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (404) 562-8651
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DOT OPS:  Incident and Accident Data
Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeline Safety Incident and Accident data.

Date of Government Version: 07/31/2012
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/07/2012
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/18/2012
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeline Safety
Telephone:  202-366-4595
Last EDR Contact: 11/04/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DOD:  Department of Defense Sites
This data set consists of federally owned or administered lands, administered by the Department of Defense, that
have any area equal to or greater than 640 acres of the United States, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/10/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/11/2007
Number of Days to Update: 62

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  888-275-8747
Last EDR Contact: 01/15/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

FUDS:  Formerly Used Defense Sites
The listing includes locations of Formerly Used Defense Sites properties where the US Army Corps of Engineers
is actively working or will take necessary cleanup actions.

Date of Government Version: 06/06/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/10/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/18/2014
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Telephone:  202-528-4285
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/23/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CONSENT:  Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees
Major legal settlements that establish responsibility and standards for cleanup at NPL (Superfund) sites. Released
periodically by United States District Courts after settlement by parties to litigation matters.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/24/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/24/2014
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Department of Justice, Consent Decree Library
Telephone:  Varies
Last EDR Contact: 12/24/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ROD:  Records Of Decision
Record of Decision. ROD documents mandate a permanent remedy at an NPL (Superfund) site containing technical
and health information to aid in the cleanup.

Date of Government Version: 11/25/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/12/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/24/2014
Number of Days to Update: 74

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-416-0223
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/23/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-13

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

286 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



UMTRA:  Uranium Mill Tailings Sites
Uranium ore was mined by private companies for federal government use in national defense programs. When the mills
shut down, large piles of the sand-like material (mill tailings) remain after uranium has been extracted from
the ore. Levels of human exposure to radioactive materials from the piles are low; however, in some cases tailings
were used as construction materials before the potential health hazards of the tailings were recognized.

Date of Government Version: 09/14/2010
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/07/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/01/2012
Number of Days to Update: 146

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  505-845-0011
Last EDR Contact: 11/26/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US MINES:  Mines Master Index File
Contains all mine identification numbers issued for mines active or opened since 1971. The data also includes
violation information.

Date of Government Version: 12/30/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/31/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  Department of Labor, Mine Safety and Health Administration
Telephone:  303-231-5959
Last EDR Contact: 12/30/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TRIS:  Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System
Toxic Release Inventory System. TRIS identifies facilities which release toxic chemicals to the air, water and
land in reportable quantities under SARA Title III Section 313.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/31/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/13/2013
Number of Days to Update: 44

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-0250
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TSCA:  Toxic Substances Control Act
Toxic Substances Control Act. TSCA identifies manufacturers and importers of chemical substances included on the
TSCA Chemical Substance Inventory list. It includes data on the production volume of these substances by plant
site.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2012
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/15/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 14

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-260-5521
Last EDR Contact: 12/22/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/06/2015
Data Release Frequency: Every 4 Years

FTTS:  FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
FTTS tracks administrative cases and pesticide enforcement actions and compliance activities related to FIFRA,
TSCA and EPCRA (Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act). To maintain currency, EDR contacts the
Agency on a quarterly basis.

Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/11/2009
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  EPA/Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances
Telephone:  202-566-1667
Last EDR Contact: 11/19/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FTTS INSP:  FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
A listing of FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) inspections and enforcements.

Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/11/2009
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-1667
Last EDR Contact: 11/19/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-14

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

287 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIST FTTS:  FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing
A complete administrative case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all ten EPA regions. The
information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB). NCDB supports the implementation of FIFRA
(Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act). Some EPA regions
are now closing out records. Because of that, and the fact that some EPA regions are not providing EPA Headquarters
with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS database. It included records that may not be included
in the newer FTTS database updates. This database is no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/10/2007
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 12/17/2007
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/17/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HIST FTTS INSP:  FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Inspection & Enforcement Case Listing
A complete inspection and enforcement case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all ten EPA
regions. The information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB). NCDB supports the implementation
of FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act). Some
EPA regions are now closing out records. Because of that, and the fact that some EPA regions are not providing
EPA Headquarters with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS database. It included records that
may not be included in the newer FTTS database updates. This database is no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/10/2007
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 12/17/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/17/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SSTS:  Section 7 Tracking Systems
Section 7 of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended (92 Stat. 829) requires all
registered pesticide-producing establishments to submit a report to the Environmental Protection Agency by March
1st each year. Each establishment must report the types and amounts of pesticides, active ingredients and devices
being produced, and those having been produced and sold or distributed in the past year.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/10/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/25/2011
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4203
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

ICIS:  Integrated Compliance Information System
The Integrated Compliance Information System (ICIS) supports the information needs of the national enforcement
and compliance program as well as the unique needs of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
program.

Date of Government Version: 07/31/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/29/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/06/2014
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-5088
Last EDR Contact: 01/09/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PADS:  PCB Activity Database System
PCB Activity Database. PADS Identifies generators, transporters, commercial storers and/or brokers and disposers
of PCB’s who are required to notify the EPA of such activities.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/15/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 33

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-0500
Last EDR Contact: 01/16/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-15

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

288 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MLTS:  Material Licensing Tracking System
MLTS is maintained by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and contains a list of approximately 8,100 sites which
possess or use radioactive materials and which are subject to NRC licensing requirements. To maintain currency,
EDR contacts the Agency on a quarterly basis.

Date of Government Version: 12/29/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/08/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Telephone:  301-415-7169
Last EDR Contact: 12/04/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/23/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

RADINFO:  Radiation Information Database
The Radiation Information Database (RADINFO) contains information about facilities that are regulated by U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations for radiation and radioactivity.

Date of Government Version: 10/07/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/08/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 12

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-343-9775
Last EDR Contact: 01/08/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FINDS:  Facility Index System/Facility Registry System
Facility Index System. FINDS contains both facility information and ’pointers’ to other sources that contain more
detail. EDR includes the following FINDS databases in this report: PCS (Permit Compliance System), AIRS (Aerometric
Information Retrieval System), DOCKET (Enforcement Docket used to manage and track information on civil judicial
enforcement cases for all environmental statutes), FURS (Federal Underground Injection Control), C-DOCKET (Criminal
Docket System used to track criminal enforcement actions for all environmental statutes), FFIS (Federal Facilities
Information System), STATE (State Environmental Laws and Statutes), and PADS (PCB Activity Data System).

Date of Government Version: 08/16/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/10/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  (404) 562-9900
Last EDR Contact: 12/09/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/23/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

RAATS:  RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System
RCRA Administration Action Tracking System. RAATS contains records based on enforcement actions issued under RCRA
pertaining to major violators and includes administrative and civil actions brought by the EPA. For administration
actions after September 30, 1995, data entry in the RAATS database was discontinued. EPA will retain a copy of
the database for historical records. It was necessary to terminate RAATS because a decrease in agency resources
made it impossible to continue to update the information contained in the database.

Date of Government Version: 04/17/1995
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/03/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/07/1995
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4104
Last EDR Contact: 06/02/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/01/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

RMP:  Risk Management Plans

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-16

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

289 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



When Congress passed the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, it required EPA to publish regulations and guidance
for chemical accident prevention at facilities using extremely hazardous substances. The Risk Management Program
Rule (RMP Rule) was written to implement Section 112(r) of these amendments. The rule, which built upon existing
industry codes and standards, requires companies of all sizes that use certain flammable and toxic substances
to develop a Risk Management Program, which includes a(n): Hazard assessment that details the potential effects
of an accidental release, an accident history of the last five years, and an evaluation of worst-case and alternative
accidental releases; Prevention program that includes safety precautions and maintenance, monitoring, and employee
training measures; and Emergency response program that spells out emergency health care, employee training measures
and procedures for informing the public and response agencies (e.g the fire department) should an accident occur.

Date of Government Version: 08/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/12/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/06/2014
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-8600
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

BRS:  Biennial Reporting System
The Biennial Reporting System is a national system administered by the EPA that collects data on the generation
and management of hazardous waste. BRS captures detailed data from two groups: Large Quantity Generators (LQG)
and Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/26/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/19/2013
Number of Days to Update: 52

Source:  EPA/NTIS
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 11/26/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Biennially

UIC:  Underground Injection Wells Database Listing
A listing of Class I wells. Class I wells are used to inject hazardous waste, nonhazardous waste, or municipal
waste below the lowermost USDW.

Date of Government Version: 10/27/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/28/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/04/2014
Number of Days to Update: 37

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8655
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEANERS:  Drycleaning Facilities
The Drycleaners database, maintained by the Department of Environmental Protection, provides information about
permitted dry cleaner facilities.

Date of Government Version: 10/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/28/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2014
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8927
Last EDR Contact: 01/28/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/11/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

DEDB:  Ethylene Dibromide Database Results
Ethylene dibromide (EDB), a soil fumigant, that has been detected in drinking water wells. The amount found
exceeds the maximum contaminant level as stated in Chapter 62-550 or 520. It is a potential threat to public health
when present in drinking water.

Date of Government Version: 07/14/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/28/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/04/2014
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8335
Last EDR Contact: 01/05/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/06/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

WASTEWATER:  Wastewater Facility Regulation Database
Domestic and industrial wastewater facilities.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-17

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

290 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: 11/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/11/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/04/2014
Number of Days to Update: 23

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8600
Last EDR Contact: 11/11/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/23/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

AIRS:  Permitted Facilities Listing
A listing of Air Resources Management permits.

Date of Government Version: 11/14/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/14/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/09/2014
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-921-9558
Last EDR Contact: 11/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FL Cattle Dip. Vats:  Cattle Dipping Vats
From the 1910’s through the 1950’s, these vats were filled with an arsenic solution for the control and eradication
of the cattle fever tick. Other pesticides, such as DDT, were also widely used. By State law, all cattle, horses,
mules, goats, and other susceptible animals were required to be dipped every 14 days. Under certain circumstances,
the arsenic and other pesticides remaining at the site may present an environmental or public health hazard.

Date of Government Version: 02/04/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/29/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/11/2007
Number of Days to Update: 12

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-488-3601
Last EDR Contact: 01/09/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TIER 2:  Tier 2 Facility Listing
A listing of facilities which store or manufacture hazardous materials that submit a chemical inventory report.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/14/2014
Number of Days to Update: 24

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-413-9970
Last EDR Contact: 12/11/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/30/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN RESERV:  Indian Reservations
This map layer portrays Indian administered lands of the United States that have any area equal to or greater
than 640 acres.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/08/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/11/2007
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  202-208-3710
Last EDR Contact: 01/15/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SCRD DRYCLEANERS:  State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing
The State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners was established in 1998, with support from the U.S. EPA Office
of Superfund Remediation and Technology Innovation. It is comprised of representatives of states with established
drycleaner remediation programs. Currently the member states are Alabama, Connecticut, Florida, Illinois, Kansas,
Minnesota, Missouri, North Carolina, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Wisconsin.

Date of Government Version: 03/07/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/09/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/02/2011
Number of Days to Update: 54

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  615-532-8599
Last EDR Contact: 11/18/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/02/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

2020 COR ACTION:  2020 Corrective Action Program List
The EPA has set ambitious goals for the RCRA Corrective Action program by creating the 2020 Corrective Action
Universe. This RCRA cleanup baseline includes facilities expected to need corrective action. The 2020 universe
contains a wide variety of sites. Some properties are heavily contaminated while others were contaminated but
have since been cleaned up. Still others have not been fully investigated yet, and may require little or no remediation.
Inclusion in the 2020 Universe does not necessarily imply failure on the part of a facility to meet its RCRA obligations.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-18

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

291 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: 11/11/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2012
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/25/2012
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-308-4044
Last EDR Contact: 11/14/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/23/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DWM CONTAM:  DWM CONTAMINATED SITES
A listing of active or known sites. The listing includes sites that need cleanup but are not actively being working
on because the agency currently does not have funding (primarily petroleum and drycleaning).

Date of Government Version: 10/15/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/16/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/08/2014
Number of Days to Update: 53

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-7503
Last EDR Contact: 01/12/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LEAD SMELTER 1:  Lead Smelter Sites
A listing of former lead smelter site locations.

Date of Government Version: 11/25/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/26/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 64

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8787
Last EDR Contact: 01/05/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/20/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LEAD SMELTER 2:  Lead Smelter Sites
A list of several hundred sites in the U.S. where secondary lead smelting was done from 1931and 1964. These sites
may pose a threat to public health through ingestion or inhalation of contaminated soil or dust

Date of Government Version: 04/05/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/27/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2010
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  American Journal of Public Health
Telephone:  703-305-6451
Last EDR Contact: 12/02/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

PRP:  Potentially Responsible Parties
A listing of verified Potentially Responsible Parties

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/17/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 3

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-6023
Last EDR Contact: 12/29/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FEDLAND:  Federal and Indian Lands
Federally and Indian administrated lands of the United States. Lands included are administrated by: Army Corps
of Engineers, Bureau of Reclamation, National Wild and Scenic River, National Wildlife Refuge, Public Domain Land,
Wilderness, Wilderness Study Area, Wildlife Management Area, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Bureau of Land Management,
Department of Justice, Forest Service, Fish and Wildlife Service, National Park Service.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/06/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/11/2007
Number of Days to Update: 339

Source:  U.S. Geological Survey
Telephone:  888-275-8747
Last EDR Contact: 01/15/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: N/A

US AIRS (AFS):  Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem (AFS)
The database is a sub-system of Aerometric Information Retrieval System (AIRS). AFS contains compliance data
on air pollution point sources regulated by the U.S. EPA and/or state and local air regulatory agencies. This
information comes from source reports by various stationary sources of air pollution, such as electric power plants,
steel mills, factories, and universities, and provides information about the air pollutants they produce. Action,
air program, air program pollutant, and general level plant data. It is used to track emissions and compliance
data from industrial plants.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-19

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

292 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: 10/16/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/31/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 17

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 12/23/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

US AIRS MINOR:  Air Facility System Data
A listing of minor source facilities.

Date of Government Version: 10/16/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/31/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 17

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 12/23/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

Financial Assurance 1:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
A list of hazardous waste facilities required to provide financial assurance under RCRA.

Date of Government Version: 11/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/04/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2014
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8793
Last EDR Contact: 11/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US FIN ASSUR:  Financial Assurance Information
All owners and operators of facilities that treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste are required to provide
proof that they will have sufficient funds to pay for the clean up, closure, and post-closure care of their facilities.

Date of Government Version: 11/19/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/21/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 69

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-1917
Last EDR Contact: 11/11/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/02/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Financial Assurance 2:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
A listing of financial assurance information for solid waste facilities.

Date of Government Version: 11/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/04/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2014
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8743
Last EDR Contact: 11/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Financial Assurance 3:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
A listing of financial assurance information for storage tanks sites.

Date of Government Version: 10/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/04/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/04/2014
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  850-245-8853
Last EDR Contact: 11/04/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

COAL ASH EPA:  Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List
A listing of coal combustion residues surface impoundments with high hazard potential ratings.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/10/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/23/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-20

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

293 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PCB TRANSFORMER:  PCB Transformer Registration Database
The database of PCB transformer registrations that includes all PCB registration submittals.

Date of Government Version: 02/01/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/19/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/10/2012
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-0517
Last EDR Contact: 10/31/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

COAL ASH DOE:  Sleam-Electric Plan Operation Data
A listing of power plants that store ash in surface ponds.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/07/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/22/2009
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  202-586-8719
Last EDR Contact: 01/15/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EPA WATCH LIST:  EPA WATCH LIST
EPA maintains a "Watch List" to facilitate dialogue between EPA, state and local environmental agencies on enforcement
matters relating to facilities with alleged violations identified as either significant or high priority. Being
on the Watch List does not mean that the facility has actually violated the law only that an investigation by
EPA or a state or local environmental agency has led those organizations to allege that an unproven violation
has in fact occurred. Being on the Watch List does not represent a higher level of concern regarding the alleged
violations that were detected, but instead indicates cases requiring additional dialogue between EPA, state and
local agencies - primarily because of the length of time the alleged violation has gone unaddressed or unresolved.

Date of Government Version: 08/30/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/21/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  617-520-3000
Last EDR Contact: 11/14/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/23/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR MGP:  EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants
The EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plant Database includes records of coal gas plants (manufactured gas plants)
compiled by EDR’s researchers. Manufactured gas sites were used in the United States from the 1800’s to 1950’s
to produce a gas that could be distributed and used as fuel. These plants used whale oil, rosin, coal, or a mixture
of coal, oil, and water that also produced a significant amount of waste. Many of the byproducts of the gas production,
such as coal tar (oily waste containing volatile and non-volatile chemicals), sludges, oils and other compounds
are potentially hazardous to human health and the environment. The byproduct from this process was frequently
disposed of directly at the plant site and can remain or spread slowly, serving as a continuous source of soil
and groundwater contamination.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

EDR US Hist Auto Stat:  EDR Exclusive Historic Gas Stations
EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected listings of potential
gas station/filling station/service station sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited
to those categories of sources that might, in EDR’s opinion, include gas station/filling station/service station
establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were not limited to gas, gas station, gasoline station,
filling station, auto, automobile repair, auto service station, service station, etc. This database falls within
a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical Records", or HRHR. EDR’s HRHR effort presents
unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and operations that typically create environmental concerns,
but may not show up in current government records searches.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-21

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

294 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR US Hist Cleaners:  EDR Exclusive Historic Dry Cleaners
EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected listings of potential
dry cleaner sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited to those categories of sources
that might, in EDR’s opinion, include dry cleaning establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were
not limited to dry cleaners, cleaners, laundry, laundromat, cleaning/laundry, wash & dry etc. This database falls
within a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical Records", or HRHR. EDR’s HRHR effort
presents unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and operations that typically create environmental
concerns, but may not show up in current government records searches.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

RGA HWS:  Recovered Government Archive State Hazardous Waste Facilities List
The EDR Recovered Government Archive State Hazardous Waste database provides a list of SHWS incidents derived
from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists. Compiled
from Records formerly available from the Department of Environmental Protection in Floridia.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/30/2013
Number of Days to Update: 182

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RGA LUST:  Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank
The EDR Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank database provides a list of LUST incidents
derived from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists.
Compiled from Records formerly available from the Department of Environmental Protection in Floridia.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/30/2013
Number of Days to Update: 182

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RGA LF:  Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List
The EDR Recovered Government Archive Landfill database provides a list of landfills derived from historical databases
and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists. Compiled from Records formerly available
from the Department of Environmental Protection in Floridia.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/10/2014
Number of Days to Update: 193

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-22

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

295 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COUNTY RECORDS

ALACHUA COUNTY:

Facility List
List of all regulated facilities in Alachua County.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/05/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/02/2014
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  Alachua County Environmental Protection Department
Telephone:  352-264-6800
Last EDR Contact: 12/24/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/13/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

BROWARD COUNTY:

Aboveground Storage Tanks
Aboveground storage tank locations in Broward County.

Date of Government Version: 06/02/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/04/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/12/2014
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  Broward County Environmental Protection Department
Telephone:  954-818-7509
Last EDR Contact: 12/01/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Semi-Annual Inventory Report on Contaminated Locations
Early Detection Incentive/Environmental Assessment Remediation. This report monitors the status and remediation
progress of known contaminated locations within Broward County. Sites listed by the US EPA, the Florida Department
of Environmental Protection, and sites licensed for contamination assessment and cleanup by the Division of Pollution
Prevention and Remediation Programs of the Department.

Date of Government Version: 09/02/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/02/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/09/2014
Number of Days to Update: 37

Source:  Broward County Environmental Protection Department
Telephone:  954-818-7509
Last EDR Contact: 12/05/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Hazardous Material Sites
HM sites use or store greater than 25 gallons of hazardous materials per month.

Date of Government Version: 06/02/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/04/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/12/2014
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  Broward County Environmental Protection Department
Telephone:  954-818-7509
Last EDR Contact: 12/01/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

Notice Of Violations Sites
NOV facilities have received a notice of violation letter under the Broward County Chapter 27 Code.

Date of Government Version: 06/02/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/04/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/12/2014
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  Broward County Environmental Protection Department
Telephone:  954-818-7509
Last EDR Contact: 12/01/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

Underground Storage Tanks
All known regulated storage tanks within Broward County, including those tanks that have been closed

Date of Government Version: 06/02/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/04/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/12/2014
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  Broward County Environmental Protection Department
Telephone:  954-818-7509
Last EDR Contact: 12/01/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY:

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-23

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

296 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HILLSBOROUGH CO LF
Hillsborough county landfill sites.

Date of Government Version: 10/15/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/16/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2014
Number of Days to Update: 47

Source:  Hillsborough County Environmental Protection Commission
Telephone:  813-627-2600
Last EDR Contact: 01/12/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY:

Air Permit Sites
Facilities that release or have a potential to release pollutants.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/07/2015
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Department of Environmental Resources Management
Telephone:  305-372-6755
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Grease Trap Sites
Any non-residential facility that discharges waste to a sanitary sewer.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/07/2015
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Dade County Dept. of Env. Resources Mgmt.
Telephone:  305-372-6508
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Marine Facilities Operating Permit
What is this permit used for? Miami-Dade County Ordinance 89-104 and Section 24-18 of the Code of Miami-Dade County
require the following types of marine facilities to obtain annual operating permits from DERM: All recreational
boat docking facilities with ten (10) or more boat slips, moorings, davit spaces, and vessel tie-up spaces.
All boat storage facilities contiguous to tidal waters in Miami-Dade County with ten (10) or more dry storage
spaces including boatyards and boat manufacturing facilities.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/07/2015
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  DERM
Telephone:  305-372-3576
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Maimi River Enforcement
The Miami River Enforcement database files were created for facilities and in some instances vessels that were
inspected by a workgroup within the Department that was identified as the Miami River Enforcement Group. The files
do not all necessarily reflect enforcement cases and some were created for locations that were permitted by other
Sections within the Department.

Date of Government Version: 06/05/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/06/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2013
Number of Days to Update: 61

Source:  DERM
Telephone:  305-372-3576
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Hazardous Waste Sites
Sites with the potential to generate waste

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/06/2015
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  Dade County Department of Environmental Resources Management
Telephone:  305-372-6755
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-24

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

297 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Industrial Waste Type 2-4 Sites
IW2s are facilities having reclaim or recycling systems with no discharges, aboveground holding tanks or spill
prevention and countermeasure plans. IW4s are facilities that discharge an effluent to the ground.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/07/2015
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Department of Environmental Resources Management
Telephone:  305-372-6700
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Industrial Waste Type 5 Sites
Generally these facilities fall under the category of "conditionally exempt small quantity generator" or "small
quantity generator".

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/07/2015
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Department of Environmental Resources Management
Telephone:  305-372-6700
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Industrial Waste Type 6
Permits issued to those non-residential land uses located within the major drinking water wellfield protection
areas that are not served by sanitary sewers. These facilities do not handle hazardous materials but are regulated
because of the env. sensitivity of the areas where they are located.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/07/2015
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Department of Environmental Resources Management
Telephone:  305-372-6700
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Industrial Waste Permit Sites
Facilities that either generate more than 25,000 of wastewater per day to sanitary sewers or are pre-defined by
EPA.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/07/2015
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Department of Environmental Resources Management
Telephone:  305-372-6700
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Enforcement Case Tracking System Sites
Enforcement cases monitored by the Dade County Department of Environmental Resources Management.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/06/2015
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  Department of Environmental Resources Management
Telephone:  305-372-6755
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Fuel Spills Cases
DERM documents fuel spills of sites that are not in a state program.

Date of Government Version: 01/08/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/13/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/05/2009
Number of Days to Update: 23

Source:  Department of Environmental Resources Management
Telephone:  305-372-6755
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-25

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

298 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Storage Tanks
A listing of aboveground and underground storage tank site locations.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/06/2015
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  Department of Environmental Resource Management
Telephone:  305-372-6700
Last EDR Contact: 12/03/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

PALM BEACH COUNTY:

PALM BEACH CO. LF
Palm Beach County Inventory of Solid Waste Sites.

Date of Government Version: 09/01/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/20/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/10/2011
Number of Days to Update: 20

Source:  Palm Beach County Solid Waste Authority
Telephone:  561-640-4000
Last EDR Contact: 12/11/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/30/2015
Data Release Frequency: Varies

OTHER DATABASE(S)

Depending on the geographic area covered by this report, the data provided in these specialty databases may or may not be
complete.  For example, the existence of wetlands information data in a specific report does not mean that all wetlands in the
area covered by the report are included.  Moreover, the absence of any reported wetlands information does not necessarily
mean that wetlands do not exist in the area covered by the report.

CT MANIFEST:  Hazardous Waste Manifest Data
Facility and manifest data. Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through
transporters to a tsd facility.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/19/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/03/2013
Number of Days to Update: 45

Source:  Department of Energy & Environmental Protection
Telephone:  860-424-3375
Last EDR Contact: 11/17/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/02/2015
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

NJ MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/19/2012
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/28/2012
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/12/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

NY MANIFEST:  Facility and Manifest Data
Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through transporters to a TSD
facility.

Date of Government Version: 11/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/05/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/24/2014
Number of Days to Update: 19

Source:  Department of Environmental Conservation
Telephone:  518-402-8651
Last EDR Contact: 11/05/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 02/16/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-26

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

299 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PA MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/21/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/25/2014
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  717-783-8990
Last EDR Contact: 01/19/2015
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/04/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

RI MANIFEST:  Manifest information
Hazardous waste manifest information

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/15/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/13/2014
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  401-222-2797
Last EDR Contact: 11/26/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/09/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

WI MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/07/2014
Number of Days to Update: 48

Source:  Department of Natural Resources
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2014
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/30/2015
Data Release Frequency: Annually

Oil/Gas Pipelines: This data was obtained by EDR from the USGS in 1994. It is referred to by USGS as GeoData Digital Line Graphs
from 1:100,000-Scale Maps. It was extracted from the transportation category including some oil, but primarily
gas pipelines.

Sensitive Receptors: There are individuals deemed sensitive receptors due to their fragile immune systems and special sensitivity
to environmental discharges.  These sensitive receptors typically include the elderly, the sick, and children.  While the location of all
sensitive receptors cannot be determined, EDR indicates those buildings and facilities - schools, daycares, hospitals, medical centers,
and nursing homes - where individuals who are sensitive receptors are likely to be located.

AHA Hospitals:
Source: American Hospital Association, Inc.
Telephone: 312-280-5991
The database includes a listing of hospitals based on the American Hospital Association’s annual survey of hospitals.

Medical Centers: Provider of Services Listing
Source: Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
Telephone: 410-786-3000
A listing of hospitals with Medicare provider number, produced by Centers of Medicare & Medicaid Services,
a federal agency within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

Nursing Homes
Source: National Institutes of Health
Telephone: 301-594-6248
Information on Medicare and Medicaid certified nursing homes in the United States.

Public Schools
Source: National Center for Education Statistics
Telephone: 202-502-7300
The National Center for Education Statistics’ primary database on elementary
and secondary public education in the United States.  It is a comprehensive, annual, national statistical
database of all public elementary and secondary schools and school districts, which contains data that are
comparable across all states.

Private Schools
Source: National Center for Education Statistics
Telephone: 202-502-7300
The National Center for Education Statistics’ primary database on private school locations in the United States. 

Daycare Centers: Department of Children & Families
Source: Provider Information
Telephone: 850-488-4900

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-27

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

300 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Flood Zone Data: This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR in 2003 & 2011 from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  Data depicts 100-year and 500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA.

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005 and 2010 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

State Wetlands Data: Wetlands Inventory
Source: Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone: 850-245-8238

Scanned Digital USGS 7.5’ Topographic Map (DRG)
Source: United States Geologic Survey
A digital raster graphic (DRG) is a scanned image of a U.S. Geological Survey topographic map. The map images
are made by scanning published paper maps on high-resolution scanners. The raster image
is georeferenced and fit to the Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) projection.

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2010 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC4198837.2s     Page GR-28

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

301 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-1

geologic strata.
of the soil, and nearby wells.  Groundwater flow velocity is generally impacted by the nature of the
Groundwater flow direction may be impacted by surface topography, hydrology, hydrogeology, characteristics

  2.  Groundwater flow velocity.
  1.  Groundwater flow direction, and

Assessment of the impact of contaminant migration generally has two principal investigative components:

forming an opinion about the impact of potential contaminant migration.
EDR’s GeoCheck Physical Setting Source Addendum is provided to assist the environmental professional in

1983Most Recent Revision:
26080-F2 PALM BEACH FARMS, FLEast Map:

1984Most Recent Revision:
26080-F3 LOXAHATCHEE, FLTarget Property Map:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

18 ft. above sea levelElevation:
2951384.5UTM Y (Meters): 
573696.1UTM X (Meters): 
Zone 17Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
80.2593 - 80˚ 15’ 33.48’’Longitude (West): 
26.6831 - 26˚ 40’ 59.16’’Latitude (North): 

TARGET PROPERTY COORDINATES

LOXAHATCHEE, FL 33470
13901 SOUTHERN BOULEVARD
CENTRAL  PBC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BLDG

TARGET PROPERTY ADDRESS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE ADDENDUM®

302 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-2

should be field verified.
on a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
Source: Topography has been determined from the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated

SURROUNDING TOPOGRAPHY: ELEVATION PROFILES

E
le

va
tio

n 
(f

t)
E

le
va

tio
n 

(f
t)

TP

TP
0 1/2 1 Miles

✩Target Property Elevation: 18 ft.

North South

West East

171717171717

1818181818

1919191919191919
18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18

General SSEGeneral Topographic Gradient:
TARGET PROPERTY TOPOGRAPHY

should contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
assist the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or,
Surface topography may be indicative of the direction of surficial groundwater flow.  This information can be used to
TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

collected on nearby properties, and regional groundwater flow information (from deep aquifers).
sources of information, such as surface topographic information, hydrologic information, hydrogeologic data
using site-specific well data. If such data is not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary to rely on other
Groundwater flow direction for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW DIRECTION INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

303 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-3

Not Reported

GENERAL DIRECTIONLOCATION
GROUNDWATER FLOWFROM TPMAP ID

hydrogeologically, and the depth to water table.
authorities at select sites and has extracted the date of the report, groundwater flow direction as determined
flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted by environmental professionals to regulatory
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

AQUIFLOW®

 Search Radius: 1.000 Mile.

Not found     Status:
1.25 miles     Search Radius:

Site-Specific Hydrogeological Data*:

* ©1996 Site−specific hydrogeological data gathered by CERCLIS Alerts, Inc., Bainbridge Island, WA.  All rights reserved.  All of the information and opinions presented are those of the cited EPA report(s), which were completed under
a Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) investigation.

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
of groundwater flow direction in the immediate area.  Such hydrogeologic information can be used to assist the
Hydrogeologic information obtained by installation of wells on a specific site can often be an indicator
HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

YES - refer to the Overview Map and Detail MapLOXAHATCHEE

NATIONAL WETLAND INVENTORY
NWI Electronic
Data CoverageNWI Quad at Target Property

1201920100B  - FEMA Q3 Flood data
00000000000  - FEMA Q3 Flood dataAdditional Panels in search area:

1201920050B  - FEMA Q3 Flood dataFlood Plain Panel at Target Property:

YES - refer to the Overview Map and Detail MapPALM BEACH, FL

FEMA FLOOD ZONE
FEMA Flood
Electronic DataTarget Property County

and bodies of water).
Refer to the Physical Setting Source Map following this summary for hydrologic information (major waterways

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
Surface water can act as a hydrologic barrier to groundwater flow.  Such hydrologic information can be used to assist
HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

304 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-4

Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).
of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - a digital representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman
Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology

ROCK STRATIGRAPHIC UNIT GEOLOGIC AGE IDENTIFICATION

Stratifed SequenceCategory:CenozoicEra:
QuaternarySystem:
PleistoceneSeries:
QpCode:    (decoded above as Era, System & Series)

at which contaminant migration may be occurring.
Geologic information can be used by the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the relative speed
GEOLOGIC INFORMATION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

move more quickly through sandy-gravelly types of soils than silty-clayey types of soils.
characteristics data collected on nearby properties and regional soil information. In general, contaminant plumes
to rely on other sources of information, including geologic age identification, rock stratigraphic unit and soil
using site specific geologic and soil strata data. If such data are not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary
Groundwater flow velocity information for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW VELOCITY INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

305 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

1

4

6

4

2

3

1

5
6

0   1/16   1/8   1/4 Miles

306 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-6

 
Soil Drainage Class:

drained and classified.
Class C/D - Drained/undrained hydrology class of soils that can beHydrologic Group:

fine sandSoil Surface Texture:

WaterSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 2

Min: 7.9
Max: 8.4

Min: 4
Max: 42   Not reportedNot reportedfine sand79 inches42 inches 4

Min: 6.1
Max: 8.4

Min: 0.42
Max: 1.4   Not reportedNot reportedsandy loam42 inches35 inches 3

Min: 6.1
Max: 8.4

Min: 0.42
Max: 1.4   Not reportedNot reportedsandy loam35 inches27 inches 2

Min: 4.5
Max: 7.3

Min: 42
Max: 141   Not reportedNot reportedfine sand27 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 15 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Partially hydric

Poorly drainedSoil Drainage Class:

drained and classified.
Class C/D - Drained/undrained hydrology class of soils that can beHydrologic Group:

fine sandSoil Surface Texture:

RivieraSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 1

in a landscape. The following information is based on Soil Conservation Service SSURGO data.
for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation of soil patterns
Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil survey information
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS) leads the National Cooperative Soil

DOMINANT SOIL COMPOSITION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

307 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-7

 

Poorly drainedSoil Drainage Class:

drained and are classified.
Class B/D - Drained/undrained hydrology class of soils that can beHydrologic Group:

fine sandSoil Surface Texture:

PinedaSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 4

Min: 7.4
Max: 8.4

Min: 42
Max: 141   Not reportedNot reportedgravelly sand57 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

LowCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Partially hydric

Well drainedSoil Drainage Class:

excessively drained sands and gravels.
Class A - High infiltration rates. Soils are deep, well drained toHydrologic Group:

gravelly sandSoil Surface Texture:

UdorthentsSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 3

No Layer Information available.
 

> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

Not ReportedCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

308 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-8

Min: 5.1
Max: 7.3

Min: 14
Max: 42   Not reportedNot reportedfine sandy loam25 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 7 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: All hydric

Very poorly drainedSoil Drainage Class:

water table, or are shallow to an impervious layer.
Class D - Very slow infiltration rates. Soils are clayey, have a highHydrologic Group:

fine sandy loamSoil Surface Texture:

ChobeeSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 5

Min: 5.6
Max: 8.4

Min: 14
Max: 42   Not reportedNot reportedsand79 inches44 inches 4

Min: 5.1
Max: 8.4

Min: 0.42
Max: 1.4   Not reportedNot reportedsandy loam44 inches31 inches 3

Min: 4.5
Max: 7.3

Min: 42
Max: 141   Not reportedNot reportedfine sand31 inches 3 inches 2

Min: 4.5
Max: 7.3

Min: 42
Max: 141   Not reportedNot reportedfine sand 3 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 15 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Partially hydric

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

309 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-9

Min: 7.9
Max: 8.4

Min: 4
Max: 42   Not reportedNot reportedfine sand79 inches42 inches 4

Min: 6.1
Max: 8.4

Min: 0.42
Max: 1.4   Not reportedNot reportedsandy loam42 inches35 inches 3

Min: 6.1
Max: 8.4

Min: 0.42
Max: 1.4   Not reportedNot reportedsandy loam35 inches27 inches 2

Min: 4.5
Max: 7.3

Min: 42
Max: 141   Not reportedNot reportedfine sand27 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: All hydric

Very poorly drainedSoil Drainage Class:

water table, or are shallow to an impervious layer.
Class D - Very slow infiltration rates. Soils are clayey, have a highHydrologic Group:

fine sandSoil Surface Texture:

RivieraSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 6

Min: 5.6
Max: 7.8

Min: 14
Max: 42   Not reportedNot reportedloamy sand79 inches37 inches 3

Min: 5.6
Max: 8.4

Min: 0.42
Max: 1.4   Not reportedNot reportedsandy clay loam37 inches25 inches 2

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

310 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-10

1/8 - 1/4 Mile EastFLSO70000034687   B5
1/8 - 1/4 Mile SouthFLSO70000034594   4
0 - 1/8 Mile EastFLSO70000034696   A3
0 - 1/8 Mile WSWFLSA70000007928   2
0 - 1/8 Mile EastFLSO70000034702   A1

STATE DATABASE WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

Note: PWS System location is not always the same as well location.

1/4 - 1/2 Mile NEFL4504791   C7

FEDERAL FRDS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1/2 - 1 Mile WestUSGS40000237840   J57
1/2 - 1 Mile WestUSGS40000237841   J56
1/2 - 1 Mile WestUSGS40000237838   J55
1/2 - 1 Mile WestUSGS40000237839   J54
1/2 - 1 Mile ENEUSGS40000237874   41
1/2 - 1 Mile WNWUSGS40000237854   40
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237829   D21
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237828   D20
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237831   D19
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237830   D18
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237825   D17
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237824   D16
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237827   D15
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237826   D14
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237833   D13
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000237832   D12

FEDERAL USGS WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1.000State Database
Nearest PWS within 1 mileFederal FRDS PWS
1.000Federal USGS

WELL SEARCH DISTANCE INFORMATION

SEARCH DISTANCE (miles)DATABASE

opinion about the impact of contaminant migration on nearby drinking water wells.
professional in assessing sources that may impact ground water flow direction, and in forming an
EDR Local/Regional Water Agency records provide water well information to assist the environmental

LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

311 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-11

1/2 - 1 Mile NorthFLSA70000008079   69
1/2 - 1 Mile WNWFLSA70000007979   68
1/2 - 1 Mile WestFLSO70000034782   M67
1/2 - 1 Mile SouthFLSO70000034136   66
1/2 - 1 Mile WestFLSO70000034706   J65
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034620   K64
1/2 - 1 Mile WestFLSO70000034773   M63
1/2 - 1 Mile WestFLSO70000034772   M62
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034777   61
1/2 - 1 Mile WNWFLSO70000034816   L60
1/2 - 1 Mile WNWFLSO70000034815   L59
1/2 - 1 Mile WNWFLSO70000034814   L58
1/2 - 1 Mile WNWFLSO70000034852   L53
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034638   K52
1/2 - 1 Mile SEFLSO70000034339   51
1/2 - 1 Mile WestFLSA70000007940   J50
1/2 - 1 Mile NNWFLSA70000008047   49
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthFLSO70000035264   I48
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthFLSO70000035262   I47
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034794   46
1/2 - 1 Mile NNWFLSO70000035194   H45
1/2 - 1 Mile NNWFLSO70000035193   H44
1/2 - 1 Mile NNWFLSO70000035192   H43
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034720   42
1/2 - 1 Mile SouthFLSO70000034249   39
1/2 - 1 Mile ESEFLSO70000034525   38
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034691   37
1/2 - 1 Mile NWFLSA70000007983   36
1/2 - 1 Mile NEFLDGW4000005529   35
1/2 - 1 Mile NWFLSA70000008004   34
1/2 - 1 Mile SouthFLSO70000034330   33
1/2 - 1 Mile ESEFLSO70000034559   32
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034679   F31
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034680   F30
1/2 - 1 Mile ESEFLSO70000034590   29
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034737   G28
1/2 - 1 Mile ENEFLSO70000034783   G27
1/2 - 1 Mile EastFLSO70000034686   F26
1/4 - 1/2 Mile NNEFLSA70000007995   E25
1/4 - 1/2 Mile ENEFLSO70000034821   24
1/4 - 1/2 Mile NorthFLSO70000034964   E23
1/4 - 1/2 Mile NorthFLSO70000034952   E22
1/4 - 1/2 Mile SSWFLSO70000034467   11
1/4 - 1/2 Mile ENEFLSO70000034822   C10
1/4 - 1/2 Mile WestFLSO70000034699   9
1/4 - 1/2 Mile WNWFLSO70000034812   8
1/8 - 1/4 Mile EastFLSO70000034715   B6

STATE DATABASE WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®

312 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

FL

313 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-13

Not ReportedPredir:13901Number :
13901 SOUTHERN BLVDAddress:PALM BEACHCounty:
Not ReportedProperty i:Not ReportedReq numb:
Not ReportedInsp chd:Not ReportedInsp lname:
Not ReportedInsp fname:DEPProject id:
DGPSLoc method:05-FEB-03Gps date:

0Hae:
WS1984Datum:
0Lg pws:

Not ReportedPhone ext:Not ReportedPhone:
Not ReportedLast name:Not ReportedFirst name:
PALMS WEST CHAMBER OF COMMERCEName :Not ReportedSanit seal:

DATUM 84Comment :
4504730Permit num:Not ReportedDiameter:

0Length :
0Well depth:
26.68272Latitude:
-80.26057Longitude:

Not ReportedCasing mat:ACTIVEStatus :
Non Community Public Water SystemWell type:AAH8860Fluwid:

2
WSW
0 - 1/8 Mile
Higher

FLSA70000007928FL WELLS

FLSO70000034702Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Edy OrtizReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
120Case depth:
140Well depth:
854688Y coord:
898235X coord:
0Pump depth:
30Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
WELL 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
195789Facil id:
2.53Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
GROVE MEDICAL PLAZAProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

061107-9App no:50-07670-WPermit no:

A1
East
0 - 1/8 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034702FL WELLS

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

314 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-14

50Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
254771Facil id:
.15Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
BIG BLUE WALLProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

100405-12App no:50-09385-WPermit no:

4
South
1/8 - 1/4 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034594FL WELLS

FLSO70000034696Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Edy OrtizReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
80Well depth:
854620Y coord:
898582X coord:
0Pump depth:
20Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
220267Facil id:
3Acres serv:
NURLand Use:
FARMER’S DAUGHTER GARDEN CENTERProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080131-32App no:50-08463-WPermit no:

A3
East
0 - 1/8 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034696FL WELLS

FLSA70000007928Site id:
0Pws verify:
0Pws design:
Not ReportedParcel id:

Not ReportedAgency:Not ReportedStreetside:
Not ReportedSoftware:Not ReportedOther id:
Not ReportedRes type:POTABLEPort stat:
Not ReportedAction:Not ReportedWsrp id:

155876Gps id:
155876Loc id:

LOXAHATCHEECity:33470Zipcode:
Not ReportedPostdir:BLVDSuffix:
SOUTHERNStreet:Not ReportedPrefix:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

315 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-15

B6
East
1/8 - 1/4 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034715FL WELLS

FLSO70000034687Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Edy OrtizReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
80Well depth:
854541Y coord:
898937X coord:
0Pump depth:
20Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 2Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
220268Facil id:
3Acres serv:
NURLand Use:
FARMER’S DAUGHTER GARDEN CENTERProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080131-32App no:50-08463-WPermit no:

B5
East
1/8 - 1/4 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034687FL WELLS

FLSO70000034594Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Nancy Demonstranti, P.G.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
80Case depth:
100Well depth:
853972Y coord:
898109X coord:
12Pump depth:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

316 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-16

activated carbon, granularTreatment process:inorganics removalTreatment obj:
gaseous chlorination, postTreatment process:disinfectionTreatment obj:
ozonation, postTreatment process:disinfectionTreatment obj:
IActivity code:Treatment_plantFacility type:

PLANT ID = 001Facname:
8001Facid:

IActivity code:
33470Contact zip:FLContact state:
LOXAHATCHEEContact city:Not ReportedContact address2:
1471 FOLSOM ROADContact address1:561-793-5135Contact phone:

Not ReportedContactor gname:
MS.DEEDEEContact:

PrivateOwner:TNCWSPws type:
GroundwaterSource:10Pwssvcconn:
32Pop srvd:ClosedStatus:
12099Fips county:Not ReportedZip served:
FLState served:Not ReportedCity served:

A.BREEDING ; RESEARCH CENTERPwsname:
FL4504791Pwsid:

FLState:04Epa region:

C7
NE
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FL4504791FRDS PWS

FLSO70000034715Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Alex GlebockiReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
90Case depth:
100Well depth:
854809Y coord:
899283X coord:
0Pump depth:
40Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
WellFacil name:
WELLFacil type:
109770Facil id:
1.56Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
EVERGLADES FARM EQUIPMENT COMPANYProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

010713-6App no:50-05074-WPermit no:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

317 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-17

Not ReportedUnitmeasur:0Violmeasur:
TCRRule name:
110Rule code:
MCL, Monthly (TCR)Viol name:
22Viol code:
Coliform (TCR)Contamnm:
3100Contamcd:

2000Viol fy:FLState:
SOrig cd:0105735Violoation id:

Violations Information:

12/31/2000Cmpedt:
01/01/2000Cmpbdt:0State mcl:
Not ReportedUnitmeasur:0Violmeasur:

NitratesRule name:
331Rule code:
Monitoring, RegularViol name:
03Viol code:
NitrateContamnm:
1040Contamcd:

2000Viol fy:FLState:
SOrig cd:0106486Violoation id:

Violations Information:

12/31/2000Cmpedt:
10/01/2000Cmpbdt:0State mcl:
Not ReportedUnitmeasur:0Violmeasur:

TCRRule name:
110Rule code:
Monitoring, Repeat Major (TCR)Viol name:
25Viol code:
Coliform (TCR)Contamnm:
3100Contamcd:

2000Viol fy:FLState:
SOrig cd:0106489Violoation id:

Violations Information:

03/31/2001Cmpedt:
01/01/2001Cmpbdt:0State mcl:
Not ReportedUnitmeasur:0Violmeasur:

TCRRule name:
110Rule code:
Monitoring, Routine Minor (TCR)Viol name:
24Viol code:
Coliform (TCR)Contamnm:
3100Contamcd:

2001Viol fy:FLState:
SOrig cd:0110561Violoation id:

Violations Information:

Not ReportedZipserv:FLStateserv:
Not ReportedCntyserv:LOXAHATCHEECityserv:
561-793-5135Phone:33470Zip:
FLState:LOXAHATCHEECity:

Not ReportedAdd2:
1471 FOLSOM ROADAdd1:
32Popserved:

GWPrimsrccd:TNCWSPwstypcd:
A.BREEDING ; RESEARCH CENTERName:

Location Information:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

318 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-18

Not ReportedEnf. Action:Not ReportedEnforcement Date:
0100542Violation ID:
2000-10-01 - 2000-11-30Compliance Period:
COLIFORM (TCR)Contaminant:
MCL, Monthly (TCR)Violation Type:
A.BREEDING & RESEARCH CENTSystem Name:

Not ReportedEnf. Action:Not ReportedEnforcement Date:
00V0001Violation ID:
2000-07-01 - 2000-09-30Compliance Period:
COLIFORM (TCR)Contaminant:
MCL, Monthly (TCR)Violation Type:
A.BREEDING & RESEARCH CENTSystem Name:

ENFORCEMENT INFORMATION:

Violations information not reported.

00000032Population:TreatedTreatment Class:
Not ReportedCity Served:

080 15 17Facility Longitude:26 41 10Facility Latitude:

LOXAHATCHEE,  FL 33470
1471 FOLSOM ROAD
MR.SCOTT SCHUBOT
System Owner/Responsible PartyAddressee / Facility: 

LOXAHATCHEE,  FL 33470
1471 FOLSOM ROAD
A.BREEDING & RESEARCH CENTERPWS Name:

Not ReportedDate Deactivated:Not ReportedDate Initiated:
FL4504791PWS ID:

09/30/2000Cmpedt:
07/01/2000Cmpbdt:0State mcl:
Not ReportedUnitmeasur:0Violmeasur:

TCRRule name:
110Rule code:
MCL, Monthly (TCR)Viol name:
22Viol code:
Coliform (TCR)Contamnm:
3100Contamcd:

2000Viol fy:FLState:
SOrig cd:0005608Violoation id:

Violations Information:

11/30/2000Cmpedt:
11/01/2000Cmpbdt:0State mcl:
Not ReportedUnitmeasur:0Violmeasur:

TCRRule name:
110Rule code:
MCL, Monthly (TCR)Viol name:
22Viol code:
Coliform (TCR)Contamnm:
3100Contamcd:

2000Viol fy:FLState:
SOrig cd:0100542Violoation id:

Violations Information:

10/31/2000Cmpedt:
10/01/2000Cmpbdt:0State mcl:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

319 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-19

FLSO70000034812Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Nikki CarlsonReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
LivestockWater use:

ProposedFac status:Not ReportedUse status:
60Case depth:
70Well depth:
855642Y coord:
896163X coord:
0Pump depth:
20Pump capac:
0Diameter:
JETPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
155785Facil id:
1Acres serv:
livestockLand Use:
GROOM QUARTERS HORSE STALLSProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

040719-9App no:50-06561-WPermit no:

8
WNW
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034812FL WELLS

Not ReportedEnf. Action:Not ReportedEnforcement Date:
0110561Violation ID:
2001-01-01 - 2001-03-31Compliance Period:
COLIFORM (TCR)Contaminant:
Monitoring, Routine Minor (TCR)Violation Type:
A.BREEDING & RESEARCH CENTSystem Name:

Not ReportedEnf. Action:Not ReportedEnforcement Date:
0106489Violation ID:
2000-10-01 - 2000-12-31Compliance Period:
COLIFORM (TCR)Contaminant:
Monitoring, Repeat Major (TCR)Violation Type:
A.BREEDING & RESEARCH CENTSystem Name:

Not ReportedEnf. Action:Not ReportedEnforcement Date:
0106486Violation ID:
2000-01-01 - 2000-12-31Compliance Period:
NITRATEContaminant:
Monitoring, RegularViolation Type:
A.BREEDING & RESEARCH CENTSystem Name:

ENFORCEMENT INFORMATION:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

320 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-20

33-34Secno:
Andrew SteinerReviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855759Y coord:
899929X coord:
0Pump depth:
80Pump capac:
4Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
158104Facil id:
6.7Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
PALMS WEST HOSPITALProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

091027-7App no:50-04939-WPermit no:

C10
ENE
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034822FL WELLS

FLSO70000034699Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Stephen E. BellReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
90Case depth:
100Well depth:
854631Y coord:
895858X coord:
0Pump depth:
70Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
109932Facil id:
3Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES PARKProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

010614-14App no:50-05088-WPermit no:

9
West
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034699FL WELLS

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

321 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-21

24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1590FMonloc name:
USGS-264057080151009Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D12
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237832FED USGS

FLSO70000034467Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
44Twp:
4Secno:
Kevin P. Rohrer, P.G.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
70Case depth:
90Well depth:
852525Y coord:
897588X coord:
0Pump depth:
35Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
228163Facil id:
1Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
FPL CORRIDOR AT BIG BLUEProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

090316-16App no:50-08998-WPermit no:

11
SSW
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034467FL WELLS

FLSO70000034822Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

322 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-22

24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1585Monloc name:
USGS-264057080151003Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D14
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237826FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
20Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
20Welldepth:19861101Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1590GMonloc name:
USGS-264057080151010Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D13
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237833FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
15Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
15Welldepth:19861101Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

323 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-23

D16
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237824FED USGS

1994-01-21 17.92
1995-01-24 18.52 1994-10-13 19.88
1995-07-11 17.32 1995-04-20 16.39

Date
Feet below
Surface

Feet to
Sealevel

-------------------------------------------------
Date

Feet below
Surface

Feet to
Sealevel

-------------------------------------------------

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 5

ftWellholedepth units:
20Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
20Welldepth:19861101Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Surficial Aquifer SystemFormation type:
Surficial aquifer systemAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1590AMonloc name:
USGS-264057080151004Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D15
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237827FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
110Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
110Welldepth:19861027Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

324 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-24

Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1584Monloc name:
USGS-264057080151002Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D17
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237825FED USGS

1995-01-24 17.99 1994-01-21 18.12
1995-07-11 17.00 1995-04-20 16.22

Date
Feet below
Surface

Feet to
Sealevel

-------------------------------------------------
Date

Feet below
Surface

Feet to
Sealevel

-------------------------------------------------

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 4

ftWellholedepth units:
190Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
160Welldepth:19861023Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Surficial Aquifer SystemFormation type:
Surficial aquifer systemAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1583Monloc name:
USGS-264057080151001Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

325 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-25

Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1590EMonloc name:
USGS-264057080151008Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D19
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237831FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
10Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
10Welldepth:19861101Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1590DMonloc name:
USGS-264057080151007Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D18
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237830FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
70Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
70Welldepth:19861024Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

326 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-26

Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1590CMonloc name:
USGS-264057080151006Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D21
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237829FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
15Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
15Welldepth:19861101Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
20.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.252547Longitude:
26.6828437Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1590BMonloc name:
USGS-264057080151005Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

D20
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237828FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
15Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
15Welldepth:19861101Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

327 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-27

125Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
219618Facil id:
2.5Acres serv:
NURLand Use:
JASON’S CONTAINER AND FIELD NURSERY STOCKProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080108-8App no:50-08334-WPermit no:

E23
North
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034964FL WELLS

FLSO70000034952Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Lisa J. Ullman, P.G.Reviewer:
Off-site Canal(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
856935Y coord:
898211X coord:
0Pump depth:
125Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
219620Facil id:
2.5Acres serv:
NURLand Use:
JASON’S CONTAINER AND FIELD NURSERY STOCKProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080108-8App no:50-08334-WPermit no:

E22
North
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034952FL WELLS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
18Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
18Welldepth:19861101Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

328 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-28

E25
NNE
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FLSA70000007995FL WELLS

FLSO70000034821Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33-34Secno:
Andrew SteinerReviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855759Y coord:
900213X coord:
0Pump depth:
40Pump capac:
2.5Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 2Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
158107Facil id:
6.7Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
PALMS WEST HOSPITALProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

091027-7App no:50-04939-WPermit no:

24
ENE
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034821FL WELLS

FLSO70000034964Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33Secno:
Lisa J. Ullman, P.G.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
80Case depth:
100Well depth:
857000Y coord:
898191X coord:
0Pump depth:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

329 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-29

33-34Secno:
Andrew SteinerReviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
854547Y coord:
900864X coord:
0Pump depth:
30Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 5Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
158113Facil id:
6.7Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
PALMS WEST HOSPITALProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

091027-7App no:50-04939-WPermit no:

F26
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034686FL WELLS

FLSA70000007995Site id:
0Pws verify:
0Pws design:
Not ReportedParcel id:

Not ReportedAgency:Not ReportedStreetside:
Not ReportedSoftware:Not ReportedOther id:
Not ReportedRes type:POTABLEPort stat:
Not ReportedAction:Not ReportedWsrp id:

155930Gps id:
155930Loc id:

LOXAHATCHEECity:33470Zipcode:
Not ReportedPostdir:RDSuffix:
"F"Street:Not ReportedPrefix:
Not ReportedPredir:828Number :
828 "F" RDAddress:PALM BEACHCounty:
Not ReportedProperty i:Not ReportedReq numb:
Not ReportedInsp chd:Not ReportedInsp lname:
Not ReportedInsp fname:DEPProject id:
DGPSLoc method:04-FEB-03Gps date:

0Hae:
WS1984Datum:
0Lg pws:

Not ReportedPhone ext:Not ReportedPhone:
Not ReportedLast name:Not ReportedFirst name:
ROYAL PALM BCH MOOSE LODGEName :Not ReportedSanit seal:

DATUM 84Comment :
4504278Permit num:Not ReportedDiameter:

0Length :
0Well depth:
26.69Latitude:
-80.25773Longitude:

Not ReportedCasing mat:ACTIVEStatus :
Non Community Public Water SystemWell type:AAH8889Fluwid:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

330 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-30

30Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 4Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
158111Facil id:
6.7Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
PALMS WEST HOSPITALProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

091027-7App no:50-04939-WPermit no:

G28
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034737FL WELLS

FLSO70000034783Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33-34Secno:
Andrew SteinerReviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855375Y coord:
900828X coord:
0Pump depth:
35Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 3Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
158109Facil id:
6.7Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
PALMS WEST HOSPITALProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

091027-7App no:50-04939-WPermit no:

G27
ENE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034783FL WELLS

FLSO70000034686Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

331 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-31

F30
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034680FL WELLS

FLSO70000034590Site id:
INDFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
40Rge:
43Twp:
36Secno:
Steven J. Memberg, P.G.Reviewer:
SFWMD Canal (C-51)Source:
Diversion and ImpoundmentWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
853941Y coord:
900895X coord:
0Pump depth:
25000Pump capac:
36Diameter:
AXFPump type:
3Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
35223Facil id:
21912Acres serv:
DIVLand Use:
ACME IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTProject na:
pumpage >100000/gpd.Permit typ:

060214-18App no:50-00548-WPermit no:

29
ESE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034590FL WELLS

FLSO70000034737Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33-34Secno:
Andrew SteinerReviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855020Y coord:
900905X coord:
0Pump depth:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

332 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-32

33-34Secno:
Andrew SteinerReviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
854529Y coord:
901272X coord:
0Pump depth:
30Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 7Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
158117Facil id:
6.7Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
PALMS WEST HOSPITALProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

091027-7App no:50-04939-WPermit no:

F31
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034679FL WELLS

FLSO70000034680Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
33-34Secno:
Andrew SteinerReviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
854529Y coord:
901071X coord:
0Pump depth:
30Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 6Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
158115Facil id:
6.7Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
PALMS WEST HOSPITALProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

091027-7App no:50-04939-WPermit no:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

333 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-33

0Pump capac:
0Diameter:
N/APump type:
1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
220833Facil id:
10.96Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
WELLINGTON ELEMENTARYProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080206-3App no:50-08381-WPermit no:

33
South
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034330FL WELLS

FLSO70000034559Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
44Twp:
3Secno:
Lisa J. Ullman, P.G.Reviewer:
ACME Improvement District Canal SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
853574Y coord:
901195X coord:
0Pump depth:
200Pump capac:
10Diameter:
CENPump type:
1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
42947Facil id:
2Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
HIDDEN PINESProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

000210-9App no:50-04524-WPermit no:

32
ESE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034559FL WELLS

FLSO70000034679Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

334 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-34

FLSA70000008004Site id:
0Pws verify:
0Pws design:
Not ReportedParcel id:

DOHAgency:Not ReportedStreetside:
Risk_Solo_v2Software:Not ReportedOther id:
Not ReportedRes type:POTABLEPort stat:
Not ReportedAction:Not ReportedWsrp id:

991928Gps id:
991928Loc id:

LOXAHATCHEE GROVESCity:33470Zipcode:
Not ReportedPostdir:Not ReportedSuffix:
RDStreet:Not ReportedPrefix:
EPredir:834Number :
834 E RDAddress:PALM BEACHCounty:
Not ReportedProperty i:Not ReportedReq numb:
PALM BEACHInsp chd:GONZALEZInsp lname:
ISMAELInsp fname:SUPERProject id:
GPSLoc method:01-JAN-01Gps date:

0Hae:
Not ReportedDatum:
0Lg pws:

Not ReportedPhone ext:Not ReportedPhone:
LILA GALASSOLast name:Not ReportedFirst name:
Not ReportedName :Not ReportedSanit seal:

Not ReportedComment :
Not ReportedPermit num:Not ReportedDiameter:

0Length :
0Well depth:
26.69119Latitude:
-80.26534Longitude:

Not ReportedCasing mat:ACTIVEStatus :
Private Water WellWell type:AAG4870Fluwid:

34
NW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSA70000008004FL WELLS

FLSO70000034330Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
42Rge:
44Twp:
19,20Secno:
Kevin P. Rohrer, P.G.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:abandonedUse status:
80Case depth:
110Well depth:
851319Y coord:
898148X coord:
0Pump depth:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

335 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-35

Not ReportedPredir:14165Number :
14165 COLLECTING CANAL RDAddress:PALM BEACHCounty:
Not ReportedProperty i:Not ReportedReq numb:
Not ReportedInsp chd:Not ReportedInsp lname:
Not ReportedInsp fname:SUPERProject id:
DGPSLoc method:23-AUG-00Gps date:

6.54Hae:
WS1984Datum:
0Lg pws:

Not ReportedPhone ext:Not ReportedPhone:
Not ReportedLast name:Not ReportedFirst name:
CHRIS SCHWARTZWALDERName :YesSanit seal:

Not ReportedComment :
Not ReportedPermit num:2Diameter:

40Length :
55Well depth:
26.68923Latitude:
-80.26887Longitude:

PVCCasing mat:ACTIVEStatus :
Private Water WellWell type:AAD0945Fluwid:

36
NW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSA70000007983FL WELLS

FLDGW4000005529Site id:
2Well cas 1:
123Well scr 1:
0Well scree:
0Well casin:
123Well total:
21-AUG-75Well drill:
NON-FLOWING,ACTIVELY PUMPEDWell statu:
PRIVATE DRINKING WATER WELLWell type:
NAD27Dcd datum :
MMAPCmcd coord:
0Long ss:
15Long mm:
80Long dd:
19Lat ss:
41Lat mm:
26Lat dd:
CONFINED AQUIFERWater reso:
SURFICIAL AQUIFER SYSTEMWaterbody :
Not ReportedStation al:
2.6411908016e+014Station na:
5659Pk station:

35
NE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLDGW4000005529FL WELLS

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

336 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-36

20Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
139167Facil id:
3Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
QUERCUS COURTProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

030908-9App no:50-06140-WPermit no:

38
ESE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034525FL WELLS

FLSO70000034691Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
43Rge:
42Twp:
30Secno:
Chad BrckaReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
80Case depth:
140Well depth:
854596Y coord:
901966X coord:
0Pump depth:
140Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 4618Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
225370Facil id:
9.24Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
WALGREENS PALM BEACH REGIONProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

090722-6App no:50-08820-WPermit no:

37
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034691FL WELLS

FLSA70000007983Site id:
0Pws verify:
0Pws design:
Not ReportedParcel id:

Not ReportedAgency:Not ReportedStreetside:
Not ReportedSoftware:Not ReportedOther id:
Not ReportedRes type:POTABLEPort stat:
Not ReportedAction:Not ReportedWsrp id:

291404Gps id:
291404Loc id:

LOXAHATCHCity:33470Zipcode:
Not ReportedPostdir:RDSuffix:
COLLECTING CANALStreet:Not ReportedPrefix:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

337 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-37

40
WNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237854FED USGS

FLSO70000034249Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
42Rge:
44Twp:
19,20Secno:
Kevin P. Rohrer, P.G.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
80Case depth:
110Well depth:
850706Y coord:
898149X coord:
63Pump depth:
200Pump capac:
0Diameter:
N/APump type:
2Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
219951Facil id:
10.96Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
WELLINGTON ELEMENTARYProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080206-3App no:50-08381-WPermit no:

39
South
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

FLSO70000034249FL WELLS

FLSO70000034525Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
34Secno:
Jennifer Phillips, P.G.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
70Case depth:
90Well depth:
853210Y coord:
901715X coord:
0Pump depth:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

338 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-38

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

Not ReportedWellholedepth units:
Not ReportedWellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
300Welldepth:19730101Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Surficial aquifer systemAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

5.Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
18.00Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
Not ReportedSourcemap scale:-80.2469914Longitude:
26.6878436Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB - 680Monloc name:
USGS-264115080145001Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

41
ENE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237874FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

Not ReportedWellholedepth units:
Not ReportedWellholedepth:Not ReportedWelldepth units:
Not ReportedWelldepth:Not ReportedConstruction date:

Unconfined single aquiferAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:Not ReportedVert coord refsys:
Not ReportedVertcollection method:
Not ReportedVert accmeasure units:

Not ReportedVertacc measure val:Not ReportedVert measure units:
Not ReportedVert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
UnknownHoriz Acc measure units:UnknownHoriz Acc measure:
Not ReportedSourcemap scale:-80.2717142Longitude:
26.6853435Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB - 300Monloc name:
USGS-264106080161901Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

339 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-39

Not ReportedSecno:
Thushari LiyanageReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
Public water supplyWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
80Well depth:
858963Y coord:
896444X coord:
0Pump depth:
5Pump capac:
0Diameter:
JETPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
258214Facil id:
3Acres serv:
livestockLand Use:
R S C FProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

101022-5App no:50-09587-WPermit no:

H43
NNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000035192FL WELLS

FLSO70000034720Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
34Secno:
Thais SpenceReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
80Case depth:
100Well depth:
854857Y coord:
902470X coord:
0Pump depth:
85Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
IW-1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
25901Facil id:
3.85Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
CRESTWOOD SQUAREProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

970707-9App no:50-03894-WPermit no:

42
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034720FL WELLS

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

340 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-40

5Pump capac:
0Diameter:
JETPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
258214Facil id:
3Acres serv:
livestockLand Use:
R S C FProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

101022-5App no:50-09587-WPermit no:

H45
NNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000035194FL WELLS

FLSO70000035193Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
43Rge:
41Twp:
Not ReportedSecno:
Thushari LiyanageReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
80Well depth:
858963Y coord:
896444X coord:
0Pump depth:
5Pump capac:
0Diameter:
JETPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
258214Facil id:
3Acres serv:
livestockLand Use:
R S C FProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

101022-5App no:50-09587-WPermit no:

H44
NNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000035193FL WELLS

FLSO70000035192Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
43Rge:
41Twp:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

341 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-41

I47
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000035262FL WELLS

FLSO70000034794Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
34Secno:
Nancy Demonstranti, P.G.Reviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855485Y coord:
902618X coord:
0Pump depth:
200Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
230698Facil id:
14.97Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
GRANDVIEWProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

090724-11App no:50-09151-WPermit no:

46
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034794FL WELLS

FLSO70000035194Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
43Rge:
41Twp:
Not ReportedSecno:
Thushari LiyanageReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
LivestockWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
80Well depth:
858963Y coord:
896444X coord:
0Pump depth:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

342 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-42

28Secno:
Ceyda Polatel, Ph.D., P.E.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
80Case depth:
100Well depth:
859465Y coord:
898200X coord:
2Pump depth:
125Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
254146Facil id:
4Acres serv:
NURLand Use:
MAURICE’S NURSERY- F ROADProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080130-34App no:50-08467-WPermit no:

I48
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000035264FL WELLS

FLSO70000035262Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
28Secno:
Ceyda Polatel, Ph.D., P.E.Reviewer:
On-site Lake(s)/Pond(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
859455Y coord:
898210X coord:
0Pump depth:
125Pump capac:
4Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
254145Facil id:
4Acres serv:
NURLand Use:
MAURICE’S NURSERY- F ROADProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080130-34App no:50-08467-WPermit no:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

343 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-43

Not ReportedLast name:Not ReportedFirst name:
VCA WELLINGTON ANIMAL HOSPITALName :YesSanit seal:

Not ReportedComment :
4504534Permit num:2Diameter:

80Length :
90Well depth:
26.68369Latitude:
-80.27419Longitude:

PVCCasing mat:ACTIVEStatus :
Non Community Public Water SystemWell type:AAD0946Fluwid:

J50
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSA70000007940FL WELLS

FLSA70000008047Site id:
0Pws verify:
0Pws design:
Not ReportedParcel id:

DOHAgency:Not ReportedStreetside:
Risk_Solo_v2Software:Not ReportedOther id:
Not ReportedRes type:POTABLEPort stat:
Not ReportedAction:Not ReportedWsrp id:

991930Gps id:
991930Loc id:

LOXAHATCHEE GROVESCity:33470Zipcode:
Not ReportedPostdir:Not ReportedSuffix:
RDStreet:Not ReportedPrefix:
EPredir:1300Number :
1300 E RDAddress:PALM BEACHCounty:
Not ReportedProperty i:Not ReportedReq numb:
PALM BEACHInsp chd:GONZALEZInsp lname:
ISMAELInsp fname:SUPERProject id:
GPSLoc method:01-JAN-01Gps date:

0Hae:
Not ReportedDatum:
0Lg pws:

Not ReportedPhone ext:Not ReportedPhone:
BILL LOUDALast name:Not ReportedFirst name:
Not ReportedName :Not ReportedSanit seal:

Not ReportedComment :
Not ReportedPermit num:Not ReportedDiameter:

0Length :
0Well depth:
26.69595Latitude:
-80.2629Longitude:

Not ReportedCasing mat:ACTIVEStatus :
Private Water WellWell type:AAG4875Fluwid:

49
NNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSA70000008047FL WELLS

FLSO70000035264Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

344 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-44

FLSO70000034339Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
43Rge:
42Twp:
5, 16, 18Secno:
Paulette M. Glebocki, P.G.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
50Case depth:
60Well depth:
851411Y coord:
901781X coord:
15Pump depth:
20Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
14Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
109359Facil id:
7.5Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
SUNTRUST BANKProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

010606-9App no:50-05053-WPermit no:

51
SE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034339FL WELLS

FLSA70000007940Site id:
0Pws verify:
7000Pws design:
Not ReportedParcel id:

Not ReportedAgency:Not ReportedStreetside:
Not ReportedSoftware:Not ReportedOther id:
Not ReportedRes type:POTABLEPort stat:
Not ReportedAction:Not ReportedWsrp id:

291406Gps id:
291406Loc id:

LOXAHATCHEECity:33470Zipcode:
Not ReportedPostdir:BLVDSuffix:
SOUTHERNStreet:Not ReportedPrefix:
Not ReportedPredir:14471Number :
14471 SOUTHERN BLVDAddress:PALM BEACHCounty:
Not ReportedProperty i:Not ReportedReq numb:
Not ReportedInsp chd:Not ReportedInsp lname:
Not ReportedInsp fname:SUPERProject id:
DGPSLoc method:24-AUG-00Gps date:

8.91Hae:
WS1984Datum:
0Lg pws:

Not ReportedPhone ext:Not ReportedPhone:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

345 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-45

32Secno:
Vincent MiglioreReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
100Well depth:
855957Y coord:
893163X coord:
0Pump depth:
230Pump capac:
0Diameter:
ELTPump type:
1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
213001Facil id:
12Acres serv:
agricultureLand Use:
BCD FARMS INCORPORATEDProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

070411-16App no:50-07852-WPermit no:

L53
WNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034852FL WELLS

FLSO70000034638Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
34Secno:
Donna L. Moscone, P.G.Reviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
56Case depth:
60Well depth:
854375Y coord:
903033X coord:
0Pump depth:
30Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
W-1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
116063Facil id:
.41Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
CRESTWOOD SQUARE OUTPARCEL NUMBER 3Project na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

020124-17App no:50-05329-WPermit no:

K52
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034638FL WELLS

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

346 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-46

Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
17.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.2747699Longitude:
26.6839547Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1567Monloc name:
USGS-264101080163001Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

J55
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237838FED USGS

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 0

ftWellholedepth units:
164Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
164Welldepth:19860806Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
17.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.2747699Longitude:
26.6839547Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1568Monloc name:
USGS-264101080163002Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

J54
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237839FED USGS

FLSO70000034852Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

347 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-47

24000Sourcemap scale:-80.2747699Longitude:
26.6839547Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1569Monloc name:
USGS-264101080163003Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

J57
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237840FED USGS

1987-11-17 12.44

Date
Feet below
Surface

Feet to
Sealevel

-------------------------------------------------

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 1

ftWellholedepth units:
160Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
156Welldepth:19860806Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
17.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:
24000Sourcemap scale:-80.2747699Longitude:
26.6839547Latitude:Not ReportedContrib drainagearea units:
Not ReportedContrib drainagearea:Not ReportedDrainagearea Units:
Not ReportedDrainagearea value:03090202Huc code:

Not ReportedMonloc desc:
WellMonloc type:
PB -1570Monloc name:
USGS-264101080163004Monloc Identifier:
USGS Florida Water Science CenterFormal name:
USGS-FLOrg. Identifier:

J56
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

USGS40000237841FED USGS

1987-11-17 12.97

Date
Feet below
Surface

Feet to
Sealevel

-------------------------------------------------

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 1

ftWellholedepth units:
190Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
190Welldepth:19860806Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

348 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-48

L59
WNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034815FL WELLS

FLSO70000034814Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
32Secno:
Barbara FronczekReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
Public water supplyWater use:

AFac status:to-be-plugged-and-abandonedUse status:
35Case depth:
40Well depth:
855648Y coord:
893059X coord:
0Pump depth:
0Pump capac:
0Diameter:
JETPump type:
1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
102776Facil id:
9Acres serv:
agricultureLand Use:
GORDONS NURSERYProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

001031-5App no:50-04704-WPermit no:

L58
WNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034814FL WELLS

1987-11-17 12.17

Date
Feet below
Surface

Feet to
Sealevel

-------------------------------------------------

Ground-water levels, Number of Measurements: 1

ftWellholedepth units:
160Wellholedepth:ftWelldepth units:
150Welldepth:19860806Construction date:

Not ReportedAquifer type:
Not ReportedFormation type:
Not ReportedAquifername:

USCountrycode:NGVD29Vert coord refsys:
Interpolated from topographic mapVertcollection method:
feetVert accmeasure units:

1Vertacc measure val:feetVert measure units:
17.Vert measure val:NAD83Horiz coord refsys:

Interpolated from mapHoriz Collection method:
secondsHoriz Acc measure units:1Horiz Acc measure:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

349 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-49

32Secno:
Barbara FronczekReviewer:
Unnamed CanalSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855648Y coord:
893059X coord:
0Pump depth:
160Pump capac:
3Diameter:
CENPump type:
1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
102782Facil id:
9Acres serv:
agricultureLand Use:
GORDONS NURSERYProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

001031-5App no:50-04704-WPermit no:

L60
WNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034816FL WELLS

FLSO70000034815Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
32Secno:
Barbara FronczekReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
Public water supplyWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
55Case depth:
70Well depth:
855648Y coord:
893059X coord:
0Pump depth:
20Pump capac:
0Diameter:
JETPump type:
2Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
102781Facil id:
9Acres serv:
agricultureLand Use:
GORDONS NURSERYProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

001031-5App no:50-04704-WPermit no:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

350 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-50

50000Pump capac:
42Diameter:
AXFPump type:
Pump 1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
115446Facil id:
8255.56Acres serv:
DIVLand Use:
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICTProject na:
pumpage >100000/gpd.Permit typ:

070501-15App no:50-05285-WPermit no:

M62
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034772FL WELLS

FLSO70000034777Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
34Secno:
Nancy Demonstranti, P.G.Reviewer:
On-site Lake(s)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855339Y coord:
903132X coord:
0Pump depth:
200Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
Pump 2Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
230699Facil id:
14.97Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
GRANDVIEWProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

090724-11App no:50-09151-WPermit no:

61
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034777FL WELLS

FLSO70000034816Site id:
GPFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

351 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-51

K64
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034620FL WELLS

FLSO70000034773Site id:
INDFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
40Rge:
43Twp:
12,13,24,25,35,36Secno:
Nancy Demonstranti, P.G.Reviewer:
SFWMD Canal (C-51)Source:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855221Y coord:
892879X coord:
0Pump depth:
50000Pump capac:
42Diameter:
AXFPump type:
Pump 1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
115446Facil id:
8255.56Acres serv:
DIVLand Use:
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICTProject na:
pumpage >100000/gpd.Permit typ:

070501-15App no:50-05285-WPermit no:

M63
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034773FL WELLS

FLSO70000034772Site id:
INDFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
40Rge:
43Twp:
12,13,24,25,35,36Secno:
Nancy Demonstranti, P.G.Reviewer:
SFWMD Canal (C-51)Source:
MonitorWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
855221Y coord:
892879X coord:
0Pump depth:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

352 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-52

32Secno:
Priyantha LiyanageReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
75Case depth:
80Well depth:
854689Y coord:
892792X coord:
20Pump depth:
20Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
9234Facil id:
1Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
YEES CORPProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

110314-6App no:50-02682-WPermit no:

J65
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034706FL WELLS

FLSO70000034620Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
34-36Secno:
Vincent MiglioreReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
90Case depth:
120Well depth:
854178Y coord:
903206X coord:
42Pump depth:
200Pump capac:
0Diameter:
CENPump type:
Well 5Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
224713Facil id:
8.9Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
S R 80 FROM FOREST HILL BLVD TO WEST OF S R 7Project na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

080709-7App no:50-05462-WPermit no:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

353 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-53

50Pump capac:
0Diameter:
#N/APump type:
WELL 1Facil name:
WELLFacil type:
192151Facil id:
1Acres serv:
agricultureLand Use:
WEST D ROAD LOTProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

060501-7App no:50-07368-WPermit no:

M67
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSO70000034782FL WELLS

FLSO70000034136Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
44Twp:
4Secno:
Donna L. Moscone, P.G.Reviewer:
Village of Wellington Canal SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ExistingFac status:PrimaryUse status:
0Case depth:
0Well depth:
849459Y coord:
898599X coord:
0Pump depth:
35Pump capac:
2Diameter:
CENPump type:
P-1Facil name:
PUMPFacil type:
134668Facil id:
3.46Acres serv:
landscapeLand Use:
TEMPLE BETH TORAHProject na:
pumpage of <100000/gpd.Permit typ:

030523-7App no:50-06026-WPermit no:

66
South
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

FLSO70000034136FL WELLS

FLSO70000034706Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

354 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-54

FLSA70000007979Site id:
0Pws verify:
0Pws design:
Not ReportedParcel id:

Not ReportedAgency:Not ReportedStreetside:
Not ReportedSoftware:Not ReportedOther id:
Not ReportedRes type:POTABLEPort stat:
Not ReportedAction:Not ReportedWsrp id:

291396Gps id:
291396Loc id:

LOXAHATCHEECity:33470Zipcode:
Not ReportedPostdir:RDSuffix:
DStreet:Not ReportedPrefix:
Not ReportedPredir:600Number :
600 D RDAddress:PALM BEACHCounty:
Not ReportedProperty i:Not ReportedReq numb:
Not ReportedInsp chd:Not ReportedInsp lname:
Not ReportedInsp fname:SUPERProject id:
DGPSLoc method:23-AUG-00Gps date:

13.35Hae:
WS1984Datum:
0Lg pws:

Not ReportedPhone ext:Not ReportedPhone:
Not ReportedLast name:Not ReportedFirst name:
DIVISION OF FORESTRYName :YesSanit seal:

Not ReportedComment :
Not ReportedPermit num:2Diameter:

90Length :
110Well depth:
26.68798Latitude:
-80.27447Longitude:

PVCCasing mat:ACTIVEStatus :
Non Transient/Non Community Water SystemWell type:AAD0941Fluwid:

68
WNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSA70000007979FL WELLS

FLSO70000034782Site id:
GP MINFee catego:
Palm BeachCnty code:
41Rge:
43Twp:
32Secno:
Adrienne CharbonneauReviewer:
Surficial Aquifer SystemSource:
IrrigationWater use:

ProposedFac status:PrimaryUse status:
80Case depth:
100Well depth:
855316Y coord:
892814X coord:
0Pump depth:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

355 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-55

FLSA70000008079Site id:
0Pws verify:
0Pws design:
Not ReportedParcel id:

DOHAgency:NoStreetside:
Well_Solo_v2Software:Not ReportedOther id:
OWNERRes type:POTABLEPort stat:
UNFILTEREDAction:500046501Wsrp id:

980260Gps id:
980260Loc id:

LOXAHATCHEE GROVESCity:33470Zipcode:
Not ReportedPostdir:RDSuffix:
EStreet:Not ReportedPrefix:
Not ReportedPredir:1350Number :
1350 E RDAddress:PALM BEACHCounty:
Not ReportedProperty i:Not ReportedReq numb:
PALM BEACHInsp chd:GONZALEZInsp lname:
ISMAELInsp fname:SUPERProject id:
DGPS OFFSETLoc method:28-JAN-09Gps date:

-7.7Hae:
Not ReportedDatum:
0Lg pws:

Not ReportedPhone ext:Not ReportedPhone:
JOHNSONLast name:JOHNFirst name:
Not ReportedName :YesSanit seal:

Not ReportedComment :
Not ReportedPermit num:2Diameter:

0Length :
0Well depth:
26.69731Latitude:
-80.26242Longitude:

PVCCasing mat:ACTIVEStatus :
Private Water WellWell type:AAG4877Fluwid:

69
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

FLSA70000008079FL WELLS

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

356 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TC4198837.2s   Page A-56

Not ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedBasement
0%1%99%0.650 pCi/LLiving Area

% >20 pCi/L% 4-20 pCi/L% <4 pCi/LAverage ActivityArea

Number of sites tested: 104

Federal Area Radon Information for PALM BEACH COUNTY, FL

             : Zone 3 indoor average level < 2 pCi/L.
             : Zone 2 indoor average level >= 2 pCi/L and <= 4 pCi/L.
     Note: Zone 1 indoor average level > 4 pCi/L.

Federal EPA Radon Zone for PALM BEACH County:  3 

Mandatory Residential Database0.0533470
Mandatory Non-Residential Database0.01833470
Certified Residential Database0.0833470

___________________________________________
Data Source% of  sites>4pCi/LTotal BuildingsZip

Radon Test Results                                                                                 

State Database: FL Radon                                                                           

AREA RADON INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS
RADON

®

357 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model (DEM)
Source: United States Geologic Survey
EDR acquired the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model in 2002 and updated it in 2006. The 7.5 minute DEM corresponds
to the USGS 1:24,000- and 1:25,000-scale topographic quadrangle maps. The DEM provides elevation data
with consistent elevation units and projection.

Scanned Digital USGS 7.5’ Topographic Map (DRG)
Source: United States Geologic Survey
A digital raster graphic (DRG) is a scanned image of a U.S. Geological Survey topographic map. The map images
are made by scanning published paper maps on high-resolution scanners. The raster image
is georeferenced and fit to the Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) projection.

HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

Flood Zone Data: This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR in 2003 & 2011 from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  Data depicts 100-year and 500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA.

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005 and 2010 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

State Wetlands Data: Wetlands Inventory
Source: Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone: 850-245-8238

HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

AQUIFLOW       Information SystemR

Source:  EDR proprietary database of groundwater flow information
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System (AIS) to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted to regulatory authorities at select sites and has
extracted the date of the report, hydrogeologically determined groundwater flow direction and depth to water table
information.

GEOLOGIC INFORMATION

Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit
Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - A digital
representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).

STATSGO: State Soil Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Services
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) leads the national
Conservation Soil Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil
survey information for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation
of soil patterns in a landscape. Soil maps for STATSGO are compiled by generalizing more detailed (SSURGO)
soil survey maps.

SSURGO: Soil Survey Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS)
Telephone:  800-672-5559
SSURGO is the most detailed level of mapping done by the Natural Resources Conservation Services, mapping
scales generally range from 1:12,000 to 1:63,360. Field mapping methods using national standards are used to
construct the soil maps in the Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) database. SSURGO digitizing duplicates the
original soil survey maps. This level of mapping is designed for use by landowners, townships and county
natural resource planning and management.

TC4198837.2s     Page PSGR-1

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED

358 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

FEDERAL WATER WELLS

PWS: Public Water Systems
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Public Water System data from the Federal Reporting Data System.  A PWS is any water system which provides water to at

least 25 people for at least 60 days annually.  PWSs provide water from wells, rivers and other sources.

PWS ENF: Public Water Systems Violation and Enforcement Data
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Violation and Enforcement data for Public Water Systems from the Safe Drinking Water Information System (SDWIS) after

August 1995.  Prior to August 1995, the data came from the Federal Reporting Data System (FRDS).

USGS Water Wells: USGS National Water Inventory System (NWIS)
This database contains descriptive information on sites where the USGS collects or has collected data on surface
water and/or groundwater. The groundwater data includes information on wells, springs, and other sources of groundwater.

OTHER STATE DATABASE INFORMATION

RADON

State Database: FL Radon
Source: Department of Health
Telephone: 850-245-4288
Zip Code Based Radon Data

Area Radon Information
Source: USGS
Telephone:  703-356-4020
The National Radon Database has been developed by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA) and is a compilation of the EPA/State Residential Radon Survey and the National Residential Radon Survey.
The study covers the years 1986 - 1992. Where necessary data has been supplemented by information collected at
private sources such as universities and research institutions.

EPA Radon Zones
Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-356-4020
Sections 307 & 309 of IRAA directed EPA to list and identify areas of U.S. with the potential for elevated indoor
radon levels.

OTHER

Airport Landing Facilities: Private and public use landing facilities
Source:  Federal Aviation Administration, 800-457-6656

Epicenters: World earthquake epicenters, Richter 5 or greater
Source:  Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

Earthquake Fault Lines: The fault lines displayed on EDR’s Topographic map are digitized quaternary faultlines, prepared
in 1975 by the United State Geological Survey

TC4198837.2s     Page PSGR-2

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED

359 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2010 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC4198837.2s     Page PSGR-3

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED

360 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

9.3  Records Of Communication

361 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Certified Sanborn® Map Report

Central  PBC Chamber of Commerce Bldg

13901 Southern Boulevard

Loxahatchee, FL 33470

Inquiry Number: 4198837.5

February 04, 2015

362 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Certified Sanborn® Map Report 2/04/15

Site Name:
Central  PBC Chamber of
13901 Southern Boulevard
Loxahatchee, FL 33470

Client Name:
Nutting Env of Fl, Inc.
1310 Neptune Drive
Boynton Beach, FL 33426

Contact: Lisa RomanoEDR Inquiry # 4198837.5

The Sanborn Library has been searched by EDR and maps covering the target property location as provided by Nutting
Env of Fl, Inc. were identified for the years listed below. The Sanborn Library is the largest, most complete collection of
fire insurance maps. The collection includes maps from Sanborn, Bromley, Perris & Browne, Hopkins, Barlow, and
others.  Only Environmental Data Resources Inc. (EDR) is authorized to grant rights for commercial reproduction of
maps by the Sanborn Library LLC, the copyright holder for the collection.  Results can be authenticated by visiting
www.edrnet.com/sanborn.

The Sanborn Library is continually enhanced with newly identified map archives. This report accesses all maps in the
collection as of the day this report was generated.

Certified Sanborn Results:

Site Name: Central  PBC Chamber of Commerce Bldg
Address: 13901 Southern Boulevard
City, State, Zip: Loxahatchee, FL 33470
Cross Street:
P.O. # Town of Loxahatchee 7411.1
Project: Town of Loxahatchee 7411.1
Certification # A279-4879-A25D

Library of Congress

University Publications of America

EDR Private Collection

The Sanborn Library LLC Since 1866™

The Sanborn Library includes more than 1.2 million
fire insurance maps from Sanborn, Bromley, Perris &
Browne, Hopkins, Barlow and others which track
historical property usage in approximately 12,000
American cities and towns.  Collections searched:

Sanborn® Library search results
Certification # A279-4879-A25D

UNMAPPED PROPERTY
This report certifies that the complete holdings of the Sanborn
Library, LLC collection have been searched based on client
supplied target property information, and fire insurance maps
covering the target property were not found.

Limited Permission To Make Copies
Nutting Env of Fl, Inc. (the client) is permitted to make up to FIVE photocopies of this Sanborn Map transmittal and each fire insurance map
accompanying this report solely for the limited use of its customer. No one other than the client is authorized to make copies. Upon request made
directly to an EDR Account Executive, the client may be permitted to make a limited number of additional photocopies. This permission is
conditioned upon compliance by the client, its customer and their agents with EDR's copyright policy; a copy of which is available upon request.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark notice
This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Environmental Data Resources, Inc. It cannot be
concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and surrounding properties does not exist from other sources. NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED, IS MADE WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE
MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. ALL
RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF
ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE, ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OF DAMAGE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL,
INCIDENTAL CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY
LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID FOR THIS REPORT. Purchaser accepts this Report "AS IS". Any analyses, estimates, ratings, environmental risk
levels or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to provide, nor should they be interpreted as providing
any facts regarding, or prediction or forecast of, any environmental risk for any property. Only a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment performed by an
environmental professional can provide information regarding the environmental risk for any property. Additionally, the information provided in this Report is not to be
construed as legal advice.

Copyright 2015 by Environmental Data Resources, Inc. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any media or format, in whole or in part, of any report or map of
Environmental Data Resources, Inc., or its affiliates, is prohibited without prior written permission.

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates. All other trademarks used herein are
the property of their respective owners.

4198837 - 5    page 2
363 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

9.4  ASTM Questionnaire 
 

364 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



365 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



366 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



367 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



368 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



369 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



370 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



371 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.a. 

MEETING DATE: 2/17/2015 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY: William F. Underwood, II 
 
SUBJECT: Manager Update 

 
1.BACKGROUND/HISTORY 

 
Problem Statement:  The Town Council requests updates on activities and issues. 

 
Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with an update. 

 
The Council requested they be updated on the various issues facing the Town, it is noted that 
items in this category be provided as part of a written report. 

 
 
 
2.CURRENT ACTIVITY 

 
• Trails: At the Town Council meeting of 11/18/2014, the Council approved the Town 

drafted ILA for funding the trails, maintenance easements, and roads.  The ILA was 
transmitted to the LGWCD on Wednesday, 11/19/2014. 

o Subsequent to the ILA transmittal, the Town Attorney, and staff met with the 
LGWCD attorney and administrator on Friday, 11/21/2014, at the office of the 
District’s attorney. 

o Substantial progress was made.  The Town attorney provided the District’s 
attorney with a summary of the discussion points to be incorporated within a 
jointly prepared ILA. 

o On or about December 3, the Town received comments from the attorney for the 
LGWCD. 

O On December 9, the Town Attorney and I were reviewing the points of the 
agreement. 

o This working group will labor to complete the agreement and present to the 
respective legislative boards as soon as practical. 

o As of December 30, 2014, the Town is on hold pending a response from LGWCD. 
o Recent discussion on January 13, 2015 with the Administrator indicates the Town 

should be reviewing a response soon. 
o On January 23, 2015, the Town received an ILA from the LGWCD without first 

agreeing to the initial discussion positions tentatively agreed upon at the 
November 21, 2014, meeting.  We requested the LGWCD provide a document 
which can be edited and changes tracked instead of the document provided which 
would the Town can use instead of having the Town Attorney re-type the 
agreement at additional cost. 

o Subsequent to receipt and request, on January 23, 2015, the Town was informed the 
LGWCD was incorporating a few more tweaks to the agreement.  Upon completion, 

372 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



they will send the document to the Town. 
o February 3, 2915, the Town received another agreement from the LGWCD, without 

confirmation regarding the original agreed upon discussion points outlined at the 
11/21/2014 meeting between the Town and district staff.  Attorney and staff did not 
have sufficient time to review the document before the district meeting on 2/10/2015. 

 
• Building:  Discussions with Atlantic Land Companies regarding their site plan occurred and 

this item is scheduled for the P&Z review in December. 
o The site plan was approved by the LPA at its December meeting. 
o Set for the January 20, 2015 agenda 
o Town Council public hearing on this item has been continued to February 17, 2015. 

 
• Building:  Update to work related to the Chamber of Commerce building was included in the 

November 18, 2014 agenda.  The Council instructed staff to begin negotiations with the 
Chamber of Commerce staff. 

o Staff has entered this discussion, the Town Attorney and staff had a teleconference to 
draft a contract for the acquisition. 

o A teleconference was held on 11/24/2014 with Wayne Burns, Executive Director of 
the Chamber. 

o Staff is attempting to finalize negotiations and should be able to complete the 
process and present a contract for purchase at the 12/16/2014 Council meeting. 

o On December 4, 2014, staff and Vice Mayor Jarriel attended the Tri-cities League BBQ 
in Belle Glade and discussed the subject with PBC Commission and staff. 

o December 9th, the Town Attorney and  I received a revised contract from the 
Chamber of Commerce which included significant changes, some of substance, to the 
contract the Town submitted. 

o Due to some of the items included in the revised contract, I feel it is necessary to delay 
the contract consideration until the January meeting. 

o Staff continues to be in discussions with various parties on this subject.   Staff 
members and Town Attorney have been actively pursuing a positive response from 
the County regarding a donation of the land. 

o Dialogue between County and Town staff indicates that an offer by the Town to 
purchase the land for $20,000 would not be a recommended denial but a request for 
the County Commission to provide direction to County staff in this matter. 

o Staff has submitted a letter to Robert Weisman, County Administrator, advising the 
Town continues to affirm the position of receiving a waiver on the cost of the land; 
however, pursuant to Council direction, staff negotiated with the County staff and I 
advised the Town is prepared to offer $20,000 to purchase the property from the County 
and agree to the stipulation of the sale that (1) the property use will remain public 
purpose and (2) the County retains 75% of mineral rights for any possible future 
determination . 

o On January 26, 2015, Mayor Browning and I met with County Commissioner 
McKinley to discuss the agenda item and the Town’s willingness to meet the 
stipulations and pay $20,000 for the land.   It is my understanding, the Commissioner is 
agreed to move the item on the February 3, 2015, agenda. 

o On February 3, 2015, the Palm Beach County Commission, on a motion from 
Commissioner McKinlay, authorized the sale of the Chamber land to the Town for 
$20,000. 

o That evening at the Town Council meeting of February 3, 2015, the Town Council 
ratified the purchase of the land from Palm Beach County with stipulations.  The 
Council also approved engaging a firm to perform a Phase 1 environmental assessment 
on the property and engaging a surveyor to survey the property.  Both actions were 

373 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



taken in order to affirm the property is clear of any hazardous material and confirmation 
of the survey provided by PBC. 

o February 6, 2015, Town Attorney, staff, and Chamber attorney and staff finalized an 
agreement for sale of the building for a price of $460,000.  The agreement will be 
considered for action at the 2/17/2015 Council meeting. 

 
• Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town for 

the funding of the traffic light at Okeechobee Boulevard and D Road. 
o A discussion with Minto’s attorney on December 29, 2014, indicated Palm Beach 

County would agree for the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement 
which may exclude the County. 

o No activity on this item as of January 14, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of January 26, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of February 10, 2015. 
 

• Building:  Staff had a meeting with the Day property representative to preliminary discuss the 
prospective site plan for the property on Tuesday, December 9.  The meeting was to review site 
plan requirements and process 

o We reviewed the site plan submission requirements 
o Discussed the site plan specifically 

 addressing conditions of approval 
 perimeter landscaping buffer requirements 
 horse trail potential 

o Timing of submittal and hearings 
 PBC manages traffic related issues and may need to be at meetings 
 LGWCD to affirm positive outfall for drainage 
 Interconnection to westerly property discussion 
 Set RETGAC meeting for January 2015 
 P&Z meeting for January 2015 
 About March present to Town Council. 

o No Activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting. 
o On 1/12/2015, staff and Mr. Lipp, met with representatives reviewing Rural Vista  

guidelines assisting the representatives determine the guidelines. 
o This item is due to be presented to the LPA and RETGAC committees jointly at their 

February 19, 2015, meeting. 
 

• Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, and 
Ken Mudd, Resource Professional IV, representing South Florida Water Management District 
(SFWMD) in reference to a permit the SFWMD issued in 1982 for a road and swale 
improvement on 43rd.  As I understand the purpose of the meeting, SFWMD was looking to 
determine whether or not the Town would assist them in correcting a deficiency in the road 
and swale drainage system on the road.  The Town will be contacted in the future regarding the 
next step to be taken to correct the problem. 

o No activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting. 
o No activity from SFWMD representative as of 1/14/2015. 
o This office received communication from SFWMD regarding their internal work to 

plan their path forward on January 15, 2015.  Upon completing their planning effort, 
they will be in touch with staff. 

o No activity since 1/15/2015 to 2/11/1015. 
 

• Roads:  Negotiations continue for B Road improvements which will go from Southern 
Boulevard to Okeechobee Boulevard. 

374 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



o Staff was working toward holding the second hearing  on  an  ordinance  in 
November to provide appropriate zoning classification to the involved parcels. 

o Initially, staff worked to have this item tentatively move forward for the December 
2, 2014 Council Meeting. 
 This effort is being moved to a January timeframe. 

o Town Attorney and I met with the working group on Friday 11/21/2014 in West Palm 
Beach.   Significant discussion occurred and the Town Attorney and I reiterated the 
Town Council position that no funding will come from the Town for this improvement. 

o The LGWCD will be providing necessary easement for this road prior to the 
project initiation. 

o Another meeting was held on 12/30/2014 in preparation of a January approval 
meeting. There continue to be funding issues to be resolved in order to protect the 
Town from incurring any cost. 
o A  draft  agreement  is  presented  and  currently  under  review  by  the  Town’s 

Attorney, Management, and Engineer as of 1/14/2015. 
o All the parties are working to have at least one more meeting which includes legal, 

and engineering to make sure the information is accurately reflect and understood 
by all parties.   This meeting is scheduled for the week of February 2, 2015.   If 
agreed, this item should appear on the February 17, 2015 agenda for Council 
consideration. 

 
• Roads:  Speed hump removal is being investigated as to the methodology and cost of 

eliminating those traffic control devices to meet the Town’s distance specifications. 
 
• Drainage:  Several months ago, staff presented the Council with an issue regarding 

FEMA flood plain mapping where the question before the Town Council is if they wanted 
to undertake a similar program as the Village of Wellington did to remove the residents 
property from the flood plain.   

 
The discussion provided several positions regarding FEMA mapping, the ability of the 
Town to enter the National Flood Insurance Program, with discussion ranging from the 
position that flooding is an individual problem to a question of what is the impact on the 
Town land mass and number of families affected.   
 
Staff has instructed a town engineer to provide the factual data needed by this office and 
Town Council in order to make a determination of the next step to take regarding the 
FEMA flood plain analysis. Specifically, we are asking the following questions: 
 

• How much land mass is negatively affected  
• Number of families impacted  

 
• Building – Action Item:  Update of work to prepare the Chamber building to become the Town 

of Loxahatchee Groves Town Hall 
 

o In an effort to provide as smooth a transition as possible to the new Town Hall, this 
office has begun preliminary work to initiate services for the location such as: 

 
 Establish FPL account 
 Establish water and sewer account with Palm Beach County 
 Establish solid waste removal 
 Establish an account with Suncom, State of Florida telecommunications 
 Transfer ATT lines while Suncom gets established 

375 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Transfer Comcast cable 
 Prepare building with interior painting 
 Prepare for a moving company to relocate offices 
 Approval of Termination Notice to YEE’s Corporation – Lease Agreement for 

Town offices 
 

Action Item: Motion to authorize staff to take necessary actions to make the move to 
Town Hall. 

 
 
• Building – Action Item:  Town Staff has notified Mr. Yee of the Town’s intention to move 

from its current location in the next few months, if the Town Council approves the acquisition 
for the land and Chamber Building.  Staff also submitted a letter to Mr. Yee, attached, advising 
him of the Town’s intent, and respectfully request the Town Council to ratify the letter.  

 
 Action Item:  Motion to ratify letter submitted by town staff to Mr. Yee terminating the 
 existing lease contract. 
 
3.ATTACHMENTS 

 Letter to Mr. Yee 
 
4.FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 
Not applicable. 

 
5.RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Motion to receive and file report. 

376 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



377 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



District 15 Loxahatchee Groves 

Monthly Report:  January, 2015 

       

   
Calls for Service  
(self-generated) 

Monthly 

Business/Residence Checks 95 
Traffic Stops 35 
Dispatched calls 189 
Total 319 

 
Traffic Summary 

 
Monthly 

Warnings 23 

Citations 12 

Totals 35 

Summary: During the month, D15 deputies handled (319) calls for service.  30% of calls for 
service were self-generated.  
 
Part I Crimes Case #’s  Monthly 
Murder 0 
Sexual Assault 0 
Robbery 0 
Aggravated Assault 3 
Burglary 7 
Theft 1 
Motor Vehicle Theft 0 
Arson 0 
Total 12 
   
Summary:  There were six (6) burglaries, and one (1) theft reported last month.   

Burglary:  

• Five (5) burglaries were to unoccupied and/or open structures. 

 

378 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



• 15-027145 – Boonies Bar and Grill - The owner that sometime between 0400 and 0600 
hours, the suspect(s) smashed out the front door glass, walked directly to the back office, 
broke the office’s wooden doorframe and took $300 from a cash drawer. The suspect(s) 
removed only the $300 cash then rummaged through other areas of the office in and 
attempt to locate more money. The owner noted that he had just fired an employee for 
theft who is known to have a drug history. The owner was not been able to provide any 
copy of CC video due to his recording system being broken. He further requested that I 
not attempt latent prints, stating that there is all kinds of fingerprints in the office. He also 
said he would just eat the stolen $300. However, he needed the report to get the landlord 
to fix the front door.  

Town of Loxahatchee Groves CMV Enforcement Permit / January 2015 

2 Citations 

10 Warnings 

1 FIR / Field Interview Reports 

2 Commercial Vehicle Inspections 

1 Arrest (Town of Loxahatchee Groves Ordinance 2014-03) 

 

 

 

  

379 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



380 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Station

2/9/2015

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20150101 to 20150131

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

Emergency Calls:

21:58:1121:39:5421:34:2921:33:2121:33:1521:32:5801/01/2015F RD/MARCELLA BLVD    LOX21  0:06:56 0:05:25 0:01:08 0:00:23F15000489

08:37:1908:25:4108:19:5708:18:5108:18:4308:17:5601/02/2015BINKS FOREST DR/SOUTHERN BLVD    PBC20  0:07:45 0:05:44 0:01:06 0:00:55F15000663

14:20:2713:42:3613:36:3513:35:4513:35:4013:34:5001/02/2015MARCELLA BLVD/F RD    LOX21  0:07:46 0:06:01 0:00:50 0:00:55F15000823

19:23:1918:32:1718:24:3318:23:2318:23:1718:22:5401/05/2015 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX21  0:09:23 0:07:44 0:01:10 0:00:29F15002617

13:17:3713:15:3013:10:3913:10:0113:09:5213:09:4001/06/2015 COMPTON RD  LOX21  0:05:50 0:04:51 0:00:38 0:00:21F15003052

16:59:2016:22:2316:18:4816:18:0616:17:3216:16:5501/07/2015 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:05:28 0:03:35 0:00:42 0:01:11F15003729

18:56:0317:46:5617:43:3317:43:1517:43:0301/07/201511TH TER/D RD    LOX21  0:04:18 0:03:23 0:00:18 0:00:37F15003774

19:23:0019:01:1618:46:4618:46:0118:45:5501/07/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  PBC21  0:15:46 0:14:30 0:00:45 0:00:31F15003808

23:41:4722:19:1122:14:1622:13:0822:13:0101/11/2015 B RD  LOX21  0:06:35 0:04:55 0:01:08 0:00:32F15005935

10:37:1610:03:2809:58:3309:57:1309:56:4909:56:3001/12/2015 C RD  LOX21  0:06:58 0:04:55 0:01:20 0:00:43F15006121

20:33:1319:51:1519:43:1119:42:0619:42:0219:41:4101/14/2015 C RD  LOX21  0:09:34 0:08:04 0:01:05 0:00:25F15007586

05:51:3505:04:3504:58:3204:57:2304:57:1204:56:5201/15/2015 24TH CIR N LOX21  0:07:43 0:06:03 0:01:09 0:00:31F15007717

11:55:2111:09:5811:06:0711:05:0511:04:5611:04:3901/15/2015 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:05:19 0:03:51 0:01:02 0:00:26F15007848

07:29:5207:17:2007:12:2607:11:0007:10:4301/16/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:07:02 0:04:54 0:01:26 0:00:42F15008285

11:01:4210:25:1710:22:1710:21:3310:21:2410:21:0001/18/2015 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:04:17 0:03:00 0:00:44 0:00:33F15009508

18:04:3317:46:2017:44:2917:43:3117:43:2301/19/2015 E RD  LOX21  0:03:22 0:01:51 0:00:58 0:00:33F15010259

22:45:2422:15:1122:07:2422:06:1322:06:0422:05:0901/19/2015 C RD  LOX21  0:10:02 0:07:47 0:01:11 0:01:04F15010379

16:21:0414:55:0314:45:4914:44:4414:44:2601/22/2015 24TH CIR N LOX21  0:11:02 0:09:14 0:01:05 0:00:43F15011869

15:23:5114:55:3014:47:0414:46:0414:45:4614:45:1601/22/2015 C RD  LOX21  0:10:14 0:08:26 0:01:00 0:00:48F15011870

17:03:4016:49:1416:44:0216:42:1716:42:0801/23/2015 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX21  0:07:31 0:05:12 0:01:45 0:00:34F15012466

01:30:0100:41:2500:34:5100:33:1400:33:0800:32:3201/25/2015SOUTHERN BLVD/D RD    PBC21  0:08:53 0:06:34 0:01:37 0:00:42F15013168

22:07:3321:30:4121:26:1021:24:3221:24:2601/25/2015 BRYAN RD  LOX21  0:06:40 0:04:31 0:01:38 0:00:31F15013611

05:29:2205:05:0404:58:2004:56:4604:56:3704:55:3201/28/2015 B RD  LOX21  0:09:32 0:06:44 0:01:34 0:01:14F15014874

22:56:5622:14:1022:04:0622:02:2322:02:1822:02:0401/28/2015 NORTH RD  LOX21  0:12:06 0:10:04 0:01:43 0:00:19F15015323

21:44:1221:43:4221:35:1821:33:3021:33:2101/29/2015SOUTHERN BLVD/D RD    PBC21  0:10:46 0:08:24 0:01:48 0:00:34F15015849

02:04:3501:20:3801:09:0001:07:2901:07:2601/30/2015 161ST TER N LOX21  0:13:37 0:11:38 0:01:31 0:00:28F15015911

12:38:5711:52:2411:46:2311:45:2511:45:1801/30/2015 NORTH RD  LOX21  0:07:31 0:06:01 0:00:58 0:00:32F15016107

23:29:1323:20:4423:15:0223:13:3523:13:3023:12:1801/30/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:08:26 0:05:42 0:01:27 0:01:17F15016468

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 1 of 2381 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Station

2/9/2015

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20150101 to 20150131

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

Average Response Times:  0:00:40  0:01:10  0:06:24  0:08:13

Non Emergency Calls:

07:56:5907:49:1307:46:0807:44:2807:44:1501/12/2015 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:05:23 0:03:05 0:01:40 0:00:38F15006062

14:09:3812:37:4512:27:2312:26:5712:26:4401/17/2015 D RD  LOX21  0:11:26 0:10:22 0:00:26 0:00:38F15009006

16:54:3116:41:5816:29:5016:28:3316:28:2201/26/201544TH ST N/160TH AVE N    LOX21  0:14:01 0:12:08 0:01:17 0:00:36F15014046

 31Total number of Events:

*Represents call received to arrival.  If there is no received time, the County annual average call received to call entered time is used.

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 2 of 2382 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.d. 

MEETING DATE: 02/17/2015 
 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 
  

SUBJECT:  RV and Trailers in AR Zoning District  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town is experiencing a significant influx of unauthorized living units 
located throughout the Town. 
 
Problem Solution:   Remove unauthorized living quarters from all zoning districts within the 
Town.  

The Town does provide that specific circumstances exist that allows for dwelling units located 
within property in the Town that contains a principal or single family primary residence.  
Pursuant to the ULDC, various structures are permitted uses on in Section 20-005 Agricultural 
Residential.  The following briefly describes permitted living units: 
   

(A)  Accessory dwelling units. One accessory dwelling unit is permitted per parcel of land 
subject to specific criteria. 
(C) [Caretaker's quarters.] Caretaker's quarters are permitted on parcels with a bona fide 
agricultural use.  
(D) Construction trailers. One construction trailer may be placed on a plot for a period of 
time not to exceed one year during active construction of a permanent dwelling to serve 
as temporary living quarters for the owners of the home under construction. 
Construction trailers shall also be subject to the following standards.  
(F) Groom's quarters. Groom's quarters are permitted on parcels where there are 
equestrian uses and a stable with 18 or more stalls.   

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

 As you may be aware, various properties within the Town are incorporating mobile living units 
on their land contrary to the Town’s ULDC’s.  Land owners are allowing property to be used 
beyond that allowed limits provided in the ULDC’s.   
 
The ULDC’s appear to provide that a minimum 5 acres AR zoned parcel could potentially have: 

• One accessory building, and; 
• Multiple caretakers quarters, and; 
• Groom’s quarters 

 
In other words, a 5 acre residential parcel could have a home, and accessory building, multiple 

383 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



caretakers (at least 1), and a groom’s quarters.  In all there could be four (4) dwelling units on a 
parcel.  All or many homeowner’s currently comply with the provisions of the ULDC’s.  However, 
some land owners and homeowners have taken advantage of the non-specific language to their 
benefit or ignored the Town’s law as codified in the ULDC’s.   
 
This activity has issues that extend beyond the ULDC violations to what will eventually be 
additional cost for the residential solid waste services that are not being funded by the property 
owners that do not pay for waste removal. 
 
The magnitude of this problem is currently unavailable.     

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
      Uniform Land Development Code: Article 20 – Residential Zoning Districts 
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  Not able to be determined.  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  

Motion to instruct Code Enforcement to implement a targeted action sweep through the Town 
to identify ULDC noncompliant dwelling units on properties and report back to the Town Council 
the findings of the review.  
 
Provide direction to staff. 
 
 

 

384 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO.  8.e.
MEETING DATE: 02/17/2015 

 

PREPARED BY:    William F. Underwood, II 
  

SUBJECT:  Okeechobee Corridor Master Plan  
  
1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town needs to approve a modified Comprehensive Plan, land use and 
zoning for the Okeechobee Corridor.  
 
Problem Solution:   Provide funding for the Planning and Zoning Board to prepare 
recommendations for Town Council consideration.  

The Town Council recently placed a moratorium on commercial activities on Okeechobee 
Boulevard corridor.  The Council directed the Planning and Zoning Board to prepare 
recommendations for possible implementation into the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, land use, 
and zoning which will provide guidance to commercial activities in the corridor.  

  
2. CURRENT ACTIVITY  

  

 Town Council requested staff to prepare an estimate of the potential cost to work through the 
development process with the Planning and Zoning Board.  Staff has reviewed the scope of the 
project and guesstimates the hours of effort would approach 117 hours.  Including staff time to 
prepared meeting agendas, minutes, and other documentation, we believe the estimated 
amount will approach $14,850 would sufficient.  We will notify the Council when the project has 
remaining 50%, 25%, 10%, in order that Council can determine whether or not to provide 
additional funding. 

  
3. ATTACHMENTS  
    Work Authorization 2015‐01 
  
4. FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
   Budget provided from Comprehensive Planning and Zoning department for Other Services.  
  
5. RECOMMENDED ACTION  
 Motion to authorize work authorization 2015‐01 an expenditure of $14,850 for the Okeechobee 
Corridor planning effort. 
 

385 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Work Authorization No.: _ 1215-01 Date: 17-Feb-15

Address: 840 NE Stokes Terrace
                   Jensen Beach, Fl. 34957
Brief Description of Task: 

Compensation elements are as follows:

Method of Compensation Amount ($) Task Code

9,000.00$   Planning

900.00$      
UMSG 
Review

4,500.00$   Planning

450.00$      
UMSG 
Review

Total: 14,850.00$ 

Task 2 - Prepare the amendments 
and staff report, prepare legal 
notices and the ordinance, 
attendance at advertised LPA and 
Council meetings, prepare 
transmittal and submittal packages.

Task 1. - Land Research 
Management - LPA hours with Land 
Research Management assuming 6 
meetings, prepare agendas, staff 
reports, minutes, meeting follow-up, 
preparation of final report to Council 
attendance to Council 

Task 2 - Conference with Principal, 
publish amendments and staff 
report, publish legal notices and the 
ordinance, review transmittal and 
submittal packages.

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida
Work Authorization No.: 2015-01

Principal 3 hours; staff support

Estimated 72 @$125/ hour

Estimated 36 @$125/ hour

Okeechobee Boulevard Corridor planning effort and recommendation to Town Council for 
adoption within the moratorium deadline.  The work will consist of: 1 - Working with the LPA to 
prepare a recommendation to the Council; and 2 - Processing of the amendments.

Task 1. - Conference with UMSG 
Principal, produce agendas, 
minutes, assist preparation of final 
report to Council Principal 6 hours; staff support

The total amount or the limiting amount of the compensation will be: $14,850.00 unless 
additional services are authorized by the Town.

Consultant: Underwood Management Services Group, LLC. and Land Research Management

386 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Other Notes:

387 of 387   TC Agenda Packet 02/17/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 




